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November 2021

The Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Mebane, North Carolina

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report of the City of Mebane, North Carolina is submitted for your review and
use. This report was prepared by the City’s Finance Department, and it is the comprehensive publication of the City’s
financial position and results of operations as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. The City, like all other
local governments in the State, is required by state law to publish a complete set of financial statements within four
months of the close of each fiscal year. The financial statements must be presented in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a
firm of licensed certified public accountants. This report is published to fulfill that requirement for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2021, and to provide further accountability to citizens and other interested parties by providing a
more comprehensive report in lieu of the minimum basic financial statement requirements.

City management is responsible for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the report.
To ensure reliability of the information, City management has established a comprehensive framework of internal
controls. Internal controls protect the City’s assets from loss, theft and misuse and provide reliable information for
the preparation of this report. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City’s
controls have been designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements
are free of any material misstatements. As management, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial
report is complete, accurate and reliable in all material respects.

As noted earlier, the City is required by state law to have an annual independent financial audit. Stout, Stuart,
McGowen & King, LLP, conducted the audit and concluded in an unmodified (“clean”) opinion that the financial
statements present fairly in conformity with GAAP, in all material respects, the financial position and changes in
financial position for the City of Mebane, North Carolina, as of June 30, 2021. The independent auditors’ report on
the basic financial statements is located at the beginning of the financial section of this report.

Management’s discussion and analysis of the basic financial statements (MD&A) immediately follows the
independent auditors’ report and provides a prescribed narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic
financial statements. The MD&A is designed to complement this letter of transmittal and should be read in
conjunction with it.

Profile of the City

The town was named for Brigadier General Alexander Mebane of the North Carolina Militia and a member of
Congress in the 1790's. In 1855, the railroad arrived and Mebane was incorporated in 1881 as the town of
Mebanesville. The name was officially changed to Mebane in 1883. The charter was amended to the City of Mebane
in February of 1987. Also in 1881, Mebane's industrial growth began with establishment of the former White
Furniture Company, followed by the Mebane Bedding Company (now Kingsdown) in 1904 and the Ridgeville
Telephone Company (now Centurylink Communications) in 1907.
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The City of Mebane is located in the Piedmont Triad Region of North Carolina, about 45 minutes west of Raleigh, the
State capital, and 20 minutes east of Greensboro, the State’s third largest city. The City has a land area of
approximately ten miles, and a population of 16,262. Mebane is the second largest of ten municipalities located on
the eastern border of Alamance County. The City is located mostly in Alamance County, with about 15% of it in
Orange County.

The City is governed by the council-manager form of government. Policy making and legislative authority are vested
in the City Council, consisting of the mayor and five other members. The City Council is responsible, among other
things, for passing ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing committees, and hiring both the City’s manager and
attorney. The City Manager is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the City Council, for
overseeing the day-to-day operations of the City, and for appointing the heads of the various departments. Five
members of the City Council and the Mayor are elected to four year staggered terms. The Council then selects the
Mayor Pro-tem from within the Council membership.

The City provides a full range of services, including police and fire protection; the maintenance of streets and other
infrastructure; planning and building inspections; solid waste and recycling services; water and sewer services;
recreational and cultural activities; and a library. In the 1970’s, the City of Mebane and the City of Graham began a
joint venture to develop a single water supply for both cities. This intergovernmental cooperation led to the creation
of the Graham-Mebane Lake, which supplies drinking water to both towns. The City of Graham operates the water
treatment plant and manages all lake operations with one-third of the costs historically paid by the City of Mebane
and two-thirds borne by the City of Graham. In FY15, Mebane entered into an agreement to increase to 50% its
share of the water capacity. In FY17, Mebane entered into an agreement to buy 21.43% of Graham’s sewer capacity.

The Mebane City Council is required to adopt a budget by July 1 of each year. The City is empowered to levy a
property tax on both real estate and personal properties located within its boundaries. It also is empowered by state
statute to extend its corporate limits by annexation, which occurs periodically when deemed appropriate by the
governing board. The City’s budget ordinance creates a legal limit on spending authorizations, and serves as the
foundation for Mebane’s financial planning and control. The budget is prepared by fund and department. The City
Manager is authorized by the budget ordinance to make transfers within funds to facilitate budget execution
consistent with Council intent.
Local Economy

Mebane is uniquely located between two metropolitan areas, the Triangle, and the Triad. Mebane has and
continues to lead the area in new homebuilding. This trend is expected to continue as we are growing like other
fringe cities in the Triangle. The trend of increased retail spending is expected to continue and grow stronger
as the population of Mebane grows. Interest in the commercial and downtown sector could result in these
categories of development creating stand-alone projects versus recent mixed used approaches.

Industrial development also continues in Mebane. Chick-Fil-A Supply is scheduled to open a new distribution center
in early 2022, and Lotus Bakeries is expanding its current facility by 111,000 square feet. These facilities demonstrate
Mebane’s prime location on the Interstate 85/40 corridor that links two of the fastest growing metro areas on the
East Coast. At one end, the Research Triangle Park region of Raleigh, Durham and Chapel Hill; at the other, the
Piedmont Triad region of Greensboro, Winston-Salem and High Point. The City of Mebane is at the heart of this
corridor, where the full resources of the region come together to create exceptional opportunities for expanding
and relocating companies in the nationally recognized N.C. Industrial Center, the new Buckhorn Economic
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To The Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Mebane

Mebane, North Carolina

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of Mebane (the “City”), North Carolina, as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance
of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to an entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit , the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Mebane, North Carolina as of June 30, 2021, and the respective changes in financial position and
the cash flows, where appropriate, thereof and respective budgetary comparison for the General
Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, on pages 5 through 12, respectively, the Other
Postemployment Benefits’ Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios,
on page 66, the Local Government Employee’s Retirement System’s Schedules of the
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and Contributions, on pages 59 and 60,
respectively, the Firefighters” and Rescue Squad Workers’ Pension Fund’s Schedule of the
Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability on page 61, the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special
Separation Allowance schedules of the Changes in Total Pension Liability and Total Pension
Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll on pages 62 and 63, respectively and the
Firefighters” Special Separation Allowance schedules of the Changes in Total Pension Liability
and Total Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll on pages 64 and 65, respectively
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a
required part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
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inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s response to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the City of Mebane, North Carolina. The
combining and individuals fund statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules, and the
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act, are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements, budgetary schedules, and other
schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America by us. In our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed as described above,
the combining and individual fund statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules are fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 10, 2021 on our consideration of the City of Mebane’s internal control over financial
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of the report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion in internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering City of Mebane’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Burlington, North Carolina
November 10, 2021
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Management Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2021

As management of the City of Mebane, we offer readers of the financial statements this narrative overview
and analysis of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. We encourage readers to
read the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in the
City’s financial statements, which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

e The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City of Mebane exceeded its liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources at the close of the fiscal year by $118,247,835 (net position).

e The government’s total net position increased by $7,945,001, due to increases in the government
type net position of $3,628,434 and increases in the business type activities net position of
$4,316,567.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Mebane’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $16,414,129, an increase of $1,458,652 in comparison to
$580,787 in the prior year. Approximately 21.7 percent of this total amount, or $3,565,047, is
nonspendable or restricted.

¢ At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $10,332,231
or 50.63 percent of total general fund expenditures for the fiscal year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to City’s basic financial statements. The
City’s basic financial statements consist of three components; 1) government-wide financial statements, 2)
fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements (see Figure 1). The basic financial
statements present two different views of the City through the use of government-wide statements and fund
financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other supplemental
information that will enhance the reader’s understanding of the financial condition of the City of Mebane.

Required Components of Annual Financial Report (Figure 1)

Management Discussion and L .
. Basic Financial Statements
Analysis
Government-wide Financial . . Notes to the Financial
Fund Financial Statements
Statements Statements
Summary »  Detail

Basic Financial Statements
The first two statements (Exhibits 1 and 2) in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide
Financial Statements. They provide both short and long-term information about the City’s financial status.

Page 5



City of Mebane, North Carolina
Management Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2021

The next statements (Exhibits 3 through 8) are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the
activities of the individual parts of the City government. These statements provide more detail than the
government-wide statements. There are three parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the governmental
funds statements; 2) the budgetary comparison statements; and 3) the proprietary fund statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial statements explain
in detail some of the data contained in those statements. After the notes, supplemental information is
provided to show details about the City’s individual funds. Budgetary information required by the General
Statutes also can be found in this part of the statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the
City’s finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The government-wide
statements provide short and long-term information about the City’s financial status as a whole.

The two government-wide statements report the City’s net position and how they have changed. Net
position is the difference between the City’s total assets and deferred outflows of resources and total
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Measuring net position is one way to gauge the City’s financial
condition.

The government-wide statements are divided into two categories: 1) governmental activities and 2)
business-type activities. The governmental activities include most of the City’s basic services such as public
safety, parks and recreation, and general administration. Property taxes and state and federal grant funds
finance most of these activities. The business-type activities are those that the City charges customers to
provide. These include the water and sewer services offered by the City of Mebane.

The government-wide financial statements are on Exhibits 1 and 2 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements (see Figure 1) provide a more detailed look at the City’s most significant
activities. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Mebane, like all other governmental entities
in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance) with finance-
related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes or the City’s budget ordinance. All of the funds of
the City of Mebane can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the City’s basic services are
accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash
flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will be available for spending in the next year.
Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting that
provides a short-term spending focus. As a result, the governmental fund financial statements give the reader
a detailed short-term view that helps him or her determine if there are more or less financial resources
available to finance the City’s programs. The relationship between government activities (reported in the
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a
reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial statements.

The City of Mebane adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General Statutes. The
budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the City, the management
of the City, and the decisions of the Board about which services to provide and how to pay for them. It also
authorizes the City to obtain funds from identified sources to finance these current period activities. The
budgetary statement provided for the General Fund demonstrates how well the City complied with the
budget ordinance and whether or not the City succeeded in providing the services as planned when the
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Management Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2021

budget was adopted. The budgetary comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is
presented using the same format, language, and classifications as the legal budget document. The statement
shows four columns: 1) the original budget as adopted by the board; 2) the final budget as amended by the
board; 3) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4)
the difference or variance between the final budget and the actual resources and charges.

Proprietary Funds — The City of Mebane has one kind of proprietary fund. Enterprise Funds are used to report
the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The
City of Mebane uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer activity. These funds are the same as
those functions shown in the business-type activities in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities.

Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements begin on page 24 of this report.

Other Information — In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report
includes certain required supplementary information concerning the City of Mebane’s progress in funding its
obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required supplementary information can be found
beginning on page 59 of this report.

Interdependence with Other Entities — The City depends on financial resources flowing from, or associated
with, both the Federal Government and the State of North Carolina. Because of this dependency, the City is
subject to changes in specific flows of intergovernmental revenues based on modifications to Federal and
State laws and Federal and State appropriations.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

City of Mebane’s Net Position (Figure 2)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2021 2020 2019 2021 2020 2019 2021 2020 2019
Current and other assets... $17,108,874 $16,328,930 $15,314,782 $ 8,495903 $ 8,422,634 $10,038366 $ 25,604,777 $ 24,751,564 $ 25,353,148

Non-current assets..
Capital assets.....
Total assets ...

2,077,097 1,694,588 1,402,094 3,136,703 1,573,791 - 5,213,800 3,268,379 1,402,094
60,583,002 57,304,415 54,184,211 54,987,245 52,721,275 47,220,521 115,570,247 110,025,690 101,404,732
79,768,973 75,327,933 70,901,087 66,619,851 62,717,700 _ 57,258,887 146,388,824 138,045,633 128,159,974

Deferred outflows of resources......... 6,984,654 4,717,368 3,638,262 971,957 692,831 525,612 7,956,611 5,410,199 4,163,874

22,991,907 19,099,032 18,267,076 8,841,303 9,026,767 9,456,048 31,833,210 28,125,799 27,723,124
2,200,642 2,471,378 1,656,230 1,293,498 1,226,150 1,022,724 3,494,140 3,697,528 2,678,954
25,192,549 21,570,410 19,923,306 10,134,801 10,252,917 10,478,772 35,327,350 31,823,327 30,402,078

Long-term liabilities outstandin:
Other liabilities..

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources............ 675,694 790,594 903,583 94,556 111,730 114,256 770,250 902,324 1,017,839

Net position:

Netinvestment in capital assets....... 53,020,166 48,932,506 44,539,110 48,261,754 45,237,242 38,984,945 101,281,920 94,169,748 83,524,055

Restricted 3,533,331 2,535,935 2,844,468 2,465,362 970,910 586,608 5,998,693 3,506,845 3,431,076

Unrestricted.............. - 4,331,887 6,215,856 6,328,882 6,635,335 6,837,732 7,619,918 10,967,222 13,053,588 13,948,800
Total net position .. $60,885,384 $57,684,297 $53,712,460 $57,362,451 $53,045,884 $47,191,471 $118,247,835 $110,730,181 $100,903,931

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government’s financial
condition. The assets and deferred outflows of the City of Mebane exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows
by $118,247,835 as of June 30, 2021. The City’s net position increased by $7,945,001 for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2021. However, the largest portion (85.65%) reflects the City’s net investment in capital
assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery, and equipment). The City of Mebane uses these capital assets to
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
City of Mebane’s net investment in capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the
resources needed to repay that debt must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be
used to liquidate these liabilities. An additional portion of the City of Mebane’s net position $5,998,693
(5.1%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The
remaining balance of $10,967,222 is unrestricted.
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Several particular aspects of the City’s financial operations positively influenced the total unrestricted
governmental net position:

e Continued diligence in the collection of property
taxes by maintaining a tax collection percentage
of 99.64%, which compares favorably with the
statewide average of 98.96%.

e Other taxes increased $697,091 which included
an increase in sales taxes of $688,861.

e Water and sewer charges for services increased
by $1,501,481 due to an increase in demand for
these services.

e A continued low cost of debt due to the City’s
high bond rating.

City of Mebane Changes in Net Position (Figure 3)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2021 2020 2019 2021 2020 2019 2021 2020 2019
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for Services.......oneunnes $ 2,041,900 $ 1,464,352 $ 1,479,984 S 9,146,098 $ 7,644,617 S 6,995810 $ 11,187,998 $ 9,108,969 S 8,475,794
Operating grants and contributions 821,868 957,002 742,312 - - - 821,868 957,002 742,312
Capital grants and contributions..... 4,465,736 3,927,560 2,617,102 2,890,267 5,400,880 226,820 7,356,003 9,328,440 2,843,922
General revenues:
Property taxes.. 11,807,602 11,378,933 10,895,740 - - - 11,807,602 11,378,933 10,895,740
Other taxes... 5,764,756 5,067,665 4,885,951 - - - 5,764,756 5,067,665 4,885,951
Grants and contributions not
191,474 31,047 4,050 - - - 191,474 31,047 4,050
157,929 580,737 217,231 (62,837) 105,857 138,837 95,092 686,594 356,068

Total revenues. 25,251,265 23,407,296 20,842,370 11,973,528 13,151,354 7,361,467 37,224,793 36,558,650 28,203,837

Expenses:
General government 2,945,979 2,508,794 2,262,074 - - - 2,945,979 2,508,794 2,262,074
Public safety. 9,046,866 8,045,419 7,070,899 - - - 9,046,866 8,045,419 7,070,899
Public works 5,273,617 4,939,677 3,803,467 - - - 5,273,617 4,939,677 3,803,467
Economic development. 2,225,126 1,677,079 1,269,525 - - - 2,225,126 1,677,079 1,269,525
Culture and recreation 1,931,238 2,005,292 1,900,889 - - - 1,931,238 2,005,292 1,900,889
Interest on long-term dep 200,005 257,803 281,751 - - - 200,005 257,803 281,751
Water and sewer . - - - 7,656,961 7,298,336 6,762,948 7,656,961 7,298,336 6,762,948
Total eXPenses......ccuinivicuncinisenseniennns 21,622,831 19,434,064 16,588,605 7,656,961 7,298,336 6,762,948 29,279,792 26,732,400 23,351,553
Increasein net position before
transfers and special item................. 3,628,434 3,973,232 4,253,765 4,316,567 5,853,018 598,519 7,945,001 9,826,250 4,852,284
Transfers . - (1,395) (57,302) = 1,395 57,302 - - -
Special item. - - - - - - - - -
Increasein net position.. 3,628,434 3,971,837 4,196,463 4,316,567 5,854,413 655,821 7,945,001 9,826,250 4,852,284

57,684,297 53,712,460 49,515,997 53,045,884 47,191,471 46,535,650 110,730,181 100,903,931 96,051,647
57,256,950 53,712,460 49,515,997 53,045,884 47,191,471 46,535,650 110,302,834 100,903,931 96,051,647
Net position, June 30.... . $60,885,384 $57,684,297 $53,712,460 $57,362,451 $53,045,884 $47,191,471 $118,247,835 $110,730,181 $100,903,931

Note: 2020 Net Position has been restated to reflect prior period adjustments.

Net position, July 1
Net position, restated..

Governmental activities: Governmental activities prior to transfers increased the City’s net position by
$3,628,434 thereby accounting for 45.67% of the total growth in the net position of the City of Mebane. Key
elements of this change in net position are as follows:

e Property taxes increased by $428,669 over the prior year.

e Other tax revenues increased by $697,091 over the prior year, mostly in sales tax despite the impact
of the coronavirus pandemic.

e Charges for services increased by $577,548 while operating grants decreased $135,134 and capital
grants and contributions increased $538,176 over the prior year.

Business-type activities: Business-type activities prior to transfers increased the City of Mebane’s net
position by $4,316,567, accounting for 54.33% of the total growth in the government’s net position. Key
elements of this change in net position as compared to the prior year are as follows:
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e Charges for services increased $1,501,481 due to an increase in demand for these services, due to

the growth in Mebane.

e (Capital grants and contributions decreased
$2,510,613 due to the larger impact of increased
economic growth in the City during the prior year.

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Mebane uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

Governmental Funds: The focus of the City of Mebane's
governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the City of Mebane’s
financing requirements.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of

Mebane. At the end of the current fiscal year, fund balance available in the General Fund was $12,282,231,
while total fund balance reached $15,719,819. The City currently has an available fund balance of 60.18% of
general fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 77.03% of the same amount.

At June 30, 2021, the governmental funds of the City of Mebane reported a combined fund balance of

$16,414,129, a 9.75% increase over last year.
This increase in fund balance is due to an
increase in the general fund of $877,502
combined with an increase in the non-major
funds of $581,150.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights: During the
fiscal year, the City revised the budget on
several  occasions. Generally, budget
amendments fall into one of three categories:
1) amendments made to adjust the estimates
that are used to prepare the original budget
ordinance once exact information is available;
2) amendments made to recognhize new
funding amounts from external sources, such

as Federal and State grants; and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary to maintain services.

Revenues were more than the budgeted amounts primarily because tax revenue that the City originally had

expected to receive was significantly more. Expenditures
were significantly less than budgeted as a result of the
delay of many expenditures due to the coronavirus
pandemic.

Proprietary Funds: The City’s proprietary funds provide the
same type of information found in the government-wide
statements but in more detail. Unrestricted net position of
the Water and Sewer fund at the end of the fiscal year
amounted to $6,635,335. The total increase in net position
was $4,316,567.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets: The City of Mebane’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business—type
activities as of June 30, 2021, totals $115,570,247 (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets include
buildings, roads, land, artwork and collections, machinery and equipment, park facilities, and vehicles.

Major capital asset transactions during the year include the following additions and disposals:

e Capital contributions in the general fund in the amount of $4,465,736 and in the water and sewer
fund in the amount of $2,890,267.

e Construction in progress in the governmental funds consisted of construction related expenses in
the Lake Michael Dam Spillway of $129,100, the Cates Farm Park of $84,823, and MACC to Holt
Street Greenway $24,256.

e Construction in progress for Utility funds includes related expenses of $416,433 for the WRRF

Upgrade.
City of Mebane’s Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation (Figure 4)
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2021 2020 2019 2021 2020 2019 2021 2020 2019

Land $ 7,509,059 $ 6,980,512 $ 6,980,512 $ 566,834 $ 520,198 $ 520,198 S 8,075893 $ 7,500,710 $ 7,500,710
Artwork and collections..... 68,360 68,360 46,000 - - 68,360 68,360 46,000
Buildings and systems... 12,515,279 12,834,576 13,177,061 21,366,660 21,650,859 22,177,370 33,881,939 34,485,435 35,354,431
Water and sewer systems.. 30,732,694 29,099,844 23,447,533 30,732,694 29,099,844 23,447,533

Improvements other than buildings 9,994,677 10,114,964 10,013,064

- - - 9,994,677 10,114,964 10,013,064
Machinery and equipment 1,515,008 1,775,174 1,954,736 1,734,340 1,049,187 920,648 3,249,348 2,824,361 2,875,384
Computer equipment. 213,453 216,441 265,547 - - - 213,453 216,441 265,547
Infrastructure, 26,250,167 22,306,612 18,791,974 - - - 26,250,167 22,306,612 18,791,974
Vehicles and motorized equipment. 2,225,671 2,954,627 2,944,184 31,431 43,463 20,018 2,257,102 2,998,090 2,964,202
CONStruction in Progress........... 291,328 53,149 11,133 555,286 357,724 134,754 846,614 410,873 145,887

$60,583,002 $57,304,415 $54,184,211 $54,987,245 $52,721,275 $47,220,521 $115,570,247 $110,025,690 $101,404,732

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found on page 33 of this report.
Long-term Debt: As of June 30, 2021, the City of Mebane had no bonded debt outstanding.
City of Mebane’s Outstanding Debt (Figure 5)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2021 2020 2019 2021 2020 2019 2021 2020 2019
General obligation bonds. $ -8 -8 - S -8 - S - S - S - S -
Direct Placement Debt........ 7,562,836 8,371,909 9,645,099 3,186,778 3,617,917 4,042,056 10,749,614 11,989,826 13,687,155
Other long-term payables. - - - 3,538,713 3,866,116 4,193,519 3,538,713 3,866,116 4,193,519
Compensated absences..... 445,229 465,151 429,293 78,990 76,077 68,555 524,219 541,228 497,848
OPEB.....ccoovvirricircianns 9,501,292 6,809,240 5,357,168 1,494,607 1,061,570 819,539 10,995,899 7,870,810 6,176,707
Pension related debt... 5,482,550 3,880,079 2,835,516 542,215 405,087 332,379 6,024,765 4,285,166 3,167,895

Total.... . $22,991,907 $19,526,379 $18,267,076 $ 8,841,303 $ 9,026,767 $ 9,456,048 $31,833,210 $28,553,146 $27,723,124

Note: 2020 Pension related debt has been restated to reflect prior period adjustments.
The City of Mebane’s total debt increased by $3,280,064 (11.49%) during the past fiscal year, primarily due to
increases in OPEB of $3,125,089, and increases in pension obligations of $1,739,599, netted with scheduled
principal payments of $1,998,115 on notes and other long-term payables. The total pension related debt for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 included a prior period adjustment of $427,347 for the Firefighters’
Special Separation Allowance approved July 8, 2019.

The City of Mebane has maintained a high bond rating at “AA+” with Standard and Poor’s Corporation. There
was no new general obligation debt issued in FY21, and Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services last review
affirmed the rating, with a stable outlook for the City of Mebane. They stated that the rating reflects their
opinion of the City’s favorable location, growing and diverse property base, very strong finances and low
direct debt. The City believes this speaks very highly of the stability and sound management practices of the
City of Mebane.

North Carolina general statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government can
issue to 8 percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that government’s
boundaries. The legal debt margin for City of Mebane is $179,348,538.
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Additional information regarding the City of Mebane’s long-term debt can be found on page 50 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The following key economic indicators reflect the growth of the City of Mebane:

e The City has and continues to lead the area in industrial recruitment and new homebuilding. The
residential and industrial sector continues to demonstrate growth, with the latter potentially
increasing explicitly beyond the number and size of recent years. Interest in the commercial and
downtown sector could result in these categories of development creating stand-alone projects
versus recent mixed-use approaches.

e The City’s tax base continues to grow with industrial development and expansion in the NC Industrial
Center and NC Commerce Park, along with new development in Orange County. For example, Chick-
fil-A is opening a distribution center in early 2022, and Lotus Bakeries is expanding the size of its
current facility in Mebane by adding 111,000 square feet. Additionally, several mixed-use projects
will provide additional retail and residential space.

e Retail sales are expected to remain strong, with Tanger Outlets sustaining much of its growth.

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022

Governmental Activities: The tax base is expected to continue to grow; therefore, the City retained an
valorem tax rate of $.47 per $100 valuation and a 13.9% growth in tax collections. Retail sales and
state-shared revenues were budgeted to increase based on current trends and forecasts, with an overall
increase of 18.6% in General Fund revenues.

The expenditures budget added ten new positions and multiple rolling stock purchases of over $1 million.
New projects include a connector between Lebanon Rd. and Lake Michael, several sidewalk projects,
multiple recreation projects, and information technology upgrades.

The budget included a cost-of-living increase and merit pay for employees.

Business-type Activities: The budget for FY22 included a 10% rate increase for water and sewer services, and
revised system development fees. Water and sewer charges were budgeted to increase due to the rate
increase and growth, with overall revenues increasing 25.4% overall. In addition, the budget continued the
City’s dedication to the maintenance of the system and to address growth, continuing the plan to issue $9
million in debt to renovate the Water Resources Recovery Facility.

Request for Information

This report is designed to provide an overview of the City’s finances for those interested in this area.
Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or request for additional information should
be directed to:

Daphna Schwartz

Finance Director

106 E. Washington Street Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563-5901
dschwartz@cityofmebane.com
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Basic Financial Statements

The Basic Financial Statements provide a dual perspective
summary overview of the financial position and operating
results of the government as a whole (government-wide
financial statements) and of all funds (fund financial
statements). They also serve as a condensed introduction to
the more detailed statements and schedules that follow.







City of Mebane, North Carolina
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2021 Exhibit 1
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

Assets

Cash and cash eqUIValENts...........cveeveeeeeieeeerecere et S 14,377,371 $ 7,511,270 $ 21,888,641

Taxes receivables, (Net)....c..ieciie e, 82,899 - 82,899

Accrued interest receivable on taxXes.......ccccceeeevveeeieeiiieiiiieeeeeens 14,825 - 14,825

Accounts receivable (Net).......cccveeeciericie e, 167,028 984,633 1,151,661

Due from other governments........cccueeeciieeeciieeecciee e eciee s 2,435,035 - 2,435,035

Prepaid itEMIS....uii et e 31,716 - 31,716

ReStricted Cash......uiieeiee e 1,564,155 3,136,703 4,700,858
Notes receivable - Mebane Mill Lofts, LLC........ccccevveereeeeieiinveennenn. 512,942 - 512,942
Capital assets (Note 2):

Land, non-depreciable improvements, and

CONSErUCTION iN PrOZIreSS civviiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 7,868,747 1,122,119 8,990,866

Other capital assets, net of depreciation........cccceeceeeeeciveecineenne 52,714,255 53,865,126 106,579,381

Total capital @SSELS....ccuiieiriiee e 60,583,002 54,987,245 115,570,247
TOtal ASSELS...ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiirrrrerrreeeneeseesssssssssssssssessneaeanes 79,768,973 66,619,851 146,388,824
Deferred outflows of resources........ccccccceeeeerreeneerecereeenneseeereennns 6,984,654 971,957 7,956,611
Liabilities
Amounts due within one year:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses..........ccecueeeecieeeeeieeens 1,118,067 323,697 1,441,764

Accrued interest payable..........coooiiiiiiei i, 43,069 36,135 79,204

Due to other governmMeNts.........cccccvvieeiiieeciee e 15,819 262,325 278,144

Payable from restricted assets........cccuveeeieeeeciieeeciiee e 1,023,687 671,341 1,695,028

Current portion of long-term liabilities..........ccccceevviiieeiiieeccineens 1,671,399 833,841 2,505,240
Amounts due in more than one year:

Net pension liability - LGERS.........cccoveieiieecciee e 3,473,244 542,215 4,015,459

Net pension liability - LEOSSA........cccoiiieiieeecieee et 1,372,013 - 1,372,013

Net pension liability - FIr@SSA......cccii i 637,293 - 637,293

Due in More than ONe Year.......cccceveveieevvee e e 15,837,958 7,465,247 23,303,205
Total liabilities....ccceeeerriiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnreereeeeeenree e eeeessnes 25,192,549 10,134,801 35,327,350
Deferred inflows of resouUrces........cccevreeeneciereieeencierieeeeeeeereeenes 675,694 94,556 770,250
Net Position
Net investment in capital @ssets........cccoveeeiiieeeciee e, 53,020,166 48,261,754 101,281,920
Restricted for:

Stabilization by State Statute.........ccccveeeiieeecciee e 3,405,872 - 3,405,872

Other fUNCHIONS. . uvvieiii ettt e, 127,459 - 127,459

Future system development........cceeecveeeeciiee e - 2,465,362 2,465,362
(0] T =Ty A g ot =Y R 4,331,887 6,635,335 10,967,222
Total Net POSILION....ccccceeeereeerereereereeeeeseeeereeeeeeeeeraeeeesaesesseens S 60,885,384 S 57,362,451 S 118,247,835

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Exhibit 2

Program Revenue

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
Primary Government

Operating Capital Grants
Charges for Grants & and Governmental Business-type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Primary government
Governmental activities
General government.........cccceeeeeveennnene. S 2,945,979 S 5,400 $ - S - S (2,940,579) S - S (2,940,579)
Public safety......ccccvevveeniieceeniiesieeieenn 9,046,866 19,750 121,491 - (8,905,625) - (8,905,625)
PUblic WOrKS.....coovveiienieenieeiee e 5,273,617 701,980 380,238 4,465,736 274,337 - 274,337
Recreation.....ccevceevceeeniiesee e 1,931,238 80,918 6,825 - (1,843,495) - (1,843,495)
Economic & physical development........ 2,225,126 1,233,852 313,314 - (677,960) - (677,960)
Interest on long-term debt.................... 200,005 - - - (200,005) - (200,005)
Total governmental activities................ 21,622,831 2,041,900 821,868 4,465,736 (14,293,327) - (14,293,327)
Business-type activities:
Water and SEWer......ccoevveveveiiiiiiiiiiinnnnn. 7,656,961 9,146,098 - 2,890,267 - 4,379,404 4,379,404
Total business-type activities................. 7,656,961 9,146,098 - 2,890,267 - 4,379,404 4,379,404
Total primary government...................... S 29,279,792 S 11,187,998 S 821,868 S 7,356,003 (14,293,327) 4,379,404 (9,913,923)
General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes..........cccceeeevveercnnennn. 11,807,602 - 11,807,602
SalES LAXES. .. vteeieiiee ettt nanaas 4,398,713 - 4,398,713
FranChisSe taX.....occeecveerrieiniieiieeiee sttt e 1,141,022 - 1,141,022
Privilege license tax 955 - 955
EXCISE TAXuuttteeeurreeerireeeenieeeeireeesreeeesitee e s snree e sareeessnreeesnreeesaneeenas 224,066 - 224,066
Grants & contributions not restricted to specific programs.......... 191,474 - 191,474
Unrestricted investment €arnings........ccceeecveeevieeeecnieeescveeesveenn 56,026 28,073 84,099
MISCEIIANEOUS........ocevevecevceeee ettt ssseeseneeeenanes 101,903 (90,910) 10,993
Total general revenues excluding transfers........ccccceeceeereercennen. 17,921,761 (62,837) 17,858,924
LI 1015 11T USRS - - -
Total general revenues and transfers.........cuveeeeeereerieeressssesnesenns 17,921,761 (62,837) 17,858,924
Change in Net POSItION.......ceuereereererrerresreeseeeesessessessessessessesaessesens 3,628,434 4,316,567 7,945,001
Net position - beginning , previously reported........ccccevveervenneen. 57,684,297 53,045,884 110,730,181
RESTALEMENT. ... ene s esneeeas (427,347) - (427,347)
Net POSItioN - DEGINNING ....cvevveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et 57,256,950 53,045,884 110,302,834
Net POSItioN - ENAING.....ceeeereireererrerieeseesesieeseeseeseesessessessessessessenes $ 60,885,384 S 57,362,451 S 118,247,835

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




City of Mebane, North Carolina
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2021 Exhibit 3
Capital Project Total
Total Non - Governmental
General Fund Park Project Major Funds Funds
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents.........cccccceeevieeeeciinens
Restricted cash.....ccccoecciiiiiiiicee e,
Taxes receivable, Net........ueeeeeeeeeeeieiiieieieieieeeeeeeiens
Receivable from other governments....................
Other receivables..........cccceeeciieeeciee e
Prepaid itemS......cccuviieee e
Advance to other funds.......cccoeecviiiieiiiiciiieene.

TOtal @SSEtS..cuuuuuiiriieeenniirrrenenncereeennnneereeennnseeens

Liabilties, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances
Liabilities

Accounts payable.......ccocooeeeiiieiccee e
Due to other funds........cooevviiiiciiiiniiieeiec e,
Due to other governments.......ccocceeevveeveeeneenneene
Payable from restricted assets...........cccceevvveeennnen.

Total liabilities...ccccieeeiereeierenniereeiereniereeneerennenes

Deferred inflows of resources.........ccceeveennneernenes

Fund balances:
Nonspendable

Prepaid assets....ccocieeeiieeeeiiee e e

Restricted

Stabilization by State Statute..........cccceevcveennns
Economic development.........cccccvueeeeeeeccineeeneenn.

Assigned

Subsequent year's expenditures............ccuuueee...
UNASSIZNEd.....ceiiiieiiiiieeec et

Total fund balances.......cccceeeerrrreeneiiiereeeenceeenennnn.

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of

resources and fund balances.......cccceeeeeerrrennnnnens

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

$ 13,745,250 $ $ 632,121 $ 14,377,371
1,436,696 127,459 1,564,155
82,899 - 82,899
2,435,035 - 2,435,035
166,065 - 166,065
31,716 - 31,716

$ 17,897,661 S $§ 759,580 $ 18,657,241
1,052,797 65,270 1,118,067
15,819 - 15,819
1,023,687 - 1,023,687
2,092,303 65,270 2,157,573
85,539 - 85,539
31,716 - 31,716
3,405,872 - 3,405,872

- 127,459 127,459
1,950,000 566,851 2,516,851
10,332,231 - 10,332,231
15,719,819 694,310 16,414,129

$ 17,897,661 S $ 759,580 S 18,657,241
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Balance Sheet (continued)

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2021 Exhibit 3

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net

Position (Exhibit 1) are different because:

Total fund balance, governmental funds........ccccoovcieiiiiiiiiiii e S 16,414,129
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources

and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Gross capital assets at historical COSt.......cuuiiiiiiiiiiiii e 78,903,815

Accumulated depreCiation.........iccceee e e (18,320,813) 60,583,002
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions are not

repOorted iN the fUNAS....oo i e saeeas 4,086,619
Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB are not

rePOrted iN the fUNAS...coi i e e e s naneeas 2,898,035

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and therefore are inflows of resources in the funds.

Accrued interest receivable 0N taXesS.......cocccviiieiiee i s 14,825

NOLES FECEIVADIE. ... e e et e et e e et e e e ree e e snnes 512,942 527,767
Earned revenues considered deferred inflows of resources

N FUND SEATEMENTS. ..ii it e e st e s abae e sareeeas 83,862
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are not
reported in the fFUNAS..........oo i (24,317)
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB are not
reported in the fFUNAS..........eo e (648,737)

Long-term liabilities used in governmental activities are not financial uses
and therefore are not reported in the funds.

NOTES PAYADIE. ettt ettt st (7,562,835)

CompPeENSAted ADSENCES. ... ..uiiiiiiieeiie e e s (445,230)

Net pension liability - LGERS......ccccviriiriiiiieinie sttt (3,473,244)

Total pension liability - LEOSSA......ccuuiiiiiiieeiiee ettt eiteeeeite e eseee e ssive e e sare e e sbneessabeeeenns (1,372,013)

Total pension liability - FIF@SSA.....c.uiiriiiiieieeiitere ettt sae b s (637,293)

OPEB lIability.ceeuveerieeieeiieenie ettt sttt sttt ettt e e s b e sateesaae e e (9,501,292)  (22,991,907)
Other long-term liabilities (accrued interest) are not due and payable

in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds...........cccceeevvrenneen. (43,069)
Net Position of Governmental ActiVities.......ccccccceirrremeeiiiirieeenccierrreereeerreeenee e e eeennens S 60,885,384

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 Exhibit 4
Capital Project Total
Fund - City Total Non- Governmental
General Fund Park Project Major Funds Funds
Revenues
ProPerty taXES....ueiueiereereereeereeveeteesreeeesreeereesaeesreeneeens S 11,339,347 S - S - S 11,339,347
Other taxes and liceNSes.......ccccevevveeeeciee e, 955 - - 955
Unrestricted intergovernmental.........cccccceeeeeicinnneen..n. 6,101,360 - - 6,101,360
Restricted intergovernmental.........cccceeeeveeiccveecciieennn, 1,154,666 - - 1,154,666
Permits and fees.......ccccceeeiiiiiiii e 1,338,035 - - 1,338,035
Sales aNd SEIVICES.....uuvvviiiieiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 616,526 - - 616,526
Investment @arnings..........oeeeeeeeeeeeececececcccc e 52,436 - 3,591 56,027
MISCEIIANEOUS. ...ceviviiieieieieieeeeeeeeeeeee e 251,884 - 10,710 262,594
Total revenues..........cceeeeeeeeeiinniisisicsisinnniineeeeeeeeensnnnn 20,855,209 - 14,301 20,869,510
Expenditures
Current:
General government........cccceeeeeieccieeee e 2,564,263 - - 2,564,263
Public safety.....ccccoeviviieeeiieeecee e 7,019,825 - - 7,019,825
PUBIIC WOTKS. ... e 3,897,283 - - 3,897,283
RECIEAtION...ccvviiiiic et 2,132,340 - - 2,132,340
Economic and physical development......................... 2,199,172 - - 2,199,172
Debt Service:
PrinCipal....ccc e 1,239,573 - - 1,239,573
Interest and other charges........cccccceeevvvveeccee e, 211,159 - - 211,159
Capital OULIaY......eee e - - 577,743 577,743
Total EXpenditures.......ccccceerreemeeecierreemenncceeneennnnccesneenns 19,263,615 - 577,743 19,841,358
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures..... 1,591,594 - (563,442) 1,028,152

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

TrANSTEIS IN.uiiiiiiiieir e ere e eereeeees - - 1,144,592 1,144,592
Transfers out (1,144,592) - - (1,144,592)
Installment purchase obligations
13U T=Tc PO RSt 430,500 - - 430,500
Total other financing sources and uses........ccccccccuuu... (714,092) - 1,144,592 430,500
Net change in fund balances........cccccovveeiieiiiiieneeeeeenn, 877,502 - 581,150 1,458,652
Fund balances - beginning ........ccccccvvveeiieniiiiiiieeieees 14,842,317 - 113,160 14,955,477
Fund balances - ending.......c.cccceerreerrreeerrecsreeeeeecrneenens S 15,719,819 S - S 694,310 S 16,414,129

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Mebane, North Carolina

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (continued)

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Exhibit 4

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of
Activities are different because:
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures; however,
in the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation
in the current period.
Capital outlay expenditures which were capitalized...........ccccevevvveeeiiinnnns
Depreciation expense for governmental assets.........ccccvevvveeeecieeeeceeesineenn.
Cost of capital asset disposed of during the year, not recognized

on Modified aCCrual DasiS........ccvuviiiiiiiiiiiiee e

Contributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal
year are not included on the Statement of Activities.........cccccceveeercciiiieeennnn,
Benefit payments paid and administrative costs for
LEOSSA are deferred outflows of resources on the
Statement of ACHIVITIES......oiviirii i
OPEB benefit payments and administrative costs made
in the current fiscal year are not included on the
Statement Of ACHIVITIES....ccovuiiiiiie e
Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds
Amount of contributed capital.........cccceerciiiecciie e
Mebane Mills Lofts notes receivable principal receipts......cccccceeecvvieeeeeinnns
Change in unavailable revenue for tax revenues.........cccocvveeeeeeccciieeeeeeecnnens

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term
debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transaction has any effect on net position. This amount is the
net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and
related items.
New long-term debt iSSUE........coociiiiiiiiiiiiieeeie e
Principal payments on long-term debt........cocceviiiniiiiiiiniieeee,
Decrease in accrued interest payable.........cccoivvieiniiiniiiniiiec e
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported
as expenditures in governmental funds.
Compensated abSENCES..........uueeiiiiiciieee e e e
PENSION EXPENSE..cciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieiee ettt e e e e e e e e e s e s e es e s s s s s s aaannrnes
OPEB Plan @XPENSE.....ciiccueieeiiiieeeieieeeeeeestee e e steeesnaeeestaeesessaeesssseeessseeennes
Total changes in net position of governmental activities .......ccccceeeeeerinnnn.

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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S 1,458,652

1,685,392
(2,809,366) (1,123,974)

(63,175)

(137,818)

111,479
4,465,736
(10,710)

(24,146) 4,430,880
(430,500)
1,239,573

11,154 820,227
19,478
(1,004,870)

(882,445) (1,867,837)

S 3,628,434



City of Mebane, North Carolina
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Annual Budget to Actual

General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 Exhibit 5

Variance with
Final Budget -

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues
Property taxes................. ... $11,036,912 S 11,036,912 S 11,339,347 S 302,435
Other taxes and licenses.............. 1,000 1,000 955 (45)
Unrestricted intergovernmental..........ccceecvvveceeeceennnns 4,849,943 5,120,543 6,101,360 980,817
Restricted intergovernmental...... 886,000 886,000 1,154,666 268,666

Permits and feeS.....ccccuuueeeeeiiii e 780,307 881,798 1,338,035 456,237
SalES AN SEIVICES....cceieiecrrrrereiee et e e e eeeeaareeeees 570,450 570,450 616,526 46,076
INVeStMENT €arNINGS.......vviiiiiiie et 20,000 20,000 52,436 32,436
MiISCEIIANEOUS. ....eovveeciieecieeeteectee ettt et sre e s 107,600 147,600 251,884 104,284
TOtal FEVENUES.....ceuueiiiireiiiteeeenreeneeeerenneeeeennseesesneessseennenns 18,252,212 18,664,303 20,855,209 2,190,906
Expenditures
Current:
General BOVEIMMENT......vecvieeeeeee e e eee e ee e sae e 3,078,709 3,180,732 2,564,263 616,469
Public safety..... 7,304,629 7,423,051 7,019,825 403,226
Public works..... 3,667,965 4,516,105 3,897,283 618,822
RECreation.....ceeecveeeeeeeeieeere e 1,756,665 2,730,062 2,132,340 597,722
Economic and physical development........cccccccvvevveenveeennnnn, 2,632,669 2,713,701 2,199,172 514,529
Debt Service:
[ A Ta Yo T o - | SR 1,406,526 1,406,526 1,239,573 166,953
Interest and other charges.. 293,137 293,137 211,159 81,978
Total expenditures.......ccceeiiiiiiiiiiennnenneeeiniiieeeinssinnsnseenes 20,140,300 22,263,314 19,263,615 2,999,699
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures............... (1,888,088) (3,599,011) 1,591,594 5,190,605
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
TraNSTEIS INueiiveecieecee e e - - - -
TIANSTEIS OUL.vrreveeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeseeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeseeeseeeeenns (1,874,700)  (2,087,700)  (1,144,592) 943,108
Long-term debt obligations issued........c..ccccvvevveevveecirreennenn, 1,939,070 1,939,070 430,500 (1,508,570)
Fund balance appropriated........cccccceeeirecirecineceee e 1,823,718 3,747,641 - (3,747,641)
Total other financing sources and uses 1,888,088 3,599,011 (714,092) (4,313,103)
Net change in fund balances S - S - 877,502 $ 877,502
Fund balances - beginning 14,842,317
Fund balances - ending $ 15,719,819

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Statement of Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2021 Exhibit 6
Water and
Sewer Fund
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and Cash EQUIVAIENTS..........uiiiiiie et e e et e e e e et r e e e e e e e eabbaeeeeeeesn e nnraaeeaeean S 7,511,270
Accounts receivable (Net) - DIE.......cccuuir e e e e saee s 657,559
Accounts receivable (nNet) - UNDIlled............oooiiir e e e e 320,655
(018 T N E= o= AVZ L o] [=T PP RR 6,419
Due from other governments -
YT [ o I =T o LU -
STy i ot =T [ or- 1] 1SR 3,136,703
o) = oW T =Y o = Ty £ PSPPI 11,632,606
Non-current assets:
NET PENSION @SSEE..eeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii et e e e e e s e s e s e s e st a e bebebeeee e nanannnrareee -
Capital assets:
Land and other NON-depreciable aSSEtS........cciiiiiiieeceiiie e e e e e e srae e e s rre e e eenens 1,122,119
Other capital assets, net of dePreCiation.........ccccveiciiieeciie e e e sare e e eans 53,865,126
o) 1ot [ 11 = | I [T 4TSRS 54,987,245
Total non-current assets 54,987,245
B ) £ LI T <1 £ 66,619,851
Deferred outflows Of re@SOUICES.......cceeeeciiiiiiecccirrec e e e s reenaese e s eeenasssssesennnssnssssennnssssessennnnns 971,957
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.......uiiuiie i e 323,697
Accrued interest payable 36,135
[ TU TR o X o o =T ol 1] o o £ SR -
Due to other governments..................... 262,325
Payable from restricted assets 671,341
CoMPENSALEA ADSENCES. ... ..eiiiiiee et e e et e e e e e st e e e e e e sesaaaaeeeeeesenbbaseaaesaeeeennnnees 66,299
(o] gT2 f=T g g le =] o Al ol U] =Y oY TP 767,542
B o1 = el U £ 0 o =] o 11 L =N 2,127,339
Noncurrent liabilities:
CoMPENSALEA ADSENCES.......eiiiiiee e e e e et e e e e e st e e e e e e sesaataeeeeeesaabbareaasseeeeenannees 12,690
N =T oY= a Ty T T I 1 =1 o111 2SS 542,215
Total OPEB liability 1,494,607
LONE-term debt - NONCUITENT.....eeiiii ittt e e e et e e e e et ae e e e e e eearbaeeaeeesntbareeeeeennneens 5,957,950
Total NONCUITENT [HADIIITIES.c.cciviiiieeiieiei bbb e e e e eeaasrarabeeneees 8,007,462
e & 1B LT o1 1 =S 10,134,801
Deferred infloWs Of F@SOUICES.........cciiieeeeiiiiiieiccirrreeeee s rreenneeesseennsssesseeennnsssssesennnsssssssennnnsnsanen: 94,556
Net Position
Net investment iN CaPItal @SSELS......uuiiiii it e e e e e e e e e s earba e e e e e e e e esnrraeeas 48,261,754
Restricted for future system development 2,465,362
(0T =Ty 4y ot (=Y 6,635,335

LI LI T e T XY 1T TN

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Mebane, North Carolina

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 Exhibit 7
Water and

Operating Revenues

(0 T = LT oY =T oV ol TSP
W ater @N0 SEWET TAPS..uuiiiiieieiiiiieeeeeeeittre e e e eesctt e e e e e e eeetbteeeeeesaastereeeesesnsteseaaeseaassraeeaaanan
(070] Y Y=o u o] o I8 =TT SRS
Y T Yo=Y 1= T T T P

Total Operating reVeNUES.........cuueiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnreeressssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnnnnseenes

Operating Expenses

Administration, meters and billiNg.........cccuveiiir e
O 1] YA 0 0 1T =T 0 = L DS
[ o Fq T =T=T 1oV -SSP
Water resource reCoVery facility......cocciveeeiciie e
(oY o Bro =Y oF: [ g 1T o | -1 SRR
(D1 o] g =TolF- | o] o PP

Total OPErating EXPENSES.....ccvvetiiiiirrnnriiisssrntiiesssnnessssssssesssssssnsessssssnsessssssnsassssssnsasssssns

Operating iNCoME (10SS)..ccciiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeriiiiriiseiiieesiieiesesssseeeessssssnnsssssssssssssssssssssssnns

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

INterest and iINVESTMENT FEVENUE.........ccoiecirreieeeeectiireee e eesirree e e e eeetareeeeeeesabaaeeeeeeennnreeeeas

[N =] R =) ] o 1= Y= TSP PP PPPPPPPPPPPPPIRE
AMOrtization Of DONAS.......coociiiiiiie e ere e e seae e e seaeeeas

Total nonoperating revenues (EXPENSES)......cccceeereerreeereeesraneeseessneessesssseessssssnsesssssanens

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers..........ccceveeeiiiiiciie e,

(07 o 1 | I oTo T 014 | o T £ (o o -SSR
LT (=] £ [ TR
RE LI (=] £ 0 1V SRR

Change iN NEt POSITION.....cciii i e e e e e e e sar e e e e e e s eaaareeaeaeaan
Total net Position - DEGINNING.......c..uuiiiiie e e e e

Total net Position - @NAING.......cceeeeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiirrrrerereeeeessssssssssssssssssssssssssnnnns

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Sewer Fund

S 6,839,089
37,002
1,682,603
594,037

9,152,731

900,260
2,632,207
260,000
2,151,072

1,626,168
7,569,707

1,583,024

28,073
(97,543)
(87,254)

(156,724)

1,426,300
2,890,267

4,316,567
53,045,884

$ 57,362,451



City of Mebane, North Carolina
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 Exhibit 8

Water and
Sewer Fund
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash receiVed frOM CUSTOMBIS. .....ciiiiiieie e eeeeeeee e s s e b e b e babbaaaeeseeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseessesessbensrnrnns S 8,409,794
Cash paid fOr G00US ANA SEIVICES. ......uuiiiiuiieeeciiee ettt e ettt ee e ettt e e et e e eetteeeetaeeeeabeseeesreseeeenneas (3,518,465)
Cash paid to or on behalf of employees for SErVICeS.......cuiiiiiieieiiie e (2,407,805)
CUSLOMEr dEPOSITS FECEIVEM. ... .uuiiiee ittt ee e e e et e e e e e e st be e e e e e eesaaraeeeeeeeessessaaaeaaeeanns 160,140
(OIES o] g [T e [T oo L& =] U1 =T RS (91,680)
Other OPEIatiNg MEVENUES. ....cccvtiiieeitee ettt ettt stte e steestte st esbeesbe e e sbtesbeesabeesbeesabeesabeesbteenseseensnesseens 594,037
Total cash provided (used) by operating activities.........ccccvvvcmrreriiiiiiiciicsirrnneeeeeneennncccssssnnneeeeeeees 3,146,021

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities

Other NON-0PEIAtiNG FEVENUES.....cciiiiieee ettt e e ettt e e e eeet e e e e e e e sbabe e e e e eesabaeseeeeeesntaeaeaaeaeeenanses -
Transfers t0 Other fUNGS........ii i et e s e e s ate e e sneeas -
Total cash provided (used) by non-capital financing activities..........cccceeeiriiiiiiiiiniiiieeeeeeeeeennnnnnnnn. -

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities

Acquisition and construction of capital @SSELS......cuiiiiuviieiiie e s (837,089)
Principal paid on bonds and notes payable............cccuiiiiiii e (758,542)
Interest paid on bonds and NOTES PAYADIE.......cccuiiiiiie e (91,182)
Total cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities..........ccccceeeviririiiiniiceeennnnnnee. (1,686,813)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

[NV 7Ty g (=T L AT [ole] 1 o [T PO PRRRR 28,073
Total cash provided (used) by investing actiVities......cccccceeeeriiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinieeeeeeeeeeeeeeesse 28,073
Net increase (decrease) in cash and eqUIVAIENTS...........ooiciiiiiiiie ettt e eeaens 1,487,281
BalanCe, DEGINNING...... ..t e e e e ettt e e e e e e e et e r e e e e e e s astaeeeeeeaeeeenaneteeeaaeann 9,160,692
Balance, ENAING......ceuuueeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiitieeeeeesesnesesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnnnnsssssssssssssssssssssns S 10,647,973

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Mebane, North Carolina

Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 Exhibit 8

Water and
Sewer Fund
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:

(0] o1 =T u T oY= T aTolo T o TN { 1o T3] ISR S 1,583,024
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:
(DT=T o = ToI -1 (o] o DO P PP T PP P PP PPPPPPPPPPPPP 1,626,168
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accoUNts reCceiVabIe.........cuiiiiier i (133,267)
Increase (decrease) in allowance for doubtful accounts (15,633)
(Increase) decrease in PrePaid iLEMS. ....c..uii e ree e e e e et e e e e ere e e abe e e eneeeeesannes -
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows of resources for pensions.........cccccocveeeecieeecciiee e, (279,126)
Increase (decrease) accounts PAYabIe........cceiieiiiii e e (291,766)
Increase (decrease) salaries Payable..........ooueieieiiii e et et 32,257
Increase (decrease) acCrued VaCatioN.........cccvieeiiiieeeiiee e stee e et e s eee e e st e e eeateeesnaeeeesneseeeenes 2,913
Increase (decrease) in net Pension ability........cccoceerciieiiiiie e e 137,128
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows of resources for PensioNs.........ccceccvveeeceeeccieececeee e, -
Increase (decrease) in OPEB liability........cccueiiiiiiiiieiiii et 433,037
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows of resources for OPEB...........cccvvuverierieeniieenieenie e (17,174)
Increase (decrease) in CUSTOMEr AEPOSITS. ....uiiiuriirieiiiiirie ettt 68,460
o) &= 1 I 1o J 10T 5 =Y o £ PSR PURN 1,562,997
Net cash provided by operating activities........cccuuueeeueeeiririiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeessesesssssssnsennn S 3,146,021
Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities:
Noncash capital contributions of capital @SSetS........uiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e S 2,890,267
Unrealized gain/l0Ss 0N INVESTMENTS......ccuiiiriiiiieeree et eetee ettt sre et e eeveeeeeesteeeeteeeabeesaneentes e esneenes S -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The accounting policies of the City of Mebane conform to generally accepted accounting principles as
applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies:

A. Reporting Entity

The City of Mebane is a municipal corporation which is governed by an elected mayor and a five-member
council. The City is located in the eastern part of Alamance County and the western part of Orange
County. Generally accepted accounting principles require that these financial statements present the
primary government (i.e. the City) and any component units, legally separate organization for which the
elected officials of the City are financially accountable. The City of Mebane has no component units as
defined above.

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities display
information about the primary government. These statements include the financial activities of the
overall government. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type
activities of the City. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental
revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part
by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for
the different business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City’s governmental
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and,
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations that have been
made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees
and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as
general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the City’s funds.
Separate statements for each fund category — governmental and proprietary — are presented. The
emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in
a separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as
nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies, result from
non-exchange transactions. Other non-operating revenues are ancillary activities such as investments
earnings.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. The General Fund accounts for
all financial resources except those that are required to be accounted for in another fund. The primary
revenue sources are ad valorem taxes, federal and State grants, and various other taxes and licenses.
The primary expenditures are for public safety, street maintenance and construction, and general
government.

City Park Project Capital Project Fund: This fund is used to account for the purchase of land and
construction costs for a new athletics and recreation city park.

The City reports the following non-major governmental funds:
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CDBG- Mebane Mills Loft — Special Revenue Fund: This fund is used to account for all block grant funds
expended for the renovation of the old Dixie Yarns Building into subsidized housing.

Capital Project Fund: This fund is used to account for various General Fund capital expenditures that are
expected to be completed within one year.

Capital Project Fund — Cates Farm Park: This fund is used to account for the construction of a new city
park.

The City reports the following major enterprise fund:

Water and Sewer Fund: This fund is used to account for the City’s water and sewer operations. The
Water and Sewer Capital Project Funds and the System Development Capital Reserve Fund have been
consolidated into the Water and Sewer Fund for financial reporting purposes. The budgetary comparison
for the Water and Sewer Capital Projects Fund has been included in the supplemental information.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the City are maintained during the year
using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements: The government-wide and proprietary
fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are
incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the
City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include
property taxes, grants, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in
the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the
fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the City enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The City also recognizes as
operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to
the water and sewer system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method,
revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related
fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and
judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have
matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing
sources.

The City considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-end, except for
property taxes. Ad valorem taxes receivable are not accrued as revenue because the amount is not
susceptible to accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable for property other than motor vehicles are materially
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past due and are not considered to be an available resource to finance the operations of the current
year. Also, as of September 1, 2013, State law altered the procedures for the assessment and collection
of property taxes on registered motor vehicles in North Carolina. Effective with this change in the law,
the State of North Carolina is responsible for billing and collecting the property taxes on registered motor
vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts, including the City of Mebane. Property
taxes are due when vehicles are registered. The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal year in which
they are received. Uncollected taxes that were billed in periods prior to September 1, 2013 and for
limited registration plates are shown as a receivable in these financial statements and are offset by
deferred inflows of resources.

Sales taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues, such as utilities franchise tax, collected and held by
the State at year-end on behalf of the City are recognized as revenue. Sales taxes are considered a
shared revenue for the City of Mebane because the tax is levied by Alamance County and Orange County
and then remitted to and distributed by the State. Most intergovernmental revenues and sales and
services are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in cash.
All taxes, including those dedicated for specific purposes are reported as general revenues rather than
program revenues. Under the terms of grant agreements, the City funds certain programs by a
combination of specific cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus,
when program expenses are incurred, there is both restricted and unrestricted net position available to
finance the program. It is the City’s policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such
programs, followed by categorical block grants, and then by general revenues.

D. Budgetary Data

The City’s budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statutes. An annual budget is
adopted for the General Fund and the Enterprise Fund. All annual appropriations lapse at the fiscal year-
end. Project ordinances are adopted for the Special Revenue Funds and the Capital Projects Funds and
the Enterprise Capital Projects Funds. The enterprise fund projects are consolidated with the operating
funds for reporting purposes. All budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the departmental level for all annually budgeted
funds and at the project level for the multi-year funds. Amendments are required for any revisions that
alter total expenditures of any fund or that change functional appropriations. All amendments must be
approved by the governing board. During the year, several amendments to the original budget were
necessary. The budget ordinance must be adopted by July 1 of the fiscal year or the governing board
must adopt an interim budget that covers that time until the annual ordinance can be adopted.

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity

Deposits and Investments

All deposits of the City are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured as required by
State law [G.S. 159-31]. The City may designate, as an official depository, any bank or savings association
whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the City may establish time deposit accounts
such as NOW and SuperNOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit.

State law [G.S. 159-30(c)] authorizes the City to invest in obligations of the United States or obligations
fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of the State of North
Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public authority; obligations of
certain non-guaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers’
acceptances and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT). The City’s investments are
reported at fair value. The NCCMT Government Portfolio, a SEC-registered (2a-7) money market mutual
fund, is measured at fair value. Because the NCCMT Government has a weighted average maturity of
less than 90 days, it is presented as an investment with a maturity of less than 6 months.

Page 26



City of Mebane, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

In accordance with State law, the City has invested in securities which are callable and which provide for
periodic interest rate increases in specific increments until maturity. These investments are reported at
fair value as determined by quoted market prices.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to maximize
investment income. Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand deposits and are
considered cash and cash equivalents.

Restricted Assets

Customer deposits held by the City before any services are supplied are restricted for which the deposit
was collected. Contractor reserves and bond deposits received and held are classified as restricted cash.
Grant proceeds received in advance for specified purposes are classified as restricted cash. Unexpended
loan principal and interest receipts in the CDBG- Mebane Mills Loft Special Revenue Fund is classified as
restricted assets because its use is restricted for future economic development per an agreement with
the North Carolina Housing Finance Agency. Powell Bill funds are also classified as restricted cash, if
applicable, because they can be expended only for the purposes of maintaining, repairing, constructing,
reconstructing or widening of local streets per G.S. 136-41.1 through 136-41.4. Unexpended utility
system development fees are restricted for use in accordance with G.S 162A-211.

City of Mebane Restricted Cash
Governmental Activities
General Fund

Contractor reserves and bond depositS......cveeceereececiere e S 264,480
Asset forfeiture funds........ 139,419
Unspent loan proceeds 273,590
Corrections UNUSE fUNAS........ceceereiericeeceeeere ettt e 30
Stormwater reserves 759,177

CDBG- Mebane Mills Loft Capital Project Fund
ECONOMIC DEVEIOPMENT. ..o ee s eessees s es st ss s s se s sesesesesens 127,459

Total governmental activities 1,564,155
Business-type Activities
Water and Sewer Fund
Customer deposits 671,341
Unexpended system develOpmENt fEES.........o.wieeeeirreveseneeseseesesseesessssssseessssesnens 2,465,362
Total BUSTNESS-TYPE @CHIVILIES ...vuveeereeeceeeeceri et ssssse st s s snssenees 3,136,703

Total Restricted Cash

.S 4,700,858

Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

In accordance with State law [G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(a)], the City levies ad valorem taxes on
property other than motor vehicles on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due on
September 1 (lien date), however, interest does not accrue until the following January 6th. These taxes
are based on the assessed values as of January 1, 2020. As allowed by State law, the City has established
a schedule of discounts that apply to taxes that are paid prior to the due date. In the City’s General
Fund, ad valorem tax revenues are reported net of such discounts.

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an allowance for
doubtful accounts. This amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were
written off in prior years.
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Inventory and Prepaid Items
The inventories of the City’s enterprise fund consist of expendable materials and supplies that are
expensed when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements and expensed as the items are
used.

Capital Assets
Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than a

certain cost and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Minimum capitalization costs are $5,000
for all items. Donated capital assets received prior to June 15, 2015 are recorded at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Donated capital assets received after June 15, 2015 are recorded at
acquisition value. All other purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated
historical cost. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Property, plant and equipment in the proprietary fund of the City are recorded at original cost at the
time of acquisition. The City capitalizes those interest costs which are incurred during the construction
period of any major capital projects. Property, plant, and equipment donated to the proprietary fund
type operations are recorded at the estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Asset Class Estimated Useful Lives

Furniture and equipment
COMPULET EQUIPMENT .ttt ettt ettt sttt e st e st e sab e e sateesbeeesatesbeesbeesareas

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Outflows of
Resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be
recognized as an expense or expenditure until then. The City has one item that meets this criterion,
pension deferrals for the 2021 fiscal year. In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will
sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future
period and so will not be recognized as revenue until then. The City has several items that meet the
criterion for this category — prepaid taxes, property taxes receivable, and pension deferrals.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position.
Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the
bonds using the straight-line method that approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premiums or discount.

In fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well
as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
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financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Compensated Absences

The vacation policy of the City provides for the accumulation of up to 240 hours of earned vacation leave
with such leave being fully vested when earned. For the City’s government-wide and proprietary funds,
an expense and a liability for compensated absences and the salary-related payments are recorded as
the leave is earned. The City has assumed a first-in, first-out method of using accumulated compensated
time. The portion of that time that is estimated to be used in the next fiscal year has been designated as
a current liability in the government-wide financial statements.

The City’s sick leave policy provides for an unlimited accumulation of earned sick leave. Sick leave does
not vest. Since the City does not have any obligation for the accumulated sick leave until it is actually
taken, no accrual for sick leave has been made.

Net Position/Fund Balances
Net Position

Net position in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as net
investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net position represents constraints
on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments or imposed by law through state statute.

Fund Balance

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of classifications designed to
disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance can be spent.

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balance — This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they
are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Prepaid Assets — portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it represents the
year-end balance of prepaid assets, which are not spendable resources.

Restricted Fund Balance — This classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes
externally imposed by creditors or imposed by law.

Restricted for Stabilization by State Statute — portion of fund balance that is restricted by State
Statue [G.S. 159-8(a)]. North Carolina G.S. 159-8 prohibits units of government from budgeting or
spending a portion of their fund balance. This is one of several statutes enacted by the North
Carolina State Legislature in the 1930’s that were designed to improve and maintain the fiscal health
of local government units. Restricted by State statute (RSS), is calculated at the end of each fiscal
year for all annually budgeted funds. The calculation in G.S. 159-8(a) provides a formula for
determining what portion of fund balance is available for appropriation. The amount of fund balance
not available for appropriation is what is known as “restricted by State statute”. Appropriated fund
balance in any fund shall not exceed the sum of cash and investments minus the sum of liabilities,
encumbrances, and deferred revenues arising from cash receipts, as those figures stand at the close
of the fiscal year next preceding the budget. Per GASB guidance, RSS is considered a resource upon
which a restriction is “imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.” RSS
is reduced by inventories and prepaids as they are classified as nonspendable. Outstanding
Encumbrances are included within RSS. RSS is included as a component of Restricted Net position
and Restricted fund balance on the face of the balance sheet.
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Restricted for Economic Development — portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source
for future community development related activities. This amount represents the balance of the
total unexpended funds from the amortized repayments of the CDBG monies loaned to Mebane
Mills Lofts, LLC.

Assigned Fund Balance — portion of fund balance that the City intends to use for specific purposes.

Subsequent year’s expenditures — portion of fund balance that is appropriated in the next year’s
budget that is not already classified in restricted or committed. The governing body approves the
appropriation; however, the budget ordinance authorizes the budget officer to modify the
appropriations by resource or appropriation within funds without limitation. Any transfer between
funds must be approved by the governing board in the budget ordinance as amended.

Unassigned Fund Balance — portion of fund balance that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned
to specific purposes or other funds. Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General
Fund. Other governmental funds cannot report positive unassigned fund balance but can report negative
unassigned fund balance if expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceeded the amounts restricted,
committed, or assigned to those purposes.

The City of Mebane has a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for programs with multiple
revenue sources. The Finance Officer will use resources in the following hierarchy: bond proceeds,
federal funds, State funds, local non-city funds, city funds. For purposes of fund balance classification,
expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first, followed in-order by committed fund
balance, assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned fund balance. The Finance Officer has the authority
to deviate from this policy if it is in the best interest of the City.

The City of Mebane has adopted a fund balance policy that instructs management to conduct the
business of the City in such a manner that unrestricted fund balance is 50% of annual budgeted
expenditures and transfers. Any portion in excess of 50% may be set aside for future capital
improvements or to other purposes as directed by the City Council.

Defined Benefit Cost-Sharing Plans

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of
the Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS) and additions to/deductions from
LGERS’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by LGERS.
For this purpose, plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are
due. The City of Mebane’s employer contributions are recognized when due and the City of Mebane has
a legal requirement to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of LGERS. Investments are reported at fair value.

For purposes of measuring the net pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
Firefighters’ and Rescue Squad Workers’ Pension Fund (FRSWPF) and additions to/deductions from
FRSWPF’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
FRSWPF. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair
value.

F. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.
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2. Detail Notes on All Funds
A. Assets

Deposits
All the deposits of the City are either insured or collateralized by using one of two methods. Under the

Dedicated Method, all deposits that exceed the federal depository insurance coverage level are
collateralized with securities held by the City’s agent in the City’s name. Under the Pooling Method,
which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the State
Treasurer’s agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary
capacity for the City, these deposits are considered to be held by the City’s agent in the City’s name. The
amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for non-interest bearing
deposits and the actual current balance for interest-bearing deposits. Depositories using the Pooling
Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering uninsured
deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the City or the escrow agent.
Because of the inability to measure the exact amounts of collateral pledged for the City under the
Pooling Method, the potential exists for under-collateralization, and this risk may increase in periods of
high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial
stability for each depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method. The City has
no formal policy regarding custodial credit risk for deposits, but relies on the State Treasurer to enforce
standards of minimum capitalization for all pooling method financial institutions and to monitor them for
compliance. The City complies with the provisions of G.S. 159-31 when designating official depositories
and verifying that deposits are properly secured.

At June 30, 2021 the City’s deposits had a carrying amount of $24,472,680, and a bank balance of
$25,377,489. Of the bank balance, $760,607 was covered by federal depository insurance and the
remainder was covered by collateral held under the pooling method. Petty cash on hand at June 30,
2021 was $400.

Investments
At June 30, 2021, the City’s investment balances were as follows:

Valuation
Measurement Book Value at
Investments by Type Method 6/30/2021 Maturity Rating
NC Capital Management Trust
- Government Portfolio........cccueueunee.. Fair Value Level 1 § 2,116,419 N/A AAAM
Total S 2,116,419

All investments are measured using the market approach: using prices and other relevant information
generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or a group of assets.

Level of fair value hierarchy: Level 1 debt securities are valued using directly observable, quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets. Level 2 debt securities are valued using a matrix
pricing technique. Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on the securities’ benchmark quoted
prices.

Interest Rate Risk. The City has no formal investment policy regarding interest rate risk. As a means of
limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the City’s internal investment
policy limits at least half of the City’s investment portfolio to maturities of less than 12 months. Also, the
City’s internal management policy requires purchases of securities to be laddered with staggered
maturity dates and limits all securities to a final maturity of no more than two years.
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Credit Risk. The City has no formal policy regarding credit risk, but has internal management procedures
that limits the City’s investments to the provisions of G.S. 159-30 and restricts the purchase of securities
to the highest possible ratings whenever particular types of securities are rated. State law limits
investments in commercial paper to the top rating issued by nationally recognized statistical rating
organizations (NRSROs). As of June 30, 2021, the City did not hold any investments in commercial paper.
The City’s investment in the NC Capital Management Trust Government Portfolio carried a credit rating
of AAAm by Standard & Poor’s and AAAm-mf by Moody’s Investors Service as of June 30, 2021.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The City’s Council places no limit on the amount that the City may invest in
any one issuer. For the year ended June 30, 2021, there were no investments in commercial paper that
totaled more than 5 percent of the City’s investments.

Receivables — Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
The amount of taxes receivable presented in the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Net Position
includes penalties levied and outstanding in the amount of $13,257.

The amounts presented in the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Net Position for the year ended June
30, 2021 are net of the following allowances for doubtful accounts:

Funds

General Fund:
TaAXES RECEIVADI ..ttt sttt se e ae e essenstens S 11,815
ACCOUNES RECEIVADI ...ttt e e et e s e e e e aesaneenen -
o] = ] H OO UROSRRP 11,815

ENTErPriS@ FUNG. .ottt sttt ettt sttt ettt e b e 174,920
o) = TS S 186,735
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Capital Assets
Primary Government

Capital asset activity for the Primary Government for the year ended June 30, 2021, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Governmental activities: Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Capital assets not being depreciated:
LANG it ene s S 6,980,512 S 528547 $ - S 7,509,059
Artwork and collections 68,360 - - 68,360
Construction in Progress......cceveeeieeneecuennne 53,149 238,179 - 291,328
Total capital assets not being depreciated... 7,102,021 766,726 - 7,868,747
Capital assets being depreciated:
BUITAINGS .ot s 16,869,281 41,151 - 16,910,432
Other improvements.........cccoeveveeeceneecreeseenennes 11,292,645 274,689 - 11,567,334
EQUIPMENT...cuiiiieieceeee ettt s 3,424,357 69,218 128,750 3,364,825
Computer equipmMENt......ccceceverenienienenenerennenn 565,775 52,989 - 618,764
Vehicles and motorized equipment................. 8,803,884 372,855 432,033 8,744,706
INFrastrUCTUre.. .o 25,245,881 4,583,126 - 29,829,007
Total capital assets being depreciated.......... 66,201,823 5,394,028 560,783 71,035,068
Less accumulated depreciation for:
BUITAINGS cueveeieieieireee et s 4,034,705 360,448 - 4,395,153
Other improvements.......cccceveveeerecereceeeereeenes 1,177,681 394,976 - 1,572,657
EQUIPMENT ..ottt s 1,649,183 302,565 101,931 1,849,817
Computer equipmeNnt........cccevevevenenenenenennen. 349,334 55,977 - 405,311
Vehicles and motorized equipment 5,849,257 1,055,829 386,051 6,519,035
INfrastruCtUre.. e 2,939,269 639,571 - 3,578,840
Total accumulated depreciation...................... 15,999,429 52,809,366 S 487,982 18,320,813
Total capital assets being depreciated, net... 50,202,394 52,714,255
Governmental activity capital assets, net........... $ 57,304,415 $60,583,002

Depreciation was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

General government S 125,611
L0 o 1o {1 4SS 1,060,791
PUDBIIC WOTKS ...ttt e e et e e e e e et b e e e e e e e e atnraeeeeeesennbaaeaeeeseens 1,083,048
[Tol LY 1 {0 o PO PP PORRRON 524,856
Economic & physical developmeENTt.......cciiiiiiiiiiiiicee et 15,060
o] =1 U PPPRN $2,809,366
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Business-type Activities

The capital assets of the Enterprise Fund for the year ended June 30, 2021, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Water and Sewer Fund: Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Capital assets not being depreciated:
S 520,198 S 46,636 S - S 566,834
357,724 416,433 218,872 555,285
877,922 463,069 218,872 1,122,119
Capital assets being depreciated:
Water SOUIMCES.....coccuieeiieeieeeceeeete et et ee e 13,937,610 - - 13,937,610
Lift stations, pumping stations and tanks......... 8,097,539 750,000 - 8,847,539
Water and sewer [ines.......cocoevveveevvenvenreneeinenneennan 39,418,647 3,217,126 750,000 41,885,773
Land improvements........cccoceveeeeeeeeneveneeresereereenenns 10,971 - - 10,971
Water Resource Recovery Facility......ccoeeverennene 9,136,888 355,023 - 9,491,911
Machinery and equipment........ccocevvceverenencrenn. 1,876,102 75,789 35,710 1,916,181
VENICIES ..ottt e 500,204 - 14,959 485,245
Total capital assets being depreciated.............. 72,977,961 4,397,938 800,669 76,575,230
Less accumulated depreciation for:
WaAter SOUICES....ccuevvererriiererieresteesteeeresaeessessesaesens 3,996,089 285,942 - 4,282,031
Lift stations, pumping stations and tanks......... 1,879,661 164,746 - 2,044,407
Water and sewer [iNeS.....coveeeeeeeeeneeceeeieeeeeene 10,318,803 834,276 16,250 11,136,829
Land improvements.......cccoevveeveneieneeneneneeesenns 9,043 798 - 9,841
Water Resource Recovery Facility.......ccceevvreennene 3,647,356 203,985 - 3,851,341
Machinery and equipment 826,915 124,389 19,463 931,841
VENICIES ..ottt e 456,741 12,032 14,959 453,814
Total accumulated depreciation........ccccecevveenee 21,134,608 $1,626,168 S 50,672 22,710,104
Total capital assets being depreciated, net....... 51,843,353 53,865,126
Business-type activity capital assets, net................ $52,721,275 $54,987,245

During the year ended June 30, 2021, several capital assets were reclassified between categories. These
reclassifications were presented in the “decreases” columns of the schedules above.
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Construction Commitments

The government has active construction projects as of June 30, 2021. At year end, the government’s
commitments with contractors are as follows:

Project Spent to Date Remaining Contract
Install New Sidewalk 300 BLK W Jackson St & Holt St............ S 59,582 $ 29,213
20-21 Street Repair Contract......cccceceveeveevieneenenenieseseseseeseenen 992,454 28,445
Public Works & Utility Department Office Additions ............ - 35,000
Youth/Walker Restroom Renovations......c..ceeeeveveveevennns - 11,875
Jones Road Sewer Survey & Preliminary Design.......cccceuneen. - 49,500
AWCK Evaluation at Lake Michael Trails.....ccocooevericveveenennenns - 5,100
Utility Relocations for Intersection Widening........ccoceceeveuenene - 19,810
Engineering and Consulting for N First St Sidewalk................ 2,747 5,102
GKN Force Main Survey and Preliminary Design........ccccoeuuu... - 49,500
Evidence Room Dividing Wall Installation.......cccceceecenuennnen. 4,695 4,695
Construction Contract for N. First Sidewalk Improv............... - 131,800
Inspections/Planning Parking Lot Maintenance..........cceeu.... - 31,284
Inspections/Planning Building Addition.... - 228,247
Havensonte Oversizing Reimbursement.........cccecvecvevneecnnnn. - 120,000
TOTAL ettt S 1,059,478 S 749,571

B. Liabilities

Pension Plan and Postemployment Obligations
Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System

Plan Description. The City of Mebane is a participating employer in the statewide Local Governmental
Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by the State of North Carolina. LGERS membership is comprised of general employees and
local law enforcement officers (LEOs) of participating local governmental entities. Article 3 of G.S.
Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina
General Assembly. Management of the plan is vested in the LGERS Board of Trustees, which consists of
13 members — nine appointed by the Governor, one appointed by the State Senate, one appointed by
the State House of Representatives, and the State Treasurer and State Superintendent, who serve as ex-
officio members. The Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System is included in the Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State’s ACFR includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for LGERS. That report may be obtained
by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-
1410, by calling (919) 981-5454, or at Www.0SC.NC.goVv.

Benefits Provided. LGERS provides retirement and survivor benefits. Retirement benefits are determined
as 1.85% of the member’s average final compensation times the member’s years of creditable service. A
member’s average final compensation is calculated as the average of a member’s four highest
consecutive years of compensation. Plan members are eligible to retire with full retirement benefits at
age 65 with five years of creditable service, at age 60 with 25 years of creditable service, or at any age
with 30 years of creditable service. Plan members are eligible to retire with partial retirement benefits at
age 50 with 20 years of creditable service or at age 60 with five years of creditable service (age 55 for
firefighters). Survivor benefits are available to eligible beneficiaries of members who die while in active
service or within 180 days of their last day of service and who have either completed 20 years of
creditable service regardless of age (15 years of creditable service for firefighters and rescue squad
members who are killed in the line of duty) or have completed five years of service and have reached age
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60. Eligible beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly Survivor’s Alternate Benefit for life or a return of
the member’s contributions. The plan does not provide for automatic post-retirement benefit increases.
Increases are contingent upon actuarial gains of the plan.

LGERS plan members who are LEOs are eligible to retire with full retirement benefits at age 55 with five
years of creditable service as an officer, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service. LEO plan
members are eligible to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 15 years of creditable
service as an officer. Survivor benefits are available to eligible beneficiaries of LEO members who die
while in active service or within 180 days of their last day of service and who also have either completed
20 years of creditable service regardless of age, or have completed 15 years of service as a LEO and have
reached age 50, or have completed five years of creditable service as a LEO and have reached age 55, or
have completed 15 years of creditable service as a LEO if killed in the line of duty. Eligible beneficiaries
may elect to receive a monthly Survivor’'s Alternate Benefit for life or a return of the member’s
contributions.

Contributions. Contribution provisions are established by General Statute 128-30 and may be amended
only by the North Carolina General Assembly. City of Mebane employees are required to contribute 6%
of their compensation. Employer contributions are actuarially determined and set annually by the LGERS
Board of Trustees. The City of Mebane’s contractually required contribution rate for the year ended June
30, 2021, was 9.00% of compensation for law enforcement officers and 8.25% for general employees and
firefighters, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee contributions, is
expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year. Contributions to the
pension plan from the City of Mebane were $1,658,481 for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Refunds of Contributions — City employees who have terminated service as a contributing member of
LGERS, may file an application for a refund of their contributions. By state law, refunds to members with
at least five years of service include 4% interest. State law requires a 60 day waiting period after service
termination before the refund may be paid. The acceptance of a refund payment cancels the individual’s
right to employer contributions or any other benefit provided by LGERS.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2021, the City reported a liability of $4,015,459 for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020. The total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2019. The
total pension liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2020 utilizing update
procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions. The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was
based on a projection of the City’s long-term share of future payroll covered by the pension plan, relative
to the projected future payroll covered by the pension plan of all participating LGERS employers,
actuarially determined. At June 30, 2020, the City’s proportion was 0.112%, which was an increase of
0.001% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2019.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the City recognized pension expense of $1,048,868. At June 30, 2021,
the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
from the following sources:
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Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience........ccocecereruenene S 507,082 S -
Changes of assumptions 298,829 -

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
Pension plan iNVeStMENTS......ccccv e 565,069 -

Changes in proportion and differences between City

contributions and proportionate share of contributions............... 859,896 -
City contribution subsequent to the measurement date...................... 1,658,481 -
Lo OO S 3,889,357 §$ -

$1,658,481 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a decrease of the net pension
liability in the year ended June 30, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

202 e e e e eae e e ba e e aa e e rae e raeeeseeenareeenaeeaeeennes S 800,784
2023ttt et e st et ese st et ese e s tene e enetatn 803,292
2024 et e e s e e b ae e ae e et e e sabeeetaeetaeetes 459,384
202D e e et e ea e e e e e e aae e a e e et e e e areeeraeenaeeenes 167,230
0 TR -
THEMEATEEN .t -

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the

measurement:

Inflation 3.0 percent

Salary increases 3.50 to 8.10 percent, including inflation and
productivity factor

Investment rate of return 7.00 percent, net of pension plan investment

expense, including inflation

The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group (i.e. general, law
enforcement officer) and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy). The current mortality rates are based
on published tables and based on studies that cover significant portions of the U.S. population. The
healthy mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality improvements.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2014.

Future ad hoc COLA amounts are not considered to be substantively automatic and are therefore not
included in the measurement.

The projected long-term investment returns and inflation assumptions are developed through review of
current and historical capital markets data, sell-side investment research, consultant whitepapers, and
historical performance of investment strategies. Fixed income return projections reflect current yields
across the U.S. Treasury vyield curve and market expectations of forward yields projected and
interpolated for multiple tenors and over multiple year horizons. Global public equity return projections
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are established through analysis of the equity risk premium and the fixed income return projections.
Other asset categories and strategies’ return projections reflect the foregoing and historical data
analysis. These projections are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting
the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class as of June 30, 2020 are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Fixed Income 29.0% 1.4%
Global Equity 42.0% 5.3%
REAI ESTAE wuvevieeiieiireeee ettt 8.0% 4.3%
ALEINATIVES . euvviviiiiieeieieieeteeeeeeeeeeeee et e e e svraeasrerereeereaeeees 8.0% 8.9%
0Ty =Te [ TR 7.0% 6.0%
Inflation Protection 6.0% 4.0%

The information above is based on 30 year expectations developed with the consulting actuary for the
2019 asset, liability, and investment policy study for the North Carolina Retirement Systems, including
LGERS. The long-term nominal rates of return underlying the real rates of return are arithmetic
annualized figures. The real rates of return are calculated from nominal rates by multiplicatively
subtracting a long-term inflation assumption of 3.00%. All rates of return and inflation are annualized.

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be
made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily
required rates, actuarially determined. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of the current plan
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate.
The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.00 percent, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension asset or
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point
lower (6.00 percent) or one percentage point higher (8.00 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

(6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)
City’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability (aSSEt).....c..ccveveeerveeeenreeireeree e S 8,146,928 S 4,015,459 S 581,917

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position
is available in the separately issued Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the State of North
Carolina.

Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance

Plan Description. The City of Mebane administers a public employee retirement system (the Separation
Allowance), a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the
City’s qualified sworn law enforcement officers under the age of 62 who have completed at least 30
years of creditable service or have attained 55 years of age and have completed five or more years of
creditable service. The Separation Allowance is equal to 0.85 percent of the annual equivalent of the
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base rate of compensation most recently applicable to the officer for each year of creditable service. The
retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances that may be
authorized by the General Assembly. Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to establish
and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.

All full-time law enforcement officers of the City are covered by the Separation Allowance. At December
31, 2019, the valuation date, the Separation Allowance’s membership consisted of:

Retirees receiving beNEFitS ....cuiiiiiiiiiiiecce e
Terminated plan members entitled to but not receiving benefits ..........ccceeeeiiiiiiieeciieeens
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Basis of Accounting. The City has chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a pay as you go basis.
Pension expenditures are made from the General Fund, which is maintained on the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
terms of the plan.

The Separation Allowance has no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria which are outlined
in GASB Statement 73.

Actuarial Assumptions. The entry age actuarial cost method was used in the December 31, 2019
valuation. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using
the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.5 percent

Salary increases 3.25 to 7.75 percent, including inflation and
productivity factor

Discount rate 1.93 percent

The discount rate used is the S&P Municipal Bond 20 Year High Grade Rate Index as of December 31,
2019.

Mortality rates are based on the Pub-2010 amount-weighted tables with adjustments projected forward
generationally from the valuation date using MP-2019.

Contributions. The City is required by Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement
benefits and has chosen to fund the amounts necessary to cover the benefits earned on a pay as you go
basis through appropriations made in the General Fund operating budget. There were no contributions
made by employees. The City’s obligation to contribute to this Plan is established and may be amended
by the North Carolina General Assembly. Administration costs of the Separation Allowance are financed
through investment earnings. The City had no benefits come due for the reporting period.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2021, the City reported a total pension liability of $1,372,013. The total pension liability was
measured as of December 31, 2020 based on a December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation. The total pension
liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of December 31, 2020 utilizing update
procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions. For the year ended June 30, 2021, the City
recognized pension expense of $173,665.
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Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience........cccecevueennene S 131,979 S -
Changes of aSSUMPLIONS.....cccccuieieieeieee ettt 424,962 24,317
Benefit payments and administrative expenses made
subsequent to the measurement date........ccocevevvverreveincnecnereeene, - -
TOTAL ettt ettt et et e et neebans S 556,941 S 24,317

S0 was reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from benefit payments
made and administrative expenses incurred subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a
decrease of the total pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2022. Other amounts reported as
deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2022ttt et e et e et et ese et et eseae st enere e ntatas S 90,978
2023ttt et ettt ese s st esean st enere e nratas 90,978
202ttt ettt et e st et re e st enese e nranas 92,363
2025 ettt e re et e et et ese et eseae et enere e eraras 78,646
2026, eieeeeeereee ettt et ae s e ae ettt a e s et ese e st ene e e eranan 79,805
B LT 1 =) (R 99,854

S0 paid as benefits came due and SO of administrative expenses subsequent to the measurement date
are reported as deferred outflows of resources.

Sensitivity of the City’s total pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the
City’s total pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 1.93 percent, as well as what the City’s
total pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower
(0.93 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (2.93 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(0.93%) (1.93%) (2.93%)
Total pension [iability.....eeiiereeneereeeenn, S 1,520,276 S 1,372,013 S 1,238,123
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Schedule of Changes in Total Pension Liability
Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance

2021

Beginning BalanCe.... ettt nan S 802,190
Service costat end Of YEar......ccceueveereceeeeeeee e 56,536
Interest of total pension liability......ccoveveereieeicieeeeeeeene 26,151
Changes of benefit terms.......cccoveeerereers e -
Differences between expected and actual experience in the

measurement of the total pension liability.....cccoceoeevinvnennennnne. 46,055
Changes of assumptions or other inputs.......ccceevecevevenecenereenene. 441,081
Benefit PAYMENTS ..o -
Other CNANEES ..ottt sttt aens -
Ending balance of the total pension liability......c.ccovvrirrrricnnenee $ 1,372,013

The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy).
The current mortality rates are based on published tables and based on studies that cover significant
portions of the U.S. population. The healthy mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future
mortality improvements.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study from the period January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2014.

Firefighters’ Special Separation Allowance

Plan Description. The City of Mebane administers a public employee retirement system (the Separation
Allowance), a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the
City’s qualified firefighters under the age of 62 who have completed at least 30 years of creditable
service or have attained 60 years of age and have completed twenty-five or more years of creditable
service. The Separation Allowance is equal to 0.85 percent of the annual equivalent of the base rate of
compensation most recently applicable to the officer for each year of creditable service. The retirement
benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances that may be authorized by
the General Assembly. Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to establish and amend
benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.

All full-time firefighters of the City are covered by the Separation Allowance. At December 31, 2019 the
Separation Allowance’s membership consisted of:

Retirees receiving benefits ........ooui i
Terminated plan members entitled to but not receiving benefits..........ccocceeeiiiiiiiniiinicnnen.
ACHIVE Plan MEMDEIS ...t e ettt e e et e e e e e e e e sba e e e e taeaeeananaas
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Basis of Accounting. The City has chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a pay as you go basis.
Pension expenditures are made from the General Fund, which is maintained on the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
terms of the plan.

The Separation Allowance has no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria which are outlined
in GASB Statement 73.
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Actuarial Assumptions. The entry age actuarial cost method was used in the December 31, 2019
valuation. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using
the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.5 percent

Salary increases 3.25 to 8.00 percent, including inflation and
productivity factor

Discount rate 1.93 percent

The discount rate used is the S&P Municipal Bond 20 Year High Grade Rate Index as of December 31,
2019.

Mortality rates are based on the Pub-2010 amount-weighted tables with adjustments projected forward
generationally from the valuation date using MP-2019.

Contributions. The City is required by Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement
benefits and has chosen to fund the amounts necessary to cover the benefits earned on a pay as you go
basis through appropriations made in the General Fund operating budget. There were no contributions
made by employees. The City’s obligation to contribute to this Plan is established and may be amended
by the North Carolina General Assembly. Administration costs of the Separation Allowance are financed
through investment earnings. The City had no benefits come due for the reporting period.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2021, the City reported a total pension liability of $637,293. The total pension liability was
measured as of December 31, 2020 based on a December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation. The total pension
liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of December 31, 2020 utilizing update
procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions. For the year ended June 30, 2021, the City
recognized pension expense of $70,004.

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience........cceceevveveenene S - S -
Changes of aSSUMPLIONS .....cccvveuivieieeerccere et 139,942 -

Benefit payments and administrative expenses made

subsequent to the measurement date - -
TOTAL ettt aerebens S 139,942 S -

S0 was reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from benefit payments
made and administrative expenses incurred subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a
decrease of the total pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2022. Other amounts reported as
deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

S 28,443
28,443
28,443
28,443
26,170
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S0 paid as benefits came due and $0 of administrative expenses subsequent to the measurement date
are reported as deferred outflows of resources.

Sensitivity of the City’s total pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the
City’s total pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 1.93 percent, as well as what the City’s
total pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower
(0.93 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (2.93 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(0.93%) (1.93%) (2.93%)
Total pension liability.....cccoeeeeeeeereeeeeerereeeee. S 715,222 S 637,293 S 567,247

Schedule of Changes in Total Pension Liability
Firefighters' Special Separation Allowance

2021
Beginning balance.................. v S 427,347
Service cost at end of year 27,629

Interest of total pension liability.....cccoveeeeneieeieieiccceeeeee 13,932
Changes of benefit terms -
Differences between expected and actual experience in the

measurement of the total pension liability -
Changes of assumptions or other iNPuts.......cccceceeececeeerececreceenenne. 168,385
Benefit payments -

Other ChaNEES ..ot et sa et aens -

Ending balance of the total pension liability......cccceecevenivrcenennnene. S 637,293

The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy).
The current mortality rates are based on published tables and based on studies that cover significant
portions of the U.S. population. The healthy mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future
mortality improvements.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study from the period January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2019.
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Total Expense, Liabilities, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources of Related to Pensions

Following is information related to the proportionate share and pension expense for all pension plans:

LGERS LEOSSA Fire SSA Total
PENSION EXPENSEu..uurrerecrereeecrereeeievers e vesssesenssennans S 1,048,868 S 173,665 S 70,004 S 1,292,537
Pension Liability....nnnnnesereneenee s 4,015,459 1,372,013 637,293 6,024,765
Proportionate share of the
net pension [iability......eeeeneeeneneenns 0.11237% n/a n/a
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Differences between expected and
actual experiencCe..... e 507,082 131,979 - 639,061
Changes of assuMPLioNS......ccoveevererereeneneeeenene 298,829 424,962 139,942 863,733
Net difference between projected and
actual earnings on plan investments........... 565,069 - - 565,069
Changes in proportion and differences
between contributions and proportionate
share of contributions........cccccceeeveeeececrenenne. 859,896 - - 859,896
Benefit payments and administrative costs
paid subsequent to the measurement date.. 1,658,481 - - 1,658,481

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Differences between expected and
actual eXPeriencCe.. .. eeeeeeeeeeieeeeenenes - - -

Changes of assuUMPLioNS......coveeverererreininerennene - 24,317 - 24,317

Net difference between projected and

actual earnings on plan investments........... - - -
Changes in proportion and differences

between contributions and proportionate

share of contributions.......cccceceeeeeevricrcenenne - - -

Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Non-Law Enforcement Officers

Pension Descriptions. The City contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (Plan), a defined
contribution pension plan administered by The Prudential Insurance Company of America. The Plan
provides retirement benefits to non-law enforcement officers employed by the City. The City Council has
the authority for establishing or amending the plan’s provisions.

Funding Policy. The City contributes an amount equal to five percent of each employee's salary, and all
amounts contributed are vested immediately. Also, the employees may make voluntary contributions to
the plan. The City Council has the authority for establishing or amending contribution requirements.
Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2021 were $462,882, which consisted of $290,209 from the
City and $172,673, respectively, from the employees.

Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers

Plan Description. The City contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (Plan), a defined
contribution pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees.
The Plan provides retirement benefits to law enforcement officers employed by the City. Article 5 of G.S.
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Chapter 135 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina
General Assembly. The Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers is included
in the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State’s ACFR
includes the pension trust fund financial statements for the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k) plan
that includes the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers. That report may
be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North
Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy. Article 12E of G.S. Chapter 143 requires the City to contribute each month an amount
equal to five percent of each officer’s salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately. The
law enforcement officers may also make voluntary contributions to the plan. Contributions for the year
ended June 30, 2021 were $132,143, which consisted of $96,421 from the City and $35,722, respectively,
from the law enforcement officers.

Firefighters’ and Rescue Squad Workers’ Pension Fund

Plan Description. The State of North Carolina contributes, on behalf of the City of Mebane, to the
Firefighters’ and Rescue Squad Workers’ Pension Fund (FRSWPF), a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan with a special funding situation administered by the State of North Carolina.
FRSWPF provides pension benefits for eligible fire workers that have elected to become members of the
fund. Article 86 of G.S. Chapter 58 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the
North Carolina General Assembly. Management of the plan is vested in the LGERS Board of Trustees,
which consists of 13 members — nine appointed by the Governor, one appointed by the state Senate, one
appointed by the state House of Representatives, and the State Treasurer and State Superintendent, who
serve as ex-officio members. The Firefighter’s Pension Fund is included in the Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report (ACFR) for the state of North Carolina. The State’s ACFR includes financial statements
and required supplementary information for the Fund. That report may be obtained by writing to the
Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, by calling
(919) 981-5454, or at www.osc.nc.gov.

Benefits Provided. FRSWPF provides retirement and survivor benefits. The present retirement benefit is
$170 per month. Plan members are eligible to receive the monthly benefit at age 55 with 20 years of
creditable service as a firefighter or rescue squad worker, and have terminated duties as a firefighter or
rescue squad worker. Eligible beneficiaries of members who die before beginning to receive the benefit
will receive the amount paid by the member and contributions paid on the member’s behalf into the
plan. Eligible beneficiaries of members who die after beginning to receive benefits will be paid the
amount the member contributed minus the benefits collected.

Contributions. Plan members are required to contribute $10 per month to the plan. The State, a non-
employer contributor, funds the plan through appropriations. The City is not required to contribute to
the Fund; however, as a benefit to the firefighters, the City has chosen to fund the member’s
contributions. Contribution provisions are established by General Statute 58- 86 and may be amended
only by the North Carolina General Assembly. For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the State
contributed $18,652,000 to the plan. The City of Mebane’s proportionate share of the State’s
contribution is $26,898.

Refunds of Contributions — Plan members who are no longer eligible or choose not to participate in the
plan may file an application for a refund of their contributions. Refunds include the member’s
contributions and contributions paid by others on the member’s behalf. No interest will be paid on the
amount of the refund. The acceptance of a refund payment cancels the individual’s right to employer
contributions or any other benefit provided by FRSWPF.
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2021, the City reported no liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability, as
the State provides 100% pension support to the City through its appropriations to the FRSWPF. The total
portion of the net pension liability that was associated with the City and supported by the State was
$52,183. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020. The total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2019. The
total pension liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2020 utilizing update
procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions. The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was
based on a projection of the City’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the
projected contributions of all participating employers. As the City is not projected to make any future
contributions to the plan, its proportionate share at June 30, 2021 and at June 30, 2020 was 0%.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the City recognized pension expense of $14,046 and revenue of
$14,046 for support provided by the State. At June 30, 2021, the City reported no deferred outflows of
resources and no deferred inflows of resources related to pensions.

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the

measurement:

Inflation 3.0 percent

Salary increases Not applicable

Investment rate of return 7.00 percent, net of pension plan investment

expense, including inflation

For more information regarding actuarial assumptions, including mortality tables, the actuarial
experience study, the consideration of future ad hoc COLA amounts, the development of the projected
long-term investment returns, and the asset allocation policy, refer to the discussion of actuarial
assumptions for the LGERS plan noted above.

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be
made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily
required rates, actuarially determined. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of the current plan
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position
is available in the separately issued Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the State of North
Carolina.

Other Post-employment Benefits

Healthcare Benefits

Plan Description. Employees who retire under the provisions of the North Carolina Local Government
Employees’ Retirement System (NCLGERS) and have fifteen (15) or more years of service with the City at
the time of retirement are eligible to continue coverage in the City’s health plan, a single-employer
defined benefit plan. Coverage in the health plan will continue until the retiree becomes Medicare
eligible, at which time coverage will be converted to a Medicare Supplement Plan. Health care and
prescription drug coverage are provided by the City’s health plan. A separate stand-alone report is not
issued.
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Membership of the Health Care Plan consisted of the following at June 30, 2019, the date of the latest
actuarial valuation:

General Law Enforcement
Employees Officers
Retirees and dependents receiving benefits 16 5
Active plan MembErs ..o 105 _ 28
o] =1 ST 121 33

Total OPEB Liability

The City’s total OPEB liability of $10,995,899 was measured as of June 30, 2020 with a determination
date of June 30, 2019, the actuarial valuation date.

Actuarial assumptions and other inputs. The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods
included in the measurement unless otherwise specified:

Inflation 2.5 percent
Real wage growth 1.0 percent
Wage inflation 3.5 percent
Salary increases General Employees- 3.50 to 7.75 percent, Firefighters 3.50 to

7.75 percent, Law Enforcement Officers 3.50 to 7.35 percent,
including inflation

Discount rate 2.21 percent

Healthcare cost trend rates Pre-Medicare- 7.00 percent for 2019 to 4.50 percent by 2026
Medicare- 5.00 percent for 2019 to 4.50 percent by 2021

The discount rate is based on the June average of the Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-year Municipal
Bond Index published weekly by The Bond Buyer.

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB Liability, Balance atJuly 1, 2020.....cccccceveeevreceererierecieenne S 7,870,810
Changes for the year
Y= Vol < of o 1 S 459,321
INEEIES Tttt e bb e e b e b ne e sreeesanes 289,711
Changes in benefit termMS.......ccveerereie e -
Differences between expected and actual experience..........ccuuu.n. 5,490
Changes in assumptions or other inputs.......ccceceveveveeecenecieeneeene. 2,476,778
Benefit PAYMENTS..c.coiieieieieieirer bbbttt s (106,211)
NEL CNANEES c..ceeteieieteeer ettt e e nan 3,125,089

Total OPEB Liability, Balance atJune 30, 2021 S 10,995,899

Changes in assumptions and other inputs reflect a change in the discount rate from 3.50% to 2.21%.

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 mortality tables, with adjustments for LGERS experience and
generational mortality improvements using Scale MP-2015.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period January 2010 through December 2014.

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the total
OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using
a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current discount
rate:
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1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(1.21%) (2.21%) (3.21%)
Total OPEB liability....cccoceveveireerrcrnene. S 13,634,324 S 10,995,899 S 9,003,746

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following presents
the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City’s total OPEB liability would be if it were
calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point
higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

1% Decrease Current 1% Increase
Total OPEB liability....cccoeveveiereerrernene. S 8,585,703 S 10,995,899 S 14,349,452

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the City recognized OPEB expense of $1,033,861. At June 30, 2021,
the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from
the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience.........c.ceceererennnes S 1,032,760 §$ 5,584
Changes of aSSUMPLIONS.....cccoccuieiiieeieeeee et 2,209,884 737,709
Benefit payments and administrative costs made
subsequent to the measurement date........ccccoceeveeveeveeieceneceeenieene, 127,727 -
e ] - | TR S 3,370,371  §$ 743,293

$127,727 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from benefit payments
made and administrative expenses incurred subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a
decrease of the total OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2002 e e e e e e e eae e et e et e e e be e e anaeeareeeaneeenaeennreeans S 284,829
202 et e e e et e et e e e be e ebe e e aaaeeesaeeeaaeeeaaeanteaans 284,829
2024 e e et e et e e be e e ba e e b ae e e e e eateanteeens 284,829
20D e e et e st e e e b e e s ba e e bt e e nar e e e aeaareeeas 284,829
2026..eieeeeeieieiett ettt ettt e et re e bt te e st et enaaeseranan 284,829
TR AT ...ttt ettt et b et et e enens 1,075,206

Other Employment Benefits

The City has elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Plan for members
of the Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan), a multiple-employer,
State-administered, cost-sharing plan funded on a one-year term cost basis. The beneficiaries of those
employees who die in active service after one year of contributing membership in the System, or who die
within 180 days after retirement or termination of service and have at least one year of contributing
membership service in the System at the time of death are eligible for death benefits. Lump sum death
benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to the employee's 12 highest months’ salary in a row during
the 24 months prior to the employee's death, but the benefit may not exceed $50,000 or be less than
$25,000. Because all death benefit payments are made from the Death Benefit Plan and not by the City,
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the City does not determine the number of eligible participants. The City has no liability beyond the
payment of monthly contributions. The contributions to the Death Benefit Plan cannot be separated
between the post-employment benefit amount and the other benefit amount. Contributions are
determined as a percentage of monthly payroll based upon rates established annually by the State.
Separate rates are set for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers.
The City considers these contributions to be immaterial.

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

The City has several deferred outflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources is comprised of the

following:
Pensions- differences between expected and actual experience....... S 639,061
Pensions- change of assUMPLiONS......cccccvvevenevenecenenesce e 863,733
Pensions- difference between projected and actual investment

EATNINES cuerverierieriireet et et et et st e ae st e tesaesbesstestestestestesbesbesaessessesssssnenseseans 565,069
Pensions- change in proportion and difference between employer

contributions and proportionate share of contributions............... 859,896
Contributions to pension planin current fiscal year......ccccoeeueuenene 1,658,481
OPEB- differences between expected and actual experience.............. 1,032,760
Pensions- change of assUMPLioNS.......ccccceeceeeceeecececie e 2,209,884
Benefit payments for OPEB made subsequent to measurement

(o = (T O RTRRUR 127,727
LEOSSA- benefit payments made and administrative

EXPENSES c.vvivtreteiritstsestetststststsestst st st st st st st sttt bbb bbbttt sa et s e e e e e s -
TORAL ettt ettt ettt ettt e e r ettt e et e st seese et et et er et e et eaenenanes S 7,956,611

Deferred inflows of resources at year-end is comprised of the following:

Statement of General Fund

Net Position Balance Sheet
Pensions- change in proportion and difference between employer

contributions and proportionate share of contributions............... S - S -

LEOSSA- change of assuUmMPLioNS......cceeveeveveneienineeerees e 24,317 -
OPEB- differences between expected and actual experience.............. 5,584 -
OPEB- change of assumptions.......cccecveererenineieneeeseesee s 737,709 -
Prepaid taxes and licenses (General FuNd)......cccccoeeevenecieceneneneceenennens 2,640 2,640
Taxes receivable, less penalties (General Fund)......cccceevveeeeererrernennene. - 82,899
TOTAL ettt ettt ae b et e bbb st ene et e etens S 770,250 S 85,539

Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions, injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City carries commercial coverage
for all other risks of loss. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage in the prior
year, and settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the last four fiscal years.

The City has not been designated as being in a flood zone and thus carries no commercial flood
insurance.
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In accordance with G.S. 159-29, the City’s employees that have access to $100 or more at any given time
of the City’s funds are performance bonded through a commercial surety bond. The finance officer and
tax collector are individually bonded for $50,000 each and the City Manager for $25,000. The remaining
employees that have access to funds are bonded under a blanket bond for $25,000.

Claims, Judgments and Contingent Liabilities

At June 30, 2021, the City was a defendant to various lawsuits. In the opinion of the City’s management
and the City attorney, the ultimate effect of these legal matters will not have a material adverse effect on
the City’s financial position.

Long-Term Obligations

Capital Leases

The City did not have any leases outstanding that were considered to be capital in nature.

General Obligation Indebtedness

The general obligation bonds and the notes payable, which were issued to finance the construction of
facilities utilized in the operations of the water and sewer system and which are being retired by its
resources, are reported as long-term debt in the Water and Sewer Fund. All general obligation bonds are
collateralized by the full faith, credit, and taxing power of the City. Principal and interest requirements
are appropriated on all indebtedness when due.

Bonds and notes payable at June 30, 2021 are comprised of the following individual issues:

General Obligation Bonds:

There were no general obligation bonds payable at June 30, 2021.

Installment Purchases:
Serviced by the General Fund:

Direct placement contract payable to Bank of America, N.A. for the City Hall
and Recreation Building renovation projects. Principal payments of $106,667
plus interest are due semi-annually starting on December 27, 2008. The note
bears interest at the rate of 3.52%. The City Hall and Recreation buildings are
security for the debt while the debt is outstanding ..........ccccocvveviiiiieeieecceeceee e, 426,666

Direct placement contract payable to BB&T for the Southside Fire Station
Project. Principal payments of $86,667 plus interest are due semi-annually
starting on July 23, 2014. The note bears interest at the rate of 2.84%. All
property, equipment and deposits acquired with these local funds are the
security for the debt while the debt is outstanding .........cccceveviiiiccieiiccece e 1,386,667

Direct placement contract payable to Piedmont Electric Membership
Corporation as part of the USDA Rural Economic Development Loan (REDL)
Program for the purchase of two fire trucks and related fire truck equipment
and firefighting equipment for the Southside Fire Station. Principal payments
of $140,889 are due annually starting on February 1, 2015 with final payment
due February 1, 2023. The note bears no interest as part of the REDL program.
The fire trucks and equipment are security for the debt while the debt is
OULSTANAINEG ...ttt ettt et e st e st e st e e st e e sat e e sabeesaeeebeneennee s 281,778

Direct placement contract payable to Piedmont Electric Membership
Corporation as part of the USDA Rural Economic Development Loan (REDL)
Program for the purchase of a fire truck. Principal payments of $46,833 are
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due annually starting on August 1, 2017 with final payment due August 1, 2026.
The note bears no interest as part of the REDL program. The fire truck is
security for the debt while the debt is outstanding .........cccceeeciieiciee e, 280,998

Direct placement contract payable to American National Bank and Trust
Company for the City Park Project. Principal payments of $194,333 plus
interest are due semi-annually starting on October 15, 2017. The note bears
interest at the rate of 3.23%. All property, improvements and equipment
acquired with these local funds are the security for the debt while the debt is
Lo U)oy 7 0o 11 o V- S PP PSP 4,275,333

Direct placement contract payable to Branch Banking and Trust Company for
the Fire Department Radio Equipment. Principal payments of $43,187 plus
interest are due semi-annually starting on April 27, 2018. The note bears
interest at the rate of 1.85%. All equipment and improvements acquired with
these local funds are the security for the debt while the debt is outstanding..................... 129,562

Direct placement contract payable to First Bank for the Police Department
Radio Equipment. Principal payments of $46,900 plus interest are due semi-
annually starting on May 9, 2019. The note bears interest at the rate of 3.02%.
All equipment and improvements acquired with these local funds are the
security for the debt while the debt is outstanding .........cccceeeciieiciie e, 234,500

Direct placement contract payable to First Bank for the Police Department
Vehicles. Principal payments of $26,647 plus interest are due semi-annually
starting on October 16, 2019. The note bears interest at the rate of 2.58%. All
equipment and improvements acquired with these local funds are the security
for the debt while the debt is outstanding ..........cccoeeeiiiiiiciiiiccee e 159,881

Direct placement contract payable to U.S. Bancorp Government Leasing and
Finance, Inc., for sanitation vehicles. Principal payments of $43,050 plus
interest are due semi-annually starting on February 28, 2021. The note bears
interest at the rate of 1.363%. All equipment and improvements acquired with
these local funds are the security for the debt while the debt is outstanding..................... 387,450

Serviced by the Water and Sewer Fund:

Direct placement contract payable from the North Carolina Water Pollution
Control Revolving Fund for 9th Street Sewer improvements. Principal
payments of $4,806 annually on the indebtedness started on May 1, 2010. The
interest rate as established under this program is zero percent. This debt is not
Y=Y oLV =T« ISR 38,445

Direct placement contract payable to Carolina Bank for the water treatment
plant upgrade and expansion projects. Principal and interest payments are due
annually on July 1, in varying amounts, starting July 1, 2015 and ending July 1,
2029. The note bears interest at the rate of 2.60%. All property, equipment and
deposits acquired with these local funds are the security for the debt while the
(o 1= oYl I oYU £ = o I o= PR 3,015,000

Direct placement contract payable to BB&T for the construction of a Sewer
Pump Station, main, outfall and tunnel. Principal payments of $66,667 plus
interest are due semi-annually starting on May 1, 2008. The note bears
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interest at the rate of 3.85%. The property is pledged as collateral for the debt

while the debt is oULSTANAING ....cooiiiiiieiei e e
Total [oNG-term debt......cooeiii e
Less: Current portion of long-term debt......ccccovviecieeiiie e

Non-current portion of long-term debt.......cccccuvviviiiee e,

133,334
10,749,614
(1,722,762)

S 9,026,852

At June 30, 2021, the City of Mebane had no authorized but unissued bonds and had a legal debt margin

of $179,348,538.

The following table summarizes the annual requirements to amortize all long-term liabilities outstanding
at June 30, 2021 (excluding compensated absences, pension liabilities, OPEB liabilities, and any claims or

judgments).

General Obligation Other Long-term

Bonds Indebtedness Total Debt Due

Serviced by General Fund:
Fiscal Year Principle Interest Principle Interest Principle Interest
2022 - - 1,282,623 172,373 1,282,623 172,373
2023 - - 1,239,436 143,249 1,239,436 143,249
P10 ) S - - 795,127 117,425 795,127 117,425
2025 - - 694,933 99,679 694,933 99,679
2026, - - 651,883 83,928 651,883 83,928
2027-2031 - - 2,510,166 207,020 2,510,166 207,020
2032-maturity....ccceeenes - - 388,668 7,262 388,668 7,262
L] ] PSS S - S - $ 7,562,836 S 830936 $ 7,562,836 S 830,936
Serviced by Water & Sewer Fund:
Fiscal Year Principle Interest Principle Interest Principle Interest
2022 - - 440,139 78,314 440,139 78,314
2023 - - 313,806 66,521 313,806 66,521
2024 - - 321,806 58,383 321,806 58,383
2025 - - 330,806 50,024 330,806 50,024
2026, - - 337,806 41,457 337,806 41,457
2027-2031 - - 1,442,415 75,478 1,442,415 75,478
2032-maturity - - - - - -
1] PO $ - $ - $ 3,186,778 $ 370,177 $ 3,186,778 S 370,177
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Changes in Long-Term Liabilities
Current
Balance July 1, Balance June Portion of
2020 Increases Decreases 30,2021 Balance
Governmental activities:
Direct Placement
Installment purchase.......ooeeeeeveeeeerennnne. S 8,371,909 $ 430,500 S$1,239,573 $ 7,562,836 $1,282,623
Compensated absences 465,151 388,776 408,698 445,229 388,776
Total OPEB liability....ccccceurueee. 6,809,240 2,692,052 - 9,501,292 -
Net pension liability (LGERS).....c.ccccecvcvruneee. 2,650,542 822,702 - 3,473,244 -
Net pension liability (LEOSSA).......ccccevvuenne. 802,190 569,823 - 1,372,013 -
Total pension liability (Firefighters SSA)... 427,347 209,946 - 637,293 -
Governmental activity
long-term liabilities.....ccoeoveveeereecereerenene. $19,526,379 $5,113,799 S$1,648,271 $22,991,907 $1,671,399
Business-type activities:
Direct Placement
Installment purchase......ccceveveerreerennnen. S 3,617,917 S - S 431,139 $ 3,186,778 S 440,139
Graham/Mebane Watershed
ABFEEIMENT oo seeeeeeeerereesreesesssessesesessseseeneseon 1,783,652 - 127,403 1,656,249 127,403
Graham/Mebane Capacity
ABrEeMENT....ceiiieeeertee et 2,082,464 - 200,000 1,882,464 200,000
Net pension liability (LGERS).......ccccevevrunnene. 405,087 137,128 - 542,215 -
Compensated absences........ccceeeveecervrrerenne 76,077 66,299 63,386 78,990 66,299
Total OPEB liability...cccoceveeerreriirereereereennnee 1,061,570 433,037 - 1,494,607 -
Business-type activity
long-term liabilities....cccouveeererereeererernnnn. S 9,026,767 S 636,464 S 821,928 S 8,841,303 S 833,841

Compensated absences have typically been liquidated in the General Fund.
C. Interfund Balances and Activity

There are no balances due to/from other funds at June 30, 2021.

Interfund balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services
are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system,
and (3) payments between funds are made. Interfund services provided and used are not eliminated in
the process of consolidation. These balances routinely clear out each month prior to or at year-end.

A summary of interfund transfers for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 is as follows:

Cash Transfers:
Transfer from General Fund to:

General Capital ProjeCt FUNG........cciieeiiicieree ettt e be bbb st b besnn S 1,059,769
Cates Farm Park Capital Project FUNG......c.cccoveeeieieenceeseeees ettt 84,823
Transfer from Water and Sewer Fund to:
Utility Capital Project FUNG ..ottt sttt st et neae sans 450,000
Transfer from System Development Capital Reserve Fund to:
Utility Capital ProjeCt FUNG ..ottt sttt et neae eans 37,846
TOtal CASh TrANSTEIS ettt ettt e st es s et st et ess e ssse e et saerenessanea S 1,632,438

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to
the fund that statute or budget requires to spend them and (2) use unrestricted revenues collected in the
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general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary
authorizations.

Further, during the year ended June 30, 2021, the City made the following one-time transfers:

1) A transfer of $1,059,769 from the General Fund to the General Capital Project Fund for capital
improvements.

2) A transfer of $84,823 from the General Fund to the Cates Farm Park Capital Project Fund for capital
improvements.

3) A transfer of $450,000 from the Utility Fund to the Utility Capital Project Fund for capital
improvements.

4) A transfer of $37,846 from the Utility Capital Reserve Fund to the Utility Capital Project Fund for
capital improvements.

D. On-Behalf Payments for Fringe Benefits and Salaries

The City has recognized as a revenue and an expenditure on-behalf payments for fringe benefits and
salaries of $14,046, for the salary supplement and stipend benefits paid to eligible firemen by the local
board of trustees of the Firemen’s Relief Fund during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. Under State
law the local board of trustees for the Fund receives an amount each year which the board may use at its
own discretion for eligible firemen or their departments.

E. Net Investment in Capital Assets
Governmental Business-type

Capital assets......ouuven... S 60,583,002 S 54,987,245
less: long-term debt 7,562,836 6,725,491
add: unexpended debt proceeds - -

Net investment in capital @SSEtS....iereeeeereeeeeerreee e S 53,020,166 S 48,261,754

F. Fund Balance
The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of General
fund balance that is available for appropriation:

Total fund balance —General FUNG. ...ttt sttt eveennesnens S 15,719,819
Less: Nonspendable Prepaid Assets (31,716)
Stabilization by State STAtULE.......ccececeeeeece ettt (3,405,872)
Appropriated Fund Balance in 2022 budget.......c.coceervrerenrerccenneeereeeeeenes (1,950,000)
WOrKing Capital..c.cccceeeeeeereerereece et (10,332,231)

REMAiNING fUN DAlaNCeuuiiiiiiciccce ettt enne S -

The outstanding encumbrances are amounts needed to pay any commitments related to purchase orders
and contracts that remain unperformed at year-end. Outstanding encumbrances for the Governmental
Funds at June 30, 2021 were $804,772 for the General Fund.

G. Jointly Governed Organization

The City, in conjunction with twelve counties and sixty other municipalities established the Piedmont
Triad Regional Council (Council). The participating governments established the Council to coordinate
various funding received from federal and State agencies. Each participating government appoints one
member and one alternate if they so desire, to the Council’s governing board. The City paid $2,909 in
general membership fees and $6,711 in stormwater fees to the Council during the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2021.
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H. Joint Ventures

The City, in conjunction with the Cities of Burlington and Graham, participate in the Alamance Municipal
ABC Board. Each participating government appoints board members. The ABC Board is a joint venture
established to facilitate control over alcoholic beverages within the Cities. The ABC Board has been in
existence for over 38 years and is self-sustaining. The City has an ongoing financial responsibility for the
ABC Board because it and the Cities of Burlington and Graham are legally obligated under the
intergovernmental agreement that created the ABC Board to honor any deficiencies in the event that
proceeds from other default remedies are insufficient. The participating governments do not have any
equity interest in the joint venture, so no equity interest has been reflected in the financial statements at
June 30, 2021. Complete financial statements for the ABC Board can be obtained from the
administrative offices at 603 W. Harden Street, Graham, North Carolina, 27253.

I. Joint Operation

The City of Mebane and the City of Graham are co-owners and operators of a water supply reservoir and
water treatment plant per an Intergovernmental Watershed Agreement. Since June 22, 1973, the
ownership of the assets and improvements of the joint undertaking remained at 66.7% interest for the
City of Graham and 33.3% interest for the City of Mebane. Due to relative growths of the populations in
units of government, the parties agreed as February 3, 2014 to adjust the capacity, treatment and
operational costs, improvements, upgrades, and repairs to be borne equally by the units. At this time,
the City of Mebane also agreed to pay to the City of Graham an equalizing sum of $2,548,070 for their
capital interest. The amount is to be paid in twenty annual installments of $127,403 with the first
payment due July 31, 2014. No interest is included in the agreement. The balance of the payable as of
June 30, 2021 was $1,656,249.

J. Interlocal Cooperation Agreement

The City of Mebane and the City of Graham entered into an interlocal cooperation agreement for the
allocation of Twenty One and Forty Three One Hundredths percent (21.43%) of capacity usage of the City
of Graham’s wastewater treatment plant. The cost of agreed upon improvements or upgrades to the
wastewater treatment plant and the Cherry Lane pump station will be shared by the City of Mebane and
the City of Graham based on percentage of capacity usage, as noted above. The duration for the
continuation of the agreement is 99 years. The City of Mebane has agreed to pay the City of Graham
$2,682,464 for this capacity usage. The amount is to be paid in twenty annual installments of $200,000
(payments 1-5), $150,000 (payments 6-10), $100,000 (payments 11-15), and $86,493 (payments 16-20)
with the first payment due July 10, 2018. No interest is included in the agreement. The balance of the
payable as of June 30, 2021 was $1,882,464.

K. Summary Disclosure of Significant Contingencies

Federal and State Assisted Programs

The City has received proceeds from several federal and State grants. Periodic audits of these grants are
required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the grant
agreements. Such audits could result in the refund of grant monies to the grantor agencies.
Management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial. No provision has been made in the
accompanying financial statements for the grant monies.

L. Significant Effects of Subsequent Events

In accordance with ASC 855, the City evaluated subsequent events through November 10, 2021, the date
the financial statements were available to be issued. There were no material subsequent events that
required recognition or additional disclosure in these financial statements.

M. Restatements
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the City determined that the pension liability for the
Firefighters’ Special Separation Allowance was not recorded. Therefore, an adjustment to beginning net
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position has been recorded to account for this accrual, the net effect of which is a decrease in net
position of $427,347. This liability does not affect the modified basis fund balance.
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Required
Supplementary
Information

This section contains additional information required
by generally accepted accounting principles.

Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) for
Local Government Employees’ Retirement System

Schedule of Contributions to Local Government Employees’
Retirement System

Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability for
Firefighters’ and Rescue Squad Workers’ Pension Plan

Schedule of Changes in Total Pension Liability (Asset) for
Firefighters’ and Rescue Squad Workers’ Pension Plan

Schedule of Total Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered
Payroll for Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance

Schedule of Total Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered
Payroll for Firefighters’ Special Separation Allowance

Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios






City of Mebane, North Carolina

Required Supplementary Information

City of Mebane's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset)
Last Eight Fiscal Years *

June 30, 2021

Local Government Employees' Retirement System

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Mebane's proportion of the

net pension liability (asset) (%)........c.cceu... 0.11237%  0.11189%  0.10735%  0.10919%  0.10681%  0.10043%  0.09862%  0.99260%
Mebane's proportion of the

net pension liability (asset) ($)...covvvrervenene $4,015,459 $3,055,629 $2,546,709 $1,668,121 $2,266,866 $ 450,724 S (581,608) $1,116,186
Mebane's covered payroll........ccccecereeviennenne $7,506,863 $7,137,816 $6,539,336 $6,062,960 $5,990,336 $5,169,065 $5,064,935 $4,888,462
Mebane's proportionate share of the

net pension liability (asset) as a

percentage of its covered payroll.............. 53.49% 42.81% 38.94% 27.51% 37.84% 8.72% (11.48%) 22.83%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage

of the total pension liability **.................. 92.60% 90.68% 91.63% 94.18% 91.47% 98.09% 102.64% 94.35%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ending June 30. This
schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Additional years' information will be displayed as it
becomes available.

** This will be the same percentage for all participant employers in the LGERS plan.
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Required Supplementary Information
City of Mebane's Contributions

Last Eight Fiscal Years *

June 30, 2021

Local Government Employees' Retirement System

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Contractually required contribution..... S 671,809 S 624,341 S 526,288 S 364,077 $ 438,800 $ 404,627 S 376,969 $ 353,916
Contributions in relation to the

contractually required contribution.. 671,809 624,341 526,288 364,077 438,800 404,627 376,969 353,916
Contribution deficiency (excess)........... S - S - S - S - S - - S - S -
Mebane's covered payroll..................... $8,101,894 $7,506,863 $7,137,816 $6,539,336 $6,062,960 $5,990,336 $5,169,065 $5,064,935
Contributions as a percentage of

covered payroll.......cccceveeeereecveenen. 8.29% 8.32% 7.37% 5.57% 7.24% 6.75% 7.29% 6.99%

* This schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Additional years' information will be displayed

as it becomes available.
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City of Mebane, North Carolina

Required Supplementary Information

City of Mebane's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability
Last Seven Fiscal Years *

June 30, 2021

Firefighters' and Rescue Squad Workers' Pension

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Mebane's proportionate share

of the net pension liability (%).....cccccceeeveennes 0.00000% 0.00000% 0.00000% 0.00000% 0.00000% 0.00000%  0.00000%
Mebane's proportionate share

of the net pension liability ($).......cccovevevvennene. S - S - S - S - S - S - S -
State's proportionate share of the net pension

liability associated with the City of Mebane. 52,183 53,623 75,430 61,719 45,002 38,775 31,152
o] -1 SR R S 52,18 $ 53623 $ 75430 S 61,719 $ 45002 S 38,775 S$ 31,152
Mebane's covered payroll...............cooeevvereeeens $1,650,409 $1,534,858 $1,371,047 $1,289,371 $1,227,668 $1,268,042 $ 945,728
Mebane's proportionate share

of the net pension liability (asset) as a

percentage of its covered payroll.................. 3.16% 3.49% 5.50% 4.79% 3.67% 3.06% 3.29%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of

the total pension liability.......ccccocovvevenenienene 92.30% 90.50% 89.35% 94.94% 91.40% 93.42% 92.76%

* The amounts are presented for the prior fiscal year. This schedule is intended to show information for ten years.

Additional years' information will be displayed as it becomes available.
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City of Mebane, North Carolina

Schedule of Changes in Total Pension Liability

Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance
Last Five Fiscal Years*

June 30, 2021
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Beginning balanCe.........ccvecvicieciicieeecece e S 802,190 S 621,186 S 574,870 S 427,541 S 400,968
YT ol ol 1 SR 56,536 49,682 45,895 37,803 35,736
Interest on the total pension liability........cccooecviiniiiinnnii, 26,151 22,611 18,057 16,370 14,155
Changes of benefit terms........cccoveeeeiieiiiiieie e, - - - - -
Differences between expected and actual experience in the

measurement of the total pension liability...................... 46,055 77,061 23,723 53,293 -
Changes of assumptions or other inputs...........ccccceeeeuneeeen. 441,081 31,650 (34,476) 46,746 (14,371)
Benefit Payments.......ccoceeeiiiieeeiie e - - (6,883) (6,883) (8,947)
Other Changes.......c..euviiiiei e aees - - - - -
Ending balance of the total pension liability.............c...c...... $ 1,372,013 S 802,190 S 621,186 S 574,870 S 427,541

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ending December 31.

This schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Additional years' information will be displayed as it

becomes available.
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City of Mebane, North Carolina

Schedule of Total Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll
Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance

Last Ten Fiscal Years

June 30, 2021
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Total pension

liability......ccccevenee. $1,372,013 $ 802,190 S 621,186 S 574,870 S 427,541 S 400,968 S 258,154 S 238,533 $226,153 S 224,291
Covered payroll....... 1,971,990 1,889,896 1,622,281 1,553,944 1,443,743 1,443,743 1,228,378 1,097,171 931,673 946,084
Total pension liabilty

as a percentage of

covered payroll...  69.58% 42.45% 38.29% 36.99% 29.61% 27.77% 21.02% 21.74% 24.27% 23.71%

Notes to the Required Schedules

The City of Mebane has no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement 73 to pay related benefits.
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Schedule of Changes in Total Pension Liability
Firefighters' Special Separation Allowance

June 30, 2021
2021

BeginniNg DalanCe.......cc.ovveeviieeieecceeccee et S 427,347
SEIVICE COSE..uniiiiiiiiiiiieee ettt reee e e e e e e eeab e e e e eraat e e eeeseressssaaneeeaeaans 27,629
Interest on the total pension liability........cccccoeeeiiieeiiiiiiiees 13,932
Changes of benefit terms.........cccovviiiiieici e, -
Differences between expected and actual experience in the

measurement of the total pension liability.........cccooeeeeiiiiiinnnne... -
Changes of assumptions or other inputs..........ccccoeeecivieeieeec e, 168,385
Benefit PaymMENts... ..o -
Other CRANEES....cii it earaees -
Ending balance of the total pension liability..........cccovvveeeiiinicnnnen.... S 637,293

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ending December 31.
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Schedule of Total Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll
Firefighters' Special Separation Allowance

June 30, 2021
2021

Total pension

1] o111 Y2 SR S 637,293
Covered payroll.......cceeeeecciiieeeececieeee e 1,368,060
Total pension liabilty

as a percentage of

covered pPayroll......ccccveenniiiiniiieenieeee 46.58%

Notes to the Required Schedules

The City of Mebane has no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB
Statement 73 to pay related benefits.
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
Last Four Fiscal Years*

June 30, 2021

Total OPEB Liability 2021 2020 2019 2018
SEIVICE COSTurnuriiitiiiiiiiiitesieeseesteesteesteeesreessbeessaeesbeeenreesnseas S 459,321 $ 380,966 S 402,678 S 452,991
INTEIEST e e 289,711 238,114 213,111 183,870
Changes of benefit terms.........ccccoveeieeiiciiiieicceeee s - - - -
Differences between expected and actual experience.......... 5,490 1,302,981 8,326 (9,652)
Changes of assumMPLioNns.........ccccovvieiiiieeeiiie e 2,476,778 (115,846) (384,358) (663,734)
Benefit PaymMents.......ccoeieciiiieeiie e (106,211) (112,112) (97,786) (74,215)
Net change in total OPEB liability.......c.cccccoveeeiiiiecciiiecnee. 3,125,089 1,694,103 141,971 (110,740)
Total OPEB liability - beginning..........ccccceeeeeiiieeeeiieeeciieen. 7,870,810 6,176,707 6,034,736 6,145,476
Total OPEB liability - ending.........ccoceeveiivieeniiieiie e $ 10,995,899 $ 7,870,810 $ 6,176,707 $ 6,034,736
Covered PAYroll.....ccccceiiceeeieecie e 6,848,284 6,848,284 6,100,000 6,100,000
Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll......... 160.56% 114.93% 101.26% 98.93%

Notes to Schedule

Changes of assumptions: Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects of changes in the discount

rate of each period. The following are the discount rates used in each period:

Fiscal Year Rate
2021 2.21%
2020 3.50%
2019 3.89%
2018 3.56%

* This schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Additional years' information will be displayed as it

becomes available.
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Major Governmental
Funds

The General Fund - This fund is used to account for
resources traditionally associated with government
which are not required legally or by sound financial
management to be accounted for in another fund.

The City Park Capital Project Fund - This fund is
used to account for the land purchase and
construction of the city park.






City of Mebane, North Carolina
Comparative Balance Sheets
General Fund

June 30, 2021 and 2020 Statement A-1
June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
Assets
Cash and EQUIVAIENTS........ccueereeirieiectecete ettt ettt et et eae e saeeereennas S 13,745,250 $ 13,311,576
YT o o1 1Yo [N o= 1] o TR 1,436,696 1,057,778
B Y =101 7] o [T 82,899 94,533
ACCOUNTS FECEIVADIE. ...ttt e e e e e e e e e e eeeeeseaeeeeeeeeaeeees 166,065 133,070
YT [ o I =T o LSS 31,716 168,052
Advance t0 Other fUNAS.......coouiiiiiiii e s - -
Due from other GOVEIrNMENTS.......ccuuiiiiie e e e 2,435,035 2,025,493
TOUAl @SS TS . cceieiiiiireeeeeeeeeereeeeeesssssssssssssseessessssssseeeeeseesesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssene S 17,897,661 S 16,790,502
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
ACCOUNTS PAYADIE .ottt ettt et ettt e et e eve e be et s ereeeteenee e S 1,052,797 §$ 974,466
DUE 10 Other GOVEINMENTS.......uiiiieiiie et e et e e e e e e e eae e e eanns 15,819 -
Payable from restricted @SSetS.......uuiiiiiieiiieieiee et e e e 1,023,687 863,078
Total [labilities....uucerieeeeeeeiieeicce e e e e reree e e e s renn s e e s e eennsssesseennnssssnenns 2,092,303 1,837,544
Deferred INfIOWS Of rESOUICES........citeeiiireirteeciiieeirtenierereseressesrenssereasssssnssesenssssens 85,539 110,641
Fund balances:
Nonspendable:
YT [T I Y <1 Ay RSN 31,716 168,052
Restricted for:
Stabilization by State StatUte......cceeiciieeeie e e 3,405,872 2,422,768
Assigned:
Subsequent year's eXPeNnditUres.........cceeeciiieecieeeiiieeeeereeeere e e e e e rre e e s eaeeesaeeeeas 1,950,000 1,823,718
(LT Ty F=d V=T USRSt 10,332,231 10,427,779
Total fund balances.......cceeeeiiiiieeecirrrtrc e e e e eenn e s s e e e nnsssssseennnsnnnns 15,719,819 14,842,317

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fuNd DalanCes........ceeiieeiiieeiiieeiiiiieiirteiereeerreecerenseseeneierensesennnes
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

General Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020) Statement A-2
2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) 2020 Actual
Revenues
Property taxes:
Current and Prior Years......cueieeveeeeeveeeeeereesvvesreenneas S S 11,331,936 S S 10,888,946
Penalties and interest, net of discounts...................... 7,411 8,121
o] - | PR 11,036,912 11,339,347 302,435 10,897,067
Other taxes and licenses:
Privilege liCeNSes........ceeccviiieciee e 1,000 955 (45) 955
Unrestricted intergovernmental:
Local option sales taX.......ceceveeeeeeieecciiireee e, 4,261,900 3,574,012
Telecommunications sales taX.......ccvevveveeeveeieeeeeeeennnns 74,249 74,048
Utility franchise taX......ccccceeeeeeiciiiieee e 1,141,022 1,138,279
Video franchise fee......ccccooviviiiiiiiiiees 62,564 61,792
Beer and WIiNe taX.......uuverererurerererererererererereresnnnnnnn 59,850 59,570
ABC profit distribution.........ccceccvveiecieei e 153,491 148,528
TaX SNAMING. vt aaees 313,314 352,604
O e e 34,970 24,225
o] - | PRSI 5,120,543 6,101,360 980,817 5,433,058
Restricted intergovernmental:
Powell Bill allocation.......ccccccceeveviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieie, 354,268 360,334
Controlled subsStanCe taX.....cooeeeveeeeeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeieee e 1,403 1,074
ABC Revenue for law enforcement...........eevevevvverennnns 38,978 33,070
Solid waste disposal taX......ccceceuveevivreeeiiieeeeiiree e, 10,725 10,481
On-behalf of payments - fire.......cccceeeeeecciiieeeeececee 48,184 46,087
Federal equitable sharing.........cccccoeveeviiiecccneee e, 16,443 95,470
ONE NC GraNt...cec e - 180,000
Cares fUNAiNg.......coocveeeiiiee e 187,904 27,952
Other grants and awards.......cccccceeeeciiieeeeeececciieneeennn. 2,437 29,327
Fire district tax funds........ccvvvveeviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeieeeees 494,324 478,922
o] - | PSS 886,000 1,154,666 268,666 1,262,717
Permits and fees:
Building permits.......ccoocciiieeiiiiccieeee e 615,935 330,523
INSPECLION TEES.....uviieiiee et 412,766 270,001
Planning fEes......ccccuuiiieii e 104,845 117,260
Street and utility inspection fees........c.cccceeeciererenneee. 193,353 84,611
Development fees........occviieeiiiicciieee e - -
Other i 11,136 8,791
o] - | PR 881,798 1,338,035 456,237 811,186
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City of Mebane, North Carolina

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
General Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

(With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020) Statement A-2
2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) 2020 Actual

Revenues (continued)
Sales and services:

Recreation department fees.........ocvevvvvveeveeveeneennnens S S 86,368 S S 79,588
SanItation fEeS.....cooiiiiiiiieiees 493,408 467,833
Cemetery plot Sales.......ccevevceeeeeciieecceee e 36,750 29,000
o] =] PR 570,450 616,526 46,076 576,421
Investment earnings.......cccccceceeeerreeecnnnceeeeneeennnceeennns 20,000 52,436 32,436 148,826
Miscellaneous:
Material Sales....coovieeeeeeieieeeecec 15,140 1,768
20T o | R 69,035 71,687
Other grants and awards.......ccccceeeeciieeeeeececcineneeene. 34,570 316,300
O e 133,139 124,380
o] - | PSS 147,600 251,884 104,284 514,135
Total reVeNUES.....cccuueceiriieeeeeececererrenceeeeee e e e eennaneeeeseenes 18,664,303 20,855,209 2,190,906 19,644,365
Expenditures

General government:
City Council:

Salaries and employee benefits.......ccccceeeiviineennnnn. 54,410 63,477
Other operating expenditures.........ccccceeeeeeeecnnnnneeen. 18,563 18,718
TOtAl et 83,539 72,973 10,566 82,195
Administration:
Salaries and employee benefits.......ccccceeeiviiniennnnn. 800,898 678,558
Other operating expenditures..........ccccceecvveeecveneens 160,813 171,613
Capital oUtlaY...ccccvveeeeieee e - -
TOtal e 1,158,700 961,711 196,989 850,171
Finance:
Salaries and employee benefits.......cccccevcvveeecieneennns 317,970 279,101
Other operating expenditures.........cccccceeeeeeercvnnnnennn. 212,398 211,899
Capital outlay......cceeeieiiiciieee e, - -
TOtAl ettt e 604,386 530,368 74,018 491,000
Information Technology:
Salaries and employee benefits.......ccccceeeiviineennnnnn. 153,763 103,025
Other operating expenditures..........cccceeecveeeecvereens 249,513 161,790
Capital OULlaY...ccccvveeeeieee e 23,600 5,040
L] | PSSP 506,771 426,876 79,895 269,855

Page 69



City of Mebane, North Carolina

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
General Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

(With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020) Statement A-2
2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) 2020 Actual

Expenditures (continued)
General government:

Non-departmental:
Salaries and employee benefits.........ccoeeveeverreennennne. S S 129,300 S S 102,302
Other operating expenditures..........cccceeecveeeecveenens 443,035 469,535
TOtAL it 827,336 572,335 255,001 571,837
Total general government.......ccccceeevcveeeecieeeccieee e, 3,180,732 2,564,263 616,469 2,265,058
Public safety:
Police:
Salaries and employee benefits.......ccccceeenvieneennnnnn. 3,272,176 3,149,666
MaiNtENANCE......uuiiiiiieieie e 70,105 104,675
Other operating expenditures.........cccccceeeeeeeecvnnnneenn. 508,036 498,050
Capital outlay......cceeeieiiiiiiee e, 201,311 237,097
[Le 1= PSR 4,434,715 4,051,628 383,087 3,989,488
Fire:
Salaries and employee benefits.......ccccceeenriineennnn. 2,582,303 2,446,591
MaiNtENANCE......uuiiiiieiee e 114,738 130,525
Other operating expenditures.........cccccceeeeeeeecnnnnneenn. 271,156 261,170
Capital outlay......cceeeeeiiiciiee e, - 61,219
[Le 1= PSSR 2,988,336 2,968,197 20,139 2,899,505
Total public safety.......ccoceeeiiiieeiieiceieeee e, 7,423,051 7,019,825 403,226 6,888,993

Public works:
Public works:

Salaries and employee benefits.......cccccevcveeeecieneenns 742,390 685,475
MaiNtENANCE.....evvvieee et e e 1,044,220 144,109
Other operating expenditures..........cccceeecvveeriveneens 286,214 254,543
Capital oUtlaY...ccccvveeeeieee e 8,420 29,427
TOtAL et 2,167,922 2,081,244 86,678 1,113,554
Public facilities:
Salaries and employee benefits.......cccccevcvveeecieneennns 261,431 311,379
Y 1T (=T o F- ] ool TSRS 207,847 208,461
Other operating expenditures..........cccceeecveeeecveneens 192,633 145,522
Capital OULlaY...ccccvveeeeieee e - 193,022
TOTAl- ettt 1,041,424 661,911 379,513 858,384
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City of Mebane, North Carolina

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
General Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

(With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020) Statement A-2
2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) 2020 Actual
Expenditures (continued)
Sanitation:
Salaries and employee benefits.........cceevevveveennenne. S 435,920 S 427,211
MaiNtENANCE......uuiiiiieieeie et 128,723 106,754
TIPPING FEES ... 493,088 424,008
Other operating expenditures..........cccceevcveeeecveerens 96,396 107,248
Capital oULlaY....cccvveeeeieee e - 11,227
TOTAl- ettt 1,306,759 1,154,127 152,632 1,076,448
Total public WOrkS........ceveviiieeeiee e 4,516,105 3,897,282 618,823 3,048,386
Recreation:
Parks and recreation:
Salaries and employee benefits.......cccccevcvieeeiiereennns 778,229 703,227
MaiNtENANCE.....ovvvceee et 217,503 205,219
Other operating expenditures..........cccceeecveeeecveneens 297,581 271,168
Capital oUlaY...ccccvveeeeieee e 839,027 163,443
TOtAL e e 2,730,062 2,132,340 597,722 1,343,057
Total recreation......ccccvveeeceeeeeciee e 2,730,062 2,132,340 597,722 1,343,057
Economic and physical development:
Planning:
Salaries and employee benefits.......cccccevcveeeeiieneennns 235,444 230,629
MaiNtENANCE....cevviieeeeeeeeeece e e 958 8,413
Professional Services.......cccoovvviviiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciieieieeeees 64,500 29,108
Downtown Revitalization Grant............cccovveeeeeeennn. - -
Other operating expenditures..........cccceecveeeeiieerens 65,006 47,604
Capital oULIaY...ccccvveeeeieee e - -
TOtAL et 608,712 365,908 242,804 315,754
Inspections:
Salaries and employee benefits.......ccccevcveeeeiieneenns 488,194 407,857
MaiNtENANCE....cevviieee et 1,593 2,250
Professional Services........ccccvevvveeiecieeesciieeeeeiee s - 522
Other operating expenditures.........ccccceeeeeeercvnnnnennn. 21,919 26,797
Capital outlay......ccceeeeeiiiciiee e, 35,293 -
JLo 1= PSR 643,704 546,999 96,705 437,426
Engineering:
City Engineer contracted services.......ccccccceeeeeveennnnns 60,000 107,011
Professional services stormwater.........cccuvvvvvvvevennnnns 81,500 -
Professional Services.......cccovvvvviiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeieeeees 289,000 370,817
TOtAL et 430,500 430,500 - 477,828
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City of Mebane, North Carolina

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

(With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020)

Statement A-2

Expenditures (continued)

Main Street Program:
Professional services

Economic development:
Other operating expenditures

Debt Service:

Principal Retirement
Interest and other charges

Total debt service
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in...cvevcee e
Transfers OUt......cccvveeeveeniieeniieens
Proceeds from long-term debt obligations issued

Total other financing sources (uses)

Fund balance appropriated

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

------------------------------------------------------

2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) 2020 Actual
S 4,688 S S -
3,985 -
33,985 8,673 25,312 -
847,092 696,446
996,800 847,092 149,708 696,446
2,713,701 2,199,172 514,529 1,927,454
1,406,526 1,239,573 166,953 1,272,748
293,137 211,159 81,978 264,189
1,699,663 1,450,732 248,931 1,536,937
22,263,314 19,263,614 2,999,700 17,009,885
(3,599,011) 1,591,595 5,190,606 2,634,480
(2,087,700) (1,144,592) 943,108 (1,183,857)
1,939,070 430,500 (1,508,570) -
(148,630) (714,092) (565,462) (1,183,857)
3,747,641 - (3,747,641) -
S - 877,503 S 877,503 1,450,623
14,842,317 13,391,694
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Comparative Balance Sheets
Capital Project Fund - City Park Project

June 30, 2021 and 2020 Statement A-3
June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
Assets
Cash and EQUIVAIENTS........cueireicrieeececeteceete ettt st S - S 34,448
T 4 ot =Te ot 1) s VPP PPN - -
TOAl @SS TS . cceiiiiiiireeeeeererrerereesssssessssssssssessssssesseseeseeeeesesessssssssssssssssssssassssses S - S 34,448

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:
ACCOUNTS PAYADIE ...ttt et e v et re et S - S 34,448
DUE t0 Other FUNAS....coei i e e e - -
TOtal [1abilitieS.cueuireeeiirreniereniirreiireneiereenierenesereesserenesessssssrsnssssensssrsnssessnssnns - 34,448

Fund balances:

Assigned for

City Park Capital OuUtlay......ccccueeeiiiieecie e - -
Total fuNd BalanCes......c.ceeuiiieniiiieeiiriiniiiteeirieeeereeiereeeeereneiereaserenssessanserennns - -
Total liabilities and fund balances..........ceeeeeereeeeeeeeeeeerrcccrrrrrrr e eeeeeeeees S - S 34,448
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City of Mebane, North Carolina

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Capital Project Fund - City Park Project
From Inception and For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Statement A-4

Revenues
Investment earnings.........oooeeeveveieiciiinnnnnnnns
Parks and Recreation Trust Fund Grant........
Miscellaneous grants........ccccceeecveeeeeeeeccnnnns

Total revenuUEs.....cceeeeeeeereeeeneeenteeeeneceeeeenenns

Expenditures
Professional Services.......ccocevvveerierneeenieennne.
Land purchase.....cccccceecvieeeeeeccciieeee e,
Capital outlay - buildings..........ccceeeevvveeennenn.
CoNSErUCTION. ...ciiiiiiiiieee et
Utility contstruction........ccccceeeevcveecccineeenneen.
EQUIPMENT..cciiiiiiiiiiiiei,

Total expenditures..........cceeveeeeeennnnnneennnnnnnnn

Revenue over (under) expenditures.............

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers in:
From General Fund for
capital improvements.........ccccceeeeeeennnnenn.
From Utility Fund for
capital improvements.........cccccceeeeeeennnnenn.
Installment purchase obligations
ISSUB.c.eveiiieeiie ettt

Total other financing sources (uses)...............

Revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures and other uses......................

Fund balance, July 1......cccooveeiiiiviieeeieees
Fund balance, June 30.........cccevreeucerrrrennnnnns
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Actual
Variance
Positive
Authorization Prior Years Current Year Total to Date (Negative)

102,758 145,142 S - 145,142 S 42,384
335,000 355,802 - 355,802 20,802
150,000 185,000 - 185,000 35,000
587,758 685,944 - 685,944 98,186
746,081 715,585 - 715,585 30,496

662,584 662,584 - 662,584 -
1,025,883 1,014,481 - 1,014,481 11,402
7,157,136 6,939,501 - 6,939,501 217,635
710,870 567,932 - 567,932 142,938
- 266,410 - 266,410 (266,410)
10,302,554 10,166,493 - 10,166,493 136,061
(9,714,796) (9,480,549) - (9,480,549) 234,247
3,091,326 3,082,617 - 3,082,617 (8,709)
793,470 567,932 - 567,932 (225,538)

5,830,000 5,830,000 - 5,830,000 -
9,714,796 9,480,549 - 9,480,549 (234,247)

- $ R R R $ -

$ R



Non-Major
Governmental Funds

Non-major governmental funds are those funds whose
revenues, expenditures/expenses, assets or liabilities
are less than 10% of corresponding totals for all
governmental or enterprise funds or less than 5% of the
aggregate amount for all governmental and enterprise
funds for the same item.

e The Mebane Mills Loft Community Development
Block Grant (CDBG) Special Revenue Fund - This
fund is used to account for all block grant funds
expended for the renovation of the old Dixie Yarns
Building into subsidized housing.

e (Capital Project Fund - This fund is used to account
for various General Fund capital expenditures that
are expected to be completed within one year.

e The Cates Farm Park Capital Project Fund - This
fund is used to account for the land purchase and
construction of the city park.






City of Mebane, North Carolina
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2021

Statement B-1

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash......cccoecveeeeciee e,

Total @SSets....ccuirrreiriennirrennierennereeenierenseeeennsenens

Liabilties and Fund Balances
Liabilities:

Accounts payable........cccoiiiiiiiiie
Total liabilities

...................................................

Fund balances:
Restricted
Economic development..........cccouveeeeeeecnviennnnnn.
Assigned
Capital improvements........cccccceeeecieeeecvee e,
Total fund balances.........ccccceeiiiiiiiiiiinnininiiinnnnnees

Total liabilities and fund balances......................

Special
Revenue Fund Capital Project Total
- CDBG - Capital Project Fund - Cates Nonmajor
Mebane Mills Fund - General Farm Park Governmental
Loft Fund Project Funds
S - S 632,121 S - S 632,121
127,459 - - 127,459
S 127,459 $ 632,121 S - S 759,580
S - S 65,270 S - S 65,270
- 65,270 - 65,270
127,459 - - 127,459
- 566,851 - 566,851
127,459 566,851 - 694,310
S 127,459 S 632,121 S - S 759,580
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City of Mebane, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Statement B-2

Revenues
Program reVenUE........c..ueeeeveeiimreeeneeeeereeee e
Interest @arnings..........oeeeeieeeeeeeccccccc
Impact Alamance grant.......cccceeceveeeeeeeecciieeeeeeeene

TOtal FEVENUES....cceeueeeerrreeeneieereerenneeeereennseeeereennnnees

Expenditures
Capital outlay - other.......ccccoveeiiieiecie e
Capital outlay - equipment........ccccceeeeviveeeciee e,

Total expenditures.........ccceeviiiiiiiiiinneeeennnneneeneennen.

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers from other funds.........ccccoevciveicciee e,
Transfers to other funds.........cccceeeeeciiieeiiieciieee,
Appropriated fund balance..........cccccoeeiiieeieiicinnnes

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)......cccccceeennnnne.

Net change in fund balances.........ccccooeeiieicciiieeeennn.
Fund balances - beginning..........cccoccevveiiieniiiinnnen.n.

Fund balances - ending........cccccceeiiiiiininininiceennnnnneees

Special
Revenue Capital Total
Fund - CDBG - Capital Project Fund- Nonmajor
Mebane Mills Project Fund - Cates Farm Governmental
Loft General Fund Park Project Funds
S 10,710 S - S - S 10,710
3,591 - - 3,591
14,301 - - 14,301
- 492,920 84,823 577,743
- 492,920 84,823 577,743
14,301 (492,920) (84,823) (563,442)
- 1,059,769 84,823 1,144,592
- 1,059,769 84,823 1,144,592
14,301 566,849 - 581,150
113,158 2 - 113,160
S 127,459 $§ 566,851 S - S 694,310
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Special Revenue Fund - CDBG - Mebane Mills Loft

From Inception and For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 Statement B-3
Actual
Variance
Current Positive
Authorization Prior Years Year Total to Date (Negative)
Revenues
(01521 C USRS S 250,000 $ 250,000 $ - S 250,000 S -
Program revenue- principal receipts....... - 76,385 10,710 87,095 87,095
Program revenue- interest receipts........ - 35,095 3,216 38,311 38,311
Investment earnings..........coeeeeeeveieiennnnne - 1,678 375 2,053 2,053
Total revenues.......ceeceeereeeeeecierneeennceennennns 250,000 363,158 14,301 377,459 127,459

Expenditures

Pedestrian improvements....................... 56,700 56,700 - 56,700 -
Historic preservation.............ccccoeeeeeennnnn. 145,645 145,645 - 145,645 -
Other actiVitieS......uvvveeeeeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee, 27,655 27,655 - 27,655 -
Administration.......ceceveeeeiiiicieeiee s 20,000 20,000 - 20,000 -
Total expenditures........cccceeeeeeveeeeeeeennnnnnns 250,000 250,000 - 250,000 -
Revenue over (under) expenditures......... - 113,158 14,301 127,459 127,459
Net change in fund balance...........c..coeu... S - S 113,158 14,301 S 127,459 S 127,459
Fund balance, July 1.........ccccooeiiiniinnnnnnn. 113,158
Fund balance, June 30.........ccccceeerrrrrreeeeee S 127,459
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City of Mebane, North Carolina

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Capital Project Fund - General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Statement B-4

Variance
Budget Positive.
Authorization Actual (Negative) 2020 Actual
Expenditures
Y o SRS S - S - S - S 18,090
Holt St Greenway........cccceeeeevcviieeee e 24,257 24,256 1 29,089
Foust Road widening.......cccceevvveeeecveececenee e 265,000 117,390 147,610 -
Bike and Ped maintenance.........cccvveveveveveveeennnns - - - 6,662
3rd Street Alleyway- drainage maint................. - - - 121,575
Streets MainteNanCe........coovvvevevviiieeeeeeeeeeeeinns 600,000 - 600,000 1,067,980
Sidewalk construction......cccccvvveveveveiiinnnn, 201,603 65,264 136,339 253,313
Public works vehicles.........ccveeeeieieiiiiiiiiiiiiininnnn, 430,000 156,910 273,090 361,041
Inspections and planning building..................... 213,000 - 213,000 -
Fire vehicles.......cccccceeiiiiiiieeecce - - - 88,438
Capital Outlay - Lake Michael Dam.................... 350,000 129,100 220,900 -
Capital Outlay - Cates Farm Park.........cccccveeen..ee. 2,555 - 2,555 3,500
Total expenditures........cccerreeeeceeereeeennccenneeennnnens 2,086,415 492,920 1,593,495 1,949,688
Revenue over (under) expenditures................... (2,086,415) (492,920) (1,593,495) (1,949,688)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers in:
From General Fund for
capital improvements.........ccccceeeeeeiiiiiieee e, 1,406,739 1,059,769 346,970 827,566
Appropriated fund balance..........ccccccevveeeeennni. 679,676 - 679,676 -
Total other financing sources (US€S)........ccceeeuvee... 2,086,415 1,059,769 1,026,646 827,566
Revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures and other uses........cccccceveeeereenneen S - 566,849 S  (566,849) (1,122,122)
Fund balance, July 1.......ccccccooieiniiiieeeeee, 2 1,122,124
Fund balance, June 30........cccccceeeerrerreeeeeeeenneennnnes S 566,851 S 2
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City of Mebane, North Carolina

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Capital Project Fund - Cates Farm Park Project

From Inception and For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Statement B-5

Expenditures
Professional services........cccceeeeveeercveeesvennnne
Design and engineering.......c.ccccoeevvveeeeeenennns
Construction administration...........ccceeeveee.n.
Construction........ooeeeeeeeeeeeeccceee

Total expenditures..........cceeveeeeevnnnnnneeennnnnnnns

Revenue over (under) expenditures.............

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers in:
From General Fund for
capital improvements........c.cccceeeeveeernnenn.

Total other financing sources (uses)...............

Revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures and other uses......................

Fund balance, July 1.......ccoovveiiiiiieeeieeees
Fund balance, June 30.........cccovreeuecerrrreennnnns
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Actual
Variance
Positive
Authorization Prior Years Current Year Total to Date (Negative)
888 $ S - S - S 888
25,500 - - 25,500
18,250 - - 18,250
636,323 84,823 84,823 551,500
680,961 84,823 84,823 596,138
(680,961) (84,823) (84,823) 596,138
680,961 84,823 84,823 (596,138)
680,961 84,823 84,823 (596,138)
-3 - s - s .
$ R
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Proprietary Funds

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that
are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises, where the intent of the
government's board is that the costs of providing goods
or services to the general public on a continuing basis
be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges; or where the government's board has decided
that periodic determination of net income is
appropriate for accountability purposes.

e Water and Sewer Fund - This fund is used to
account for the operations of the City’s water and
sewer system.

e System Development Capital Reserve Fund - This
fund is specifically dedicated to setting aside
financial resources for long term or large-scale
capital projects for the proprietary fund. Revenue
generated from system development fees are used
as a funding source.

e Utility - Capital Project Fund - This fund is used to
account for various Utility capital expenditures that
are expected to be completed within one year.

e WRRF Renovation - Capital Project Fund - This
fund is used to account for the construction upgrade
of the City’s water resource recovery facility.

¢ WRREF 0.5 MGD Expansion - Capital Project Fund
- This fund is used to account for the construction
expansion of the City’s water resource recovery
facility.






City of Mebane, North Carolina
Comparative Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2021 and 2020 Statement C-1
June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and EQUIVAIENTS........c.uiiviiieceeictecte ettt ettt ettt ettt et ere et e reenns S 7,511,270 $ 7,586,901
(Y o T (=Yoo= 1] o TR 3,136,703 1,573,791
Accounts Receivable, net - Billed........eeeviviiiiiiiiiiiii, 657,559 543,920
Accounts Receivable, net - unbilled.......coooooeeoeoeoeeerrer s 320,655 288,958
Other reCRIVADIES. ... ereeeeees 6,419 2,855
Due from other BOVEINMENTS.......cciviiie it e et s e e eaaee s - -
T 1o I =T o TSP - -

B o] = eV T £=T 0 o Y=L £ T RUOORPUPRPRNY 11,632,606 9,996,425

Non-current assets:
Capital assets:

Land and other non-depreciable assets.........cccceviiieciiiiiieie e 1,122,119 877,922
Other capital assets, net of depreciation.........cccueeeiiiiiiciiiieee e 53,865,126 51,843,353
o) €= oo 11 = B Y <L S 54,987,245 52,721,275
TOTAl NON-CUIMENT @SSEES. . uuuurrrrrrirririirererrrerereeeeeeeeererererererrrrerrrteteteeeeeseeeeeteeeeeeeeesesens 54,987,245 52,721,275
TOTAl @SSOTS...ciuuuirrreirtenirrreerreneireresertesssressseresssssenssessassssssssssensssssnssesensssssnssssanee 66,619,851 62,717,700
Deferred oUtflOWS Of F@SOUICES......ccivuiiieeiiteniirteeieteniereneieerenerennseerenserennsessnnnens 971,957 692,831
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources........cccccceeriiiiiriiirrneeeeeeeennninnnnn. S 67,591,808 $ 63,410,531
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities..........cocvveeieieeieeieceeceee e S 323,697 S 583,206
Accrued interest Payable.........o i e 36,135 40,063
DUE 10 Other GOVEINMENTS.......viiieeiiee ettt e e e et e e e erre e e raae e e e sareeeeaes 262,325 -
Payable from restricted assetsS.......ccccuiiieiiieiiiiiiie e 671,341 602,881
CompPensated @bDSENCES......cuuii ittt saaee s 66,299 68,558
Long-term debt - CUITENT.....cccvieeece et e e 767,542 758,542
Total cUrreNnt llabiliTieS....uuuuereieiieiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeee e 2,127,339 2,053,250
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated @DSENCES. .....c..uii e ree s 12,690 7,518
Net Pension [ability.......ccueeri oo 542,215 405,087
Other postemployment benefits........cccciieiiiieeciie e 1,494,607 1,061,570
Long-term debt - NONCUITENT.......uivieiie et 5,957,950 6,725,492
Total noncurrent liabilities. ... 8,007,462 8,199,667
Total liabilities.....ccooeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeccccceeeenersrssssssese s e s e e s e e s e e e e e e s snsnnsnsssssssssnns 10,134,801 10,252,917
Deferred INfIOWS Of rESOUICES........ciieeiiiieiiteniireeirtenirereseeteseerennssseassssesssesennsens 94,556 111,730
Net Position
Net investment in capital @SSETS......cuiiiiiiiiiiciee e 48,261,754 45,237,242
Restricted for future system development.......cccceeciiiieeiiieciiiieee e 2,465,362 970,910
7Y T o Lot =T IO PP 6,635,335 6,837,732
Total Net POSItION......ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiirrreeeerrreeeee s srrsssssess s s s s s e s e s s s s s e e e sessssnnnnnsssnns: 57,362,451 53,045,884
Total liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, and net position...................... S 67,591,808 $ 63,410,531
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Combining Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds - By Subfund

June 30, 2021 Statement C-2
System WRRF
Development Capital Renovation
Operating Capital Project Fund -  Capital
Fund Reserve Fund Utility Project Fund Total
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and equivalents.........ccccceevvevveveeieeennnennn. S 6,705,454 S - S 708,576 $ 97,240 $§ 7,511,270
Restricted cash.....cccceeceeeccieeecciee e 671,341 2,465,362 - - 3,136,703
Accounts receivable, net - billed..................... 657,559 - - - 657,559
Accounts receivable, net - unbilled................. 320,655 - - - 320,655
Other receivables........ccccceeeeciiieeiieecciieeeeee, 6,419 - - - 6,419
Due from other governments..........ccceevuvenne - - - - -
Prepaid items......coeveeiiieieeeceee e - - - - -
Non-capital eliminations........cccccoeceeeriverennnen. 510,821 - (510,821) - -
Total current assets......ccceveevceveeeecveeeeceee e 8,872,249 2,465,362 197,755 97,240 11,632,606
Non-current assets:
Capital assets:
Land and other non-depreciable assets........ 1,122,119 - - - 1,122,119
Other capital assets, net of depreciation...... 53,865,126 - - - 53,865,126
Total capital assets......ccocecvvvieeeieicciiieeecces 54,987,245 - - - 54,987,245
Total NON-CUIreNt aSSetS.....uuvvvvrrrvereeieieieierereees 54,987,245 - - - 54,987,245
Total assets.....cccceerreieeeieeeeeeeeennnnnnnesseseeeeeennns 63,859,494 2,465,362 197,755 97,240 66,619,851
Deferred outflows of resources.......cccceereunnenee 971,957 - - - 971,957
Total assets and deferred outflows
Of FE@SOUICES...ccoveiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeneeeeneeenssssnnns S 64,831,451 $ 2,465,362 S 197,755 § 97,240 S 67,591,808
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities........ S 254,172 S - S - S 69,525 S 323,697
Accrued interest payable.........cccoveeeeeeicnnnennn. 36,135 - - - 36,135
Due to other governments...........cccceeeevvrenneee. 262,325 - - - 262,325
Payable from restricted assets.........ccccueeeeenne. 671,341 - - - 671,341
Compensated absences.........cccceceveenercienneens 66,299 - - - 66,299
Long-term debt - current........cccceeveveeeeiieennns 767,542 - - - 767,542
Total current liabilities.........ccccoeeeivieeeieeinneen. 2,057,814 - - 69,525 2,127,339
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences.........cccecveeevcvveeennnennn. 12,690 - - - 12,690
Net pension liability.......ccccceeeiieiiieeiiieiee. 542,215 - - - 542,215
Other postemployment benefits..................... 1,494,607 - - - 1,494,607
Long-term debt - noncurrent.........cccccvevenneen. 5,957,950 - - - 5,957,950
Total noncurrent liabilities........ccccccveveiiiiinnnnn. 8,007,462 - - - 8,007,462
Total liabilities.......ccccceeiiiiiiiiiiiininieeeeeeeeennnnnnnn 10,065,276 - - 69,525 10,134,801
Deferred inflows of resources.........cccceervennenne 94,556 - - - 94,556
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets.........cc.cuveue.. 48,261,754 - - - 48,261,754
Restricted for future system development..... - 2,465,362 - - 2,465,362
unrestricted ......ccovveeieiiiiiiee e 6,409,865 - 197,755 27,715 6,635,335
Total net position........ccccceeiiiinniinininieeeeennnnneee. 54,671,619 2,465,362 197,755 27,715 57,362,451
Total liabilities, deferred outflows
of resources, and net position.........ccccueue... S 64,831,451 S 2,465,362 S 197,755 S 97,240 S 67,591,808
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Funds - By Subfund

June 30, 2021 Statement C-3

System WRRF

Development Capital Renovation
Operating Capital Project Fund -  Capital
Fund Reserve Fund Utility Project Fund Eliminations Total
Operating Revenues

Charges for services........cccoovevveeveeneenne. S 6,839,089 $ - S - S - S - S 6,839,089
Water and sewer taps........cccecevvveeeennn. 37,002 - - - - 37,002
Connection fees.......cccovvveveeeeeeveeeceeennne 154,900 1,527,703 - - - 1,682,603
Miscellaneous........ccevvveveveveeiiiiiiiiiininnnn. 594,037 - - - - 594,037
Total operating revenues..................... 7,625,028 1,527,703 - - - 9,152,731

Operating Expenses

Administration, meters and billing....... 900,260 - - - - 900,260
Utility maintenance........cccceeeveeevneenne 2,632,207 - - - - 2,632,207
ENgIiNEering.......cccvvvvvvvevereeeieieieieceeeeeen, 260,000 - - - - 260,000
Water resource recovery facility.......... 2,151,072 - - - - 2,151,072
Non-departmental.........cccccceeeeninenen.n. - - - - - -
Depreciation.......cccccuvvvvvvvivivirinieienenenens 1,626,168 - - - - 1,626,168
Total operating expenses..........ccceeunueee 7,569,707 - - - - 7,569,707
Operating income (l0sS)......cccceeveeeeennnee 55,321 1,527,703 - - - 1,583,024

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Interest and investment revenue......... 23,478 4,595 - - - 28,073
(014 1 1=1 SN (97,543) - - - - (97,543)
Interest eXPENSe......ccceevueeeeevveeeecvveeeenens (87,254) - - - - (87,254)

Amortization of bonds..........ccccovveeeenn. - - - - - -

Total nonoperating
revenues (eXpPenses)......ccccceeeeeneeenennens (161,319) 4,595 - - - (156,724)

Income (loss) before

contributions and transfers.................. (105,998) 1,532,298 - - - 1,426,300
Capital contributions...........cccceeeennnneeen. 2,890,267 - - - - 2,890,267
Expense transfer from projects.............. 904,279 - (487,846) (416,433) - -
Transfers in.....occeeeceeeeeee e, - - 487,846 - (487,846) -
Transfers oUt.......coeeeveeeeiieecciie e, (450,000) (37,846) - - 487,846 -
Change in net position.........cccececveeenis 3,238,548 1,494,452 - (416,433) - 4,316,567
Total net position - beginning................ 51,433,071 970,910 197,755 444,148 - 53,045,884
Total net position - ending................... S 54,671,619 $§ 2,465,362 S 197,755 § 27,715 S - S 57,362,451
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City of Mebane, North Carolina

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget to Actual

Water and Sewer Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

(With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020) Statement C-4
2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) 2020 Actual
Revenues
Charges for services:
Water SAlES. ..ot S 3,355,092 S 2,987,707
Sewer Charges......ccovveeeccieeeeecieee e 3,436,667 3,094,179
Water and sewer taps......cccccveevvveereeiveeesscnvnenen. 37,002 12,400
TOtAl e 5,933,600 6,828,761 895,161 6,094,286
Other operating revenues:
Other operating revenues..........cccceveevcvveeeeennnen. 748,941 610,285
TOtAl e 690,034 748,941 58,907 610,285
Other nonoperating revenues:
(0] 1 1T PRSPPI (97,543) 16,655
Interest and investment earnings..........cccocu..... 23,478 79,501
TOtAl e 49,000 (74,065) (123,065) 96,156
Total revenuUES.........ceuereeiieeiieeiereeiereeereeceeneeeenes 6,672,634 7,503,637 831,003 6,800,727
Expenditures
Administration, meters and billing:
Salaries and employee benefits..........cc.uce..... 707,312 673,566
SUPPHIES. ..ttt 24,946 23,621
Other operating expenditures..........ccccccvveeennns 157,221 134,557
TOtAl e et 1,046,159 889,479 156,680 831,744
Utility maintenance:
Salaries and employee benefits..........cc.uc..... 951,134 883,543
Chemicals.....coooceiieeiiiiee e 90,678 95,100
SUPPIIES. ettt 114,169 110,486
MaiNtENANCE.....evvvevivicccieeeee e, 166,120 195,843
Purchases of Water ........cccoevvvvvvveeeeeeeeeeeieinnnns 839,426 780,621
Highway 119 project expenses.........ccccveeeennee - -
Other operating expenditures..........ccccccvveeenns 318,816 311,473
TOtAl e et 2,890,602 2,480,343 410,259 2,377,066
Engineering:
City Engineer contracted services.................... 84,000 38,267
Other operating expenditures.........cccccccvveeenns 176,000 208,298
TOtAl e et 300,000 260,000 40,000 246,565
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City of Mebane, North Carolina

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget to Actual
Water and Sewer Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

(With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020) Statement C-4
2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) 2020 Actual

Expenditures (continued)
Water resource recovery facility:

Salaries and employee benefits.........ccoveu..n.. S 697,614 S 690,736
Chemicals......cooociivieiiiee e 99,026 82,754
SUPPIES. ..ttt 35,026 36,813
MaiNtENANCE.....evvvevriiicccceeeeeee e, 481,343 460,814
Other operating expenditures..........ccccccvveeennns 236,084 245,428
TOtAl e et 1,905,333 1,549,093 356,240 1,516,545
Non-departmental:
Other operating expenditures.........cccceeeuveeeennns - 11,111
TOtAleeeieeeeit e 61,980 - 61,980 11,111

Debt Service:

Principal Retirement.........ccccoceveeiiiieieeciieeeene 945,543 758,542 187,001 751,542
Interest and other charges........cccccevevvveeernneenn. 203,383 91,182 112,201 103,843
1o ] -] PO 1,148,926 849,724 299,202 855,385

Capital outlay:

Miscellaneous water........ccoceeveeeeieiiiiiiiivneeineenns 763,401 423,017 340,384 709,605
Miscellaneous SEWEeTr........ceeveeeeeeieiiiiiiiieiieeeeeenn, 275,052 162,421 112,631 106,391
TOtAl i 1,038,453 585,438 453,015 815,996
Total expenditures.......cccccevceeeiiiniiinnneennnsiicinnnnnn 8,391,453 6,614,077 1,777,376 6,654,412
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over eXpenditures.........cccceveeenennennneneeeeeeeeeneenns (1,718,819) 889,560 2,608,379 146,315

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers iN.....eiocee e - - - -

TranSTers OUt...uuuueeiieeieiiiieiiiiieeieeeee e eeeecesreevaeees (1,375,000) (450,000) 925,000 -
Total other financing sources (uses).................... (1,375,000) (450,000) 925,000 -
Fund balance appropriated........c.cccceeevverieeeiveene 3,093,819 - (3,093,819) -

Revenues and other sources over
expenditures and other uses.......cc.ccceeeeerrerneenn. S - S 439,560 S 439,560 S 146,315
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City of Mebane, North Carolina

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget to Actual
Water and Sewer Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

(With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020) Statement C-4
2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) 2020 Actual

Reconciliation from budgetary basis
(modified accrual) to full accrual:

Revenues and other sources over

expenditures and other uses.........ccevveeeereeeennnne S 439,560 S 146,315
Reconciling items:

Principal retirement.........cccoceeeeiieeeicciee e, 758,542 751,542
Capital outlays......ccceeeeeciiieieciieecee e 585,438 815,996
Increase (decrease) in receivable allowance....... 15,632 (7,881)
Increase (decrease) in unbilled receivables......... 31,696 45,411
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest

payable. ..., 3,928 3,637
(Increase) decrease in vacation pay (2,915) (7,522)
Increase (decrease) in deferred outflows

Of resources - PeNSIONS......ccueeeeecveeeeeecveeeeennnnns (12,721) (508)
(Increase) decrease in net pension liability.......... (137,128) (72,708)
(Increase) decrease in deferred inflows

of resources - PeNSIONS.......cueeeeecveeeeeecveeeeeennnne - 1,369
Increase (decrease) in deferred outflows

of resources - OPEB.......coovviiiviiiiiieieeeeeeec e 291,847 167,727
(Increase) decrease in deferred inflows

of resources - OPEB........ocoooiiviivvnirveeeieeecc e 17,174 1,157
(Increase) decrease in OPEB liability (433,037) (242,031)
Depreciation.......cueeeccccieee e (1,626,168) (1,551,766)
Amortization of deferred loss

on refunding......cccccceeeeeiciieiccieec e, - -

Capital contributions........ccccceeeeeciiee e 2,890,267 5,400,880
Interest income from Water and Sewer

Capital Project FuNds........cccecevvvieenieenciieenieenn 4,595 9,701
Capital asset transfers from

other funds........coeeeciieiieiieec e - 1,394
Restricted income from System Development

Capital Reserve Fund.........ccccceeecvveeeeiciieeecennes 1,527,703 902,521
Net Transfers to (from) Capital Project funds...... (37,846) (510,821)
Total reconciling items........cccceeeevieieivciier e 3,877,007 5,708,098
Change in net position........cccceeeeeeeevreeeeecreeneenne S 4,316,567 S 5,854,413
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City of Mebane, North Carolina

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget to Actual
System Development Capital Reserve Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

(With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020) Statement C-5
2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) 2020 Actual
Revenues
Charges for services:
System Development Fees- Water...................... S S 392,211 S S 238,192
System Development Fees- Sewer...................... 1,135,492 664,329
TOtAl e 650,000 1,527,703 877,703 902,521
Other nonoperating revenues:
Interest and investment earnings..................... 4,595 9,701
o] - | OSSR 2,500 4,595 2,095 9,701
Total revVeNnUES.....cceeeeceireeeeecierreeeeeeeereennnseeseeens 652,500 1,532,298 879,798 912,222

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures.........ccccveeiiinineeeeeennneeeennnsnnnes 652,500 1,532,298 879,798 912,222

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Utility Capital ReServe.......ccccevcveeevveeeecvee e, (477,500) - 477,500 -
Transfers to other funds:
Utility Capital Project Fund..........cccccvveeinveennne. (175,000) (37,846) 137,154 (527,920)
Appropriated fund balance..........ccccccvvveeiieenns - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses)................... (652,500) (37,846) 614,654 (527,920)

Revenues and other sources over
expenditures and other uses........ccccceveeeeeecrnnee S - S 1,494,452 S 1,494,452 S 384,302
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City of Mebane, North Carolina

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget to Actual
Capital Project Fund - Utility

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

(With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020) Statement C-6
2021
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) 2020 Actual
Expenditures
OVersizing SEWEr liNeS........ccveveereeeieieereeereeenens S S - S S 695,399
Meter changeout project........cccceeeveeeecveeerveennn, 487,846 510,821
Arbor Creek outfall........ccccoeeiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee - -
WRRF floodwall........cccooeiiiiiiiiiiiieeeceeieeee, - -
Total expenditures........cccceeeeiiiiiiieeeceeeeeneneeeeennnns 859,601 487,846 371,755 1,206,220

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures........ccccvviiiiiiinneeeennnnneeneennnees (859,601) (487,846) 371,755 (1,206,220)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers in (out):
From Water and Sewer Fund for

utility capital improvements.........cccceccuvveeeenn. 450,000 450,000 - -
From Utility Capital Reserve Fund
for utility capital improvements...................... 175,000 37,846 (137,154) 527,920

To Water and Sewer Fund
for current expenditures........ccccceeeevvieeeeennnns - - - -
Appropriated fund balance..............cccceveennennn. 234,601 - (234,601) -

Total other financing sources (uses)................... 859,601 487,846 (371,755) 527,920

Revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures and other uses.........cccceeeeeeeeeennne. S - S - S - S (678,300)
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City of Mebane, North Carolina

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non - GAAP)

WRRF Renovation Capital Project Fund

From Inception and For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 Statement C-7

Actual

Variance
Positive
Authorization Prior Years Current Year Totalto Date (Negative)

Expenditures

Professional Services.....coeveveveveeeveveverenn. S 200,000 S - S - S - S 200,000
Design and engineering.........cccceeeeuveeenn. 530,000 138,852 416,433 555,285 (25,285)
Construction administration................... 530,000 - - - 530,000
ConStrucCtion......cooveevvvvcieeieeeeeeericeee s 6,084,176 - - - 6,084,176
Contingency.....oeeeeeeeeeeeecececcces - - - - -
Total expenditures........cccceeeriieiiiiiiiinnnnes 7,344,176 138,852 416,433 555,285 6,788,891
Revenue over (under) expenditures....... (7,344,176) (138,852) (416,433) (555,285) 6,788,891

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers in:
From Water and Sewer Fund for

utility capital improvements............... 583,000 583,000 - 583,000 -
Installment purchase obligations
[ UT=To TSP 6,761,176 - - - 6,761,176
Total other financing sources (uses)......... 7,344,176 583,000 - 583,000 6,761,176
Revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures and other uses................ S - S 444,148 S (416,433) S 27,715 S 13,550,067
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City of Mebane, North Carolina

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non - GAAP)

WRRF 0.5 MGD Expansion Capital Project Fund

From Inception and For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 Statement C-8

Actual

Variance
Positive
Authorization Prior Years Current Year Totalto Date (Negative)

Expenditures

Design and engineering...........cceeeveeveenn.. S 900,000 $ - S - S - S 900,000
ContingencCy.....ooeveeeeeeeeieecee 25,000 - - - 25,000
Total expenditures........cccerveeennieerreennnnnns 925,000 - - - 925,000
Revenue over (under) expenditures....... (925,000) - - - 925,000

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers in:
From Water and Sewer Fund for
utility capital improvements............... 925,000 - - - (925,000)
Total other financing sources (uses)......... 925,000 - - - (925,000)

Revenues and other sources over (under)

expenditures and other uses................ S - S - $ - S - $ -
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non - GAAP)
Special Revenue Fund - ARPA

From Inception and For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 Statement C-9
Actual
Variance
Positive
Authorization Prior Years Current Year Totalto Date (Negative)
Revenues
ARPA Grant Proceeds.......ccccueeeeeeeeeennnn.. S 2,380,000 S - S - S - S 2,380,000
Total revenues........ccooveeericnvuneeerisnnennnn. 2,380,000 - - - 2,380,000

Expenditures

Capital outlay - other........ccccceeeeennnneeen.. 2,380,000 - - - 2,380,000
Total expenditures........cccceeeeeeeeeeeeeennnnnns 2,380,000 - - - 2,380,000
Revenue over (under) expenditures....... - - - - -

Revenues over (under)
expenditures and other uses................ S - S - S - S - S -
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Additional
Financial Data

This section contains additional information on property
taxes and interfund transfers.

e Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable
e Analysis of Current Tax Levy

e Schedule of Ten Largest Taxpayers






City of Mebane, North Carolina
Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

June 30, 2021 Schedule D-1
Uncollected Uncollected
Balance_ Collections Balance
Fiscal Year 6/30/2020  Additions and Credits 6/30/2021
2020-2021....c ittt et st e s sa e e s S - $ 11,273,675 §$11,233,082 S 40,593
2019-2020....ccctererrrerie e eeeneeees st sreesr e et e s assaerenne s 36,720 - 23,366 13,354
2018-2019... ittt e e s 32,228 - 19,380 12,848
2017-2018....cc ettt s e e sa e s 3,922 - 939 2,983
2006-2017 .. ittt e e e e eaees 3,422 - 1,142 2,280
2015-2016....cuuueiiiiiiiniriiiiieirrrrerrrerere e e e e eeaees 5,073 - 452 4,621
2014-2015.... e e e e eeees 3,628 - (656) 4,284
2013-2014...c i e e e eeees 5,058 - 554 4,504
2012-2013...cirrrrrrrre e e e e e e e eeees 5,811 - 719 5,092
20072-2012.. it e e et eeees 4,733 - 578 4,155
B0 0 0 PO PPPPPPPPPPPPPOE 6,604 - 6,604 -
S 107,199 §$ 11,273,675 S 11,286,160 94,714
Less: Allowance for uncollectible accounts (General FUNd)........cccccveveeiieriiiiee e 11,815
Ad valorem taxes reCeiVable - NET.......ccciiireieieeiiitreiirteeiertneieteneresssietasserssssssssssessssssssassessnsssssanses S 82,899

Reconciliation with revenues:

Ad valorem taxes - GENEIal FUNG.......uuuiiiiieiiiiieieeeeeee ettt e s e s e s s S 11,339,347
Add (subtract):
Penalties and interest, Net Of diISCOUNTS........ooviiiiii i e (7,411)
Amount written off for tax year 2010-2011.........ueeeeiiieeeciee e et e eere e erree e ere e e e are e e snre e e sraeeeeas 6,604
Refunds and other adjuStMENTS.........oocuiiiiiiiieccer e e sre e e st e e enee e e s e enneas (52,380)
Total coOllections AN CreditS......cciiieeiiireeiiieeirreneiereniereeeiereesssrsseseresssssssssessssssssnssessasssssnnsssssssssane: S 11,286,160
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Analysis of Current Tax Levy
City - Wide Levy

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 Schedule D-2
City - Wide Total Levy
Property
Excluding
Registered Registered
Total Property Amount of Motor. Motor_
Valuation Rate Levy Vehicles Vehicles
Tax levy:
Real Property ....coeeeeeeeeeeeeecreesveeeeeneen $1,754,545,319 0.47 S 8,246,363 S 8,246,363 S -
Personal property .....ccccceeeeviieeeeeeccnnneennn. 602,823,617 0.47 2,833,271 1,992,136 841,135
Public service companies.........cccceveruneenn. 19,101,702 0.47 89,778 89,778 -
YU o1 o] 7 | U 2,376,470,638 11,169,412 10,328,277 841,135
Less: Homestead exemptions.................. (243,617) 0.47 (1,145) (1,145) -
Totals...cciieeicecceeneereeereerre e cnnnnneeeeees $ 2,376,227,021 11,168,267 10,327,132 841,135
Advertising, interest cost and
late filing fees...ccccvvveiiriieiieeeeeeee 13,294 13,294 -
GrosS leVY ..o 11,181,561 10,340,426 841,135
Release and adjustments........cccccueeneen. 92,114 92,114 -
Net leVY....ooccrieeeeeeeeee e, 11,273,675 10,432,540 841,135
Uncollected taxes
atJune 30, 2021...cceeeviieiieeree e 40,593 33,158 7,435
Current year taxes collected.................. $11,233,082 S 10,399,382 $§ 833,700
Current levy collection percentage........ 99.64% 99.68% 99.12%
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City of Mebane, North Carolina

Analysis of Current Tax Levy

City - Wide Levy

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 Schedule D-3

Secondary Market Disclosures:
Assessed Valuation:

Assessment Ratio (NOTE 1)....ccueieeuieiiciieeeeieeceee e 100%
Current Year Rate Prior Year Rate
REAI PrOPEItY....viieeecvecti ettt ettt eete et eteereeeteevesreesteeaeereens S 1,754,545,319 S -
Personal Property.. ...t e e 598,571,702 4,251,915
Public service companies (NOte 2).......cccceeeeeieeeeciieeeciiee e 19,101,702 -
Total Assessed Valuation......ccccccueverurereieirieeeeeeeeeieiereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeens 2,372,218,723 4,251,915
Tax Rate Per S100.......c.oeeiieiieieeieeee et eeee ettt saeens 0.47 0.47
11,149,428 19,984
VY ettt e ettt e e et e et e et e et ee e en e et e eeeaenne $ 11,169,412

Note 1: Percentage of appraised value has been established by statute.
Note 2: Valuation of railroads, telephone companies and other utilities
as determined by the North Carolina Property Tax Commission.
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City of Mebane, North Carolina

Ten Largest Taxpayers
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 Schedule D-4
Percentage
of Total
Assessed Assessed
Name Type of Enterprise Valuation Tax Levy  Valuation
GKN Automotive
ComMpoNeNts......uuvvviveeereeeeeeeerereenns Auto Components Manufacturing............. $103,007,774 S 484,137 4.33%
Wal-Mart......cooovevcieeeeciee e, 0] = OSSP 96,268,596 S 452,462 4.05%
Liggett Group - One Hundred
Maple, LLC....oeevreeeeier e, Tobacco Manufacturing........cccceeeevveennnenn. 72,599,434 $ 341,217 3.06%
Nypro, Inc. (a Jabil Company)........ Plastics Manufacturing...........cccceeecveeennnenn. 48,851,275 $ 229,601 2.06%
Lotus Bakeries US LLC.................... Natural Snack Product Manufacturing....... 44,471,513 $ 209,016 1.87%
Tanger Properties LMTD Partner... Retail......cccccocceeiiiieeeiniiieceee e 43,885,868 S 206,264 1.85%
Keystone at Mebane Oaks, LLC...... Apartment CompleX......cceecvveeevcreeeeicieeennns 36,387,530 $ 171,021 1.53%
Cambro Manufacturing Co............ Restaurant SUpplier........cccoeevvveiiieeeecieeens 35,350,022 $ 166,145 1.49%
Morinaga America Foods, Inc........ Japanese confectionery.........cccceeeveeernnennn. 31,928,071 $ 150,062 1.34%
Sandvik, INC...ccoovvvvviviiiiiiiiieieeee Metal CUtting.....ccovcveeeerieeeeee e 27,588,164 S 129,664 1.16%
$ 540,338,247 $ 2,539,589 22.74%
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Statistical Section

This part of the City of Mebane’s comprehensive annual
financial report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information in the
financial statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information say about the government’s
overall financial health.

e Financial Trends - These schedules contain trend
information to help the reader understand how the
government’s financial performance and well-being have
changed over time.

e Revenue Capacity - These schedules contain
information to help the reader assess the government’s
most significant local revenue source, the property tax.

e Debt Capacity - These schedules present information to
help the reader assess the affordability of the
government’s current levels of outstanding debt and the
government’s ability to issue additional debt in the
future.

e Demographic and Economic Information - These
schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to
help the reader understand the environment within
which the government’s financial activities take place.

e Operating Information - These schedules contain
service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the government’s
financial report relates to the services the government
provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these
schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual financial
report for the relevant year.



City of Mebane, North Carolina
Net Position by Component

Last Ten Fiscal Years Table 1
(Accrual Basis of Accounting) Page 1 of 2
Fiscal Year Ending June 30,
Governmental activities 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Net investment in capital assets........ccoevvevveereevenene S 26,347,904 S 28,863,807 S 33,039,857 S 32,011,821 S 34,801,671
RESEIICEE. .. e 497,614 755,213 2,594,241 5,225,747 2,589,616
UNrestricted........ooooiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeece e 9,863,083 10,432,825 6,195,064 5,185,319 7,502,406

Total governmental activities net position................ S 36,708,601

$ 40,051,845

$ 41,829,162

$ 42,422,887

$ 44,893,693

Business-type activities
Net investment in capital assets.........cccoceeevvveenneenn. $ 25,760,951
[T 1 g Lot (=Y USSR -
Unrestricted... 10,903,051

$ 29,700,671

8,348,062

$ 31,622,606

6,415,219

$ 33,155,614

5,635,431

$ 34,178,396

7,589,047

Total business-type activities net position................. S 36,664,002

$ 38,048,733

$ 38,037,825

$ 38,791,045

$ 41,767,443

Primary government
S 52,108,855
497,614
20,766,134

Net investment in capital assets.........cccoceevviveenineenn.
Restricted.....coocvieeeieecciieeeeen,
Unrestricted

$ 58,564,478
755,213
18,780,887

S 64,662,463
2,594,241
12,610,283

$ 65,167,435

5,225,747
10,820,750

$ 68,980,067
2,589,616
15,091,453

Total primary government activities net position...... S 73,372,603

$ 78,100,578

$ 79,866,987

$ 81,213,932

$ 86,661,136

Governmental Activities - Net Assets by Component
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Net Position by Component

Last Ten Fiscal Years Table 1
(Accrual Basis of Accounting) Page 2 of 2
Fiscal Year Ending June 30,
Governmental activities 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Net investment in capital assets........ccceevevevverrenne. $ 30,319,096 $ 40,610,954 S 44,539,110 $ 48,932,506 $ 53,020,166
[T 1 o Lot =T IS RURN 2,615,433 2,757,579 2,844,468 2,535,935 3,005,430
UNrestricted.. ... 14,338,635 6,147,464 6,328,882 5,788,509 4,859,788
Total governmental activities net position............... S 47,273,164 $ 49,515,997 $ 53,712,460 $ 57,256,950 $ 60,885,384
Business-type activities
Net investment in capital assets........cccveeeevevverrenne. S 34,527,281 $ 38,122,626 S 38,984,945 S 45,237,242 S 48,261,754
[T 1 o Lot (=T IS UEURN - - 586,608 970,910 2,465,362
Unrestricted... 8,948,578 8,413,024 7,619,918 6,837,732 6,635,335
Total business-type activities net position............... S 43,475,859 $ 46,535,650 S 47,191,471 $ 53,045,884 $ 57,362,451
Primary government
Net investment in capital assets........ccceeeevevverrennne. S 64,846,377 $ 78,733,580 S$ 83,524,055 S 94,169,748 $ 101,281,920
Restricted.....ccoecvvieeeieeccieeeee, 2,615,433 2,757,579 3,431,076 3,506,845 5,470,792
Unrestricted 23,287,213 14,560,488 13,948,800 12,626,241 11,495,123
Total primary government activities net position..... $ 90,749,023 $ 96,051,647 S 100,903,931 $ 110,302,834 $ 118,247,835

Notes:

(1) 2020 includes a prior period restatement of $427,347; 2018 includes a prior period restatement of $2,337,035;
2017 includes a prior period restatement of $15,099; 2016 includes a prior period restatement of $545,860;

2015 includes a prior period restatement of $(531,756).

Business-type Activities - Net Assets by Component
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Changes in Net Position

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Table 2

(Page 1 of 2)

Expenses
Governmental activities:
General GOVErNMENt......c.ociviiiiiiiiiiiii s
Public safety...
Public works...
Cultural and recreation
Economic and physical development.
Interest on loNg-term debt.........cceciviririrenene ittt

Total governmental activities exper

Fiscal Year Ending June 30

Business-type activities:
Water and SEWET ... ..ccciviiiiiiiiiiii e
Total Business-type activitie:

Total primary government expense:

Program revenues

Governmental activities:
Charges for services:

General government..
Public safety.

Public works.....
Cultural and recreation.
Economic and physical developmen
Operating grants and contributions.
Capital grants and conNtribUtioNS.......c..couevririrene it

Total governmental activities program revenue
Business-type activities:
Charges for services
Capital grants and contributions...

Total business-type activities program revenue

Total primary government program revenue

Net (Expense)/Revenue

Governmental activities...
Business-type activities....

Total primary government net exp

General revenues and other changes in net position
Governmental activities:

Property taxes, levied for general purpose..
Other taxes
Grants and contributions not restricted
to specific programs.
Unrestricted investment earning
Miscellaneous..........cccvevvueureiiuennnne
Special item: Conveyance of land for economic development.
Transfers

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Unrestricted investment earnings...
Miscellaneous
TEANSTEIS. ..ttt

Total business-type activities

Total primary government

Change in Net Position

GovernmeNntal CHIVITIES. ....c.covveirireirecrce et
BUSINESS-tYPE @CHIVILIES. .. .eiueiiiieieeierie et

Change in primary government net position

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
1,854,901 $ 2,143,420 $ 2,133,862 $ 2,130,084 $ 2,058,889
4,107,505 4,571,950 4,400,496 4,929,504 5,521,196
2,802,874 2,879,581 3,887,001 3,848,791 4,169,363
1,167,086 1,224,727 1,179,235 1,163,723 1,288,321
402,748 207,551 1,137,040 584,532 1,415,831
150,948 132,923 151,011 178,086 156,676
10,486,062 11,160,152 12,888,645 12,834,720 14,610,276
3,913,101 3,901,404 4,493,195 4,288,957 4,926,465
3,913,101 3,901,404 4,493,195 4,288,957 4,926,465
14,399,163 15,061,556 17,381,840 17,123,677 19,536,741

58,255 58,381 60,900 45,470 213,347
104,563 130,897 12,986 13,964 13,905
318,717 316,398 355,012 338,920 420,613
75,649 74,518 75,170 77,245 85,535

- - 222,071 287,110 374,248
338,677 397,732 667,594 498,060 448,823
858,449 2,013,681 912,272 2,157,849 972,045

1,754,310 2,991,607 2,306,005 3,418,618 2,528,516
4,322,571 4,732,814 5,041,627 5,316,218 7,399,492
284,300 1,051,250 203,400 196,230 1,376,780
4,606,871 5,784,064 5,245,027 5,512,448 8,776,272
6,361,181 8,775,671 7,551,032 8,931,066 11,304,788
(8,731,752) (8,168,545) (10,582,640) (9,416,102) (12,081,760)
693,770 1,882,660 751,832 1,223,491 3,849,807
(8,037,982) (6,285,885) (9,830,808) (8,192,611) (8,231,953)
7,376,275 7,640,328 8,054,225 8,572,861 8,859,077
2,973,118 3,297,348 3,519,938 4,105,041 4,188,891

3,045 4,000 7,000 4,500 12,509
14,422 11,943 2,096 4,083 6,399
10,293 40,670 (7,678) 60,600 41,404

_ _ - (2,691,591) -

(1,650,000) 517,500 784,376 393,092 965,000
8,727,153 11,511,789 12,359,957 10,448,586 14,073,280
31,212 9,706 5,801 259 2,244

1,760 9,865 15,835 15,559 22,773

1,650,000 (517,500) (784,376) (393,092) (965,000)
1,682,972 (497,929) (762,740) (377,274) (939,983)
10,410,125 11,013,860 11,597,217 10,071,312 13,133,297

(4,599) 3,343,244 1,777,317 1,032,484 1,991,520

2,376,742 1,384,731 (10,908) 846,217 2,909,824

2,372,143 $ 4,727,975 $ 1,766,409 $ 1,878,701 $ 4,901,344
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Changes in Net Position

Last Ten Fiscal Years Table 2
(Accrual Basis of Accounting) (Page 2 of 2)
Fiscal Year Ending June 30
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Expenses
Governmental activities:
GENEral GOVEIMMENT........cevieieeteieieie sttt st s s s bbb nsenas 2,023,497 $ 2,227,259 $ 2,262,074 $ 2,508,794 $ 2,945,979
Public safety... 6,132,593 6,567,770 7,070,899 8,045,419 9,046,866
Public works... 3,907,270 3,885,804 3,803,467 4,939,677 5,273,617
Cultural and recreation 1,195,553 1,301,845 1,900,889 1,677,079 1,931,238
Economic and physical development. 461,389 1,879,946 1,269,525 2,005,292 2,225,126
Interest on loNg-term debt.........cceciviririrenene ittt 174,166 300,632 281,751 257,803 200,005
Total governmental activities expense: 13,894,468 16,163,256 16,588,605 19,434,064 21,622,831
Business-type activities:
W ALET ANG SEWET . .eveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeseseeeseesseessssessssessasseesasseesaseesssseesssessans 6,139,854 6,039,261 6,762,948 7,298,336 7,656,961
Total Business-type activitie: 6,139,854 6,039,261 6,762,948 7,298,336 7,656,961
Total primary government expense: 20,034,322 22,202,517 23,351,553 26,732,400 29,279,792
Program revenues
Governmental activities:
Charges for services:
General government.. 58,291 60,580 1,100 11,850 5,400
Public safety. 21,135 19,941 21,350 17,532 19,750
Public works..... 401,609 422,237 501,353 617,855 701,980
Cultural and recreation. 86,690 87,018 92,443 74,138 80,918
Economic and physical developmen 427,814 391,359 863,738 742,977 1,233,852
Operating grants and contributions. 574,891 934,764 742,312 957,002 821,868
Capital grants and contribUtioNS.......c..coueviiririnecniciseseecees 639,266 3,380,460 2,617,102 3,927,560 4,465,736
Total governmental activities program revenue 2,209,696 5,296,359 4,839,398 6,348,914 7,329,504
Business-type activities:
Charges for services 6,491,915 6,676,309 6,995,810 7,644,617 9,146,098
Capital grants and contributions... 465,220 2,508,340 226,820 5,400,880 2,890,267
Total business-type activities program revenue 6,957,135 9,184,649 7,222,630 13,045,497 12,036,365
Total primary government program revenue, 9,166,831 14,481,008 12,062,028 19,394,411 19,365,869
Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental activities... (11,684,772) (10,866,897) (11,749,207) (13,085,150) (14,293,327)
Business-type activities.... 817,281 3,145,388 459,682 5,747,161 4,379,404
Total primary government net exp (10,867,491) (7,721,509) (11,289,525) (7,337,989) (9,913,923)
General revenues and other changes in net position
Governmental activities:
Property taxes, levied for general purpose.. 9,751,487 10,279,056 10,895,740 11,378,933 11,807,602
Other taxes 4,299,798 4,563,646 4,885,951 5,067,665 5,764,756
Grants and contributions not restricted
to specific programs. 3,050 3,050 4,050 31,047 191,474
Unrestricted investment earning 25,200 129,302 180,725 153,113 56,026
Miscellaneous..........cccvevvueureviucnnnnne 69,609 164,578 36,506 427,623 101,903
Special item: Conveyance of land for economic development. - - - - -
Transfers, - (2,003) (57,302) (1,394) -
Total governmental activities 14,149,144 15,137,629 15,945,670 17,056,987 17,921,761
Business-type activities:
Unrestricted investment earnings... 6,344 28,295 63,336 89,202 28,073
Miscellaneous 784,791 193,241 75,501 16,655 (90,910)
TEANSTEIS. .ttt - 2,003 57,302 1,395 -
Total business-type activities 791,135 223,539 196,139 107,252 (62,837)
Total primary government 14,940,279 15,361,168 16,141,809 17,164,239 17,858,924
Change in Net Position
Governmental @CIVITIES. .....cc.eiveeieeieeecceeee et 2,464,372 4,270,732 4,196,463 3,971,837 3,628,434
BUSINESS-YPE ACHIVITIES. .ceueeuieeirierieriereeree ettt sttt seeseeseenes 1,608,416 3,368,927 655,821 5,854,413 4,316,567
Change in primary government net position 4,072,788 S 7,639,659 S 4,852,284 S 9,826,250 $ 7,945,001

Notes:

(1) 2020 includes a prior period restatement of $427,347; 2018 includes a prior period restatement of $2,337,035; 2017 includes a prior period restatement
of $15,099; 2016 includes a prior period restatement of $545,860; 2015 includes a prior period restatement of $(531,756).
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years Table 3
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) Page 1 of 2
Fiscal Year Ending June 30
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
General Fund
NONSPENAADIE.....ccuiiiiceieieeteetectcce et S - S - S 20,511 S 27,361 §$ 116,295
Restricted..... 497,614 755,213 2,566,389 5,183,933 2,533,840
Committed - - - - -
ASSIZNEU....eiiiiiiieciiie ettt s 1,556,073 1,586,386 1,543,138 1,549,082 1,419,254
UN@SSIZNE.....iiiiiiiiiiiieeiieeeiee ettt ae e saree e 8,636,871 9,309,149 6,612,572 4,991,002 7,377,790
Total general fund $ 10,690,558 $ 11,650,748 S 10,742,610 $ 11,751,378 S 11,447,179
All Other Governmental Funds
Nonspendable $ - S - $ - S - S -
RESTIICEE. c.uiii ettt et e - - 27,852 41,814 55,776
COMMILEEd.c..eiiieeriiieiieee e e - - - - -
1N T4 V=T (4,500) 316,850 1,925,422 1,181,066 640,198
UNQ@SSIZNEU......eiiiieieeieeeie et e see e see s erteesaeesaeesneeeeeens - - - - -
Total all other governmental funds S (4,500) S 316,850 S 1,953,274 S 1,222,880 S 695,974
Total Governmental Funds
NONSPENAADIE.....ccviviiceieiietectecteee e S - S - S 20,511 S 27,361 § 116,295
Restricted..... 497,614 755,213 2,594,241 5,225,747 2,589,616
Committed - - - - -
ASSIZNEU....eiiiiiieciiie ettt e 1,551,573 1,903,236 3,468,560 2,730,148 2,059,452
UN@SSIZNE....iiiiiiiiiiiiieciiee ettt sbae e iree e 8,636,871 9,309,149 6,612,572 4,991,002 7,377,790
Total governmental funds..................... $ 10,686,058 $ 11,967,598 S 12,695,884 $ 12,974,258 $ 12,143,153

Fund Balances - General Fund
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Page 103

Last Ten Fiscal Years Table 3
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) Page 2 of 2
Fiscal Year Ending June 30
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
General Fund
NONSPENAADIE.......eiieieeeeeee e S 51,005 S 131,945 § 46,552 S 168,052 S 31,716
Restricted..... 2,545,731 2,673,951 2,658,975 2,422,768 2,877,971
Committed - - - - -
ASSIBNE.....c.uiiiieeiiecee ettt et saae s 1,803,854 1,828,000 1,500,000 1,823,718 804,772
UNG@SSIBNEM......iiiiieciieiieeiie ettt e eteesee e sraeere e 9,083,988 7,563,514 9,186,167 10,427,779 12,005,360
Total general fund S 13,484,578 S 12,197,410 13,391,694 S 14,842,317 S 15,719,819
All Other Governmental Funds
Nonspendable S - S - - S - $ -
[ (E Y 1 g Lot (=Y [ 69,702 83,628 98,182 113,160 127,459
COMMITEE...ciiiiiiiiiee et - - - - -

F X T4 VT 5,986,376 1,757,022 884,814 - 566,851
UNQ@SSIBNEU......eiiiieiieeieeeie et e seee s et e e e sneeeneens - - - - -
Total all other governmental funds....... S 6,056,078 S 1,840,650 982,996 S 113,160 $ 694,310

Total Governmental Funds
NONSPENAADIE.......iieeieeeeeece e S 51,005 S 131,945 46,552 S 168,052 S 31,716
Restricted..... 2,615,433 2,757,579 2,757,157 2,535,928 3,005,430
Committed - - - - -
ASSIBNE....cuiiieieeieecte ettt re et reesaae s 7,790,230 3,585,022 2,384,814 1,823,718 1,371,623
UNGSSIBNEM......iiiiieiiieeieeite ettt eveesee e sraeere e 9,083,988 7,563,514 9,186,167 10,427,779 12,005,360
Total governmental funds.................... S 19,540,656 S 14,038,060 14,374,690 S 14,955,477 S 16,414,129
Fund Balances - All Other Governmental Funds
7,000,000
6,000,000
5,000,000
4,000,000
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years Table 4
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) Page 1 of 2
Fiscal Year Ending June 30
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Revenues

Ad Valorem taXeS.....cooevuvrereeiieirieeee et eecirrree e eearrreeeeens S 6,963,505 §$ 7,322,698 $ 7,705,045 §$ 8,207,631 S 8,436,102

Other taxes and [ICENSES.......uuveiiieeereeieieeeeeeee e 19,253 189,355 199,935 190,058 795

Unrestricted intergovernmental...........ccceevveeeiieeiiiieescneen, 3,183,950 3,136,030 3,323,889 5,033,302 4,191,306

Restricted intergovernmental..........ccceeveevienieecieecceeceesens 686,429 695,117 1,497,810 893,277 880,010

Permits and fEES......cuueiiieiiieiee ettt 115,955 136,214 244,104 320,358 606,212

SalES ANA SEIVICES.....cuevveeee ittt e e 378,424 382,049 416,084 392,832 433,014

INVeStMeENt @arNiNgS.......covvuiieii it 14,422 11,943 17,190 1,746 6,363

Miscellaneous 86,011 112,033 94,753 260,119 155,294
Total revenues 11,447,949 11,985,439 13,498,810 15,299,323 14,709,096
Expenditures

General BOVEINMENT......cccveieerieeeereeseeesee e e e ee e e seeenns 1,676,324 1,950,508 2,087,742 2,094,055 2,151,509

PUDBIIC Safety..cccviiiiiiieciee e 3,872,971 4,157,723 5,091,637 4,901,955 5,414,023

PUDBIIC WOTKS...vveiieciieeiee et eearre e e 3,102,904 2,818,822 3,708,213 3,708,075 3,733,538

Cultural and recreation........ccvveeeeeeivereeeeeeieeeee e eeerreeeeeeeanes 1,152,466 1,110,864 1,195,637 1,318,029 1,466,564

Economic and physical development.........ccccvecceevveneeeseeennen. 204,146 505,146 3,832,902 703,466 1,466,432

Debt service:

[ AT a Tl o TSRS 613,255 426,667 426,667 833,854 835,083
Interest and other charges.........ccocvveeevieecviee e, 155,859 135,000 119,484 182,646 161,067

Capital OULIAY....ccoiiiicriie e e 197,277 116,669 1,437,893 2,138,037 1,276,985
Total expenditures.........ccccceeeeeviicnrriiiiiinsssssssssnssssssssssssssssnns 10,975,202 11,221,399 17,900,175 15,880,117 16,505,201
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

(under) expenditures........ccccvviiiiiiniiiiine 472,747 764,040 (4,401,365) (580,794) (1,796,105)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers to other funds... (1,650,000) (245,000) (245,000) (1,450,000) (856,734)

Transfers from other funds. - 762,500 1,029,376 1,843,092 1,821,734

Issuance of debt.......cc......... - - 4,345,275 - -
Total other financing sources (uses)... (1,650,000) 517,500 5,129,651 393,092 965,000
Net change in fund balances..........ccccceeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniicenens (1,177,253) 1,281,540 728,286 (187,702) (831,105)
Fund balances, beginning........ccccceeeeieeiiiieeiiiie e 11,863,311 10,686,058 11,967,598 12,695,884 12,974,258
Prior period adjustment.........cccooevieivieeeniieece e, - - - 466,076 -
Fund balances, beginning as restated.........cccoccceeviiiiniieenneen. 11,863,311 10,686,058 11,967,598 13,161,960 12,974,258
Fund balances, ending..................... . $ 10,686,058 S 11,967,598 S 12,695,884 S 12,974,258 S 12,143,153
Debt service as a percentage

of noncapital expenditures............... 7.7% 5.5% 4.6% 8.2% 7.0%
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years Table 4
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) Page 2 of 2
Fiscal Year Ending June 30
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Revenues

Ad Valorem taXeS.....cooevuvrereeiieirieeee et eecirrree e eearrreeeeens S 9,349,863 §$ 9,851,605 $ 10,413,402 $ 10,897,067 $ 11,339,347

Other taxes and [ICENSES.......uuveiiieeereeieieeeeeeee e 960 1,005 1,030 955 955

Unrestricted intergovernmental...........ccceevveeeiieeiiiieescneen, 4,427,170 4,866,039 5,095,144 5,433,058 6,101,360

Restricted intergovernmental..........ccceeveevienieecieecceeceesens 904,619 1,265,968 1,589,184 1,262,717 1,154,666

Permits and fEES......cuueiiieiiieiee ettt 482,809 411,580 915,604 811,186 1,338,035

SalES ANA SEIVICES.....cuevveeee ittt e e 444,814 462,033 494,687 576,421 616,526

INVeStMeENt @arNiNgS.......covvuiieii it 25,200 129,302 180,725 153,113 56,027

Miscellaneous 270,538 322,138 167,614 524,824 262,594
Total revenues 15,905,973 17,309,670 18,857,390 19,659,341 20,869,510
Expenditures

General BOVEINMENT......cccveieerieeeereeseeesee e e e ee e e seeenns 1,997,039 2,244,898 2,179,611 2,265,058 2,540,663

PUDBIIC Safety..cccviiiiiiieciee e 6,171,044 6,526,581 6,544,785 6,888,994 6,818,514

PUDBIIC WOTKS...vveiieciieeiee et eearre e e 3,268,769 3,400,679 3,113,625 3,048,385 3,888,863

Cultural and recreation........ccvveeeeeeivereeeeeeieeeee e eeerreeeeeeeanes 1,056,609 1,828,941 1,445,320 1,343,057 1,293,315

Economic and physical development.........ccccvecceevveneeeseeennen. 703,062 1,878,174 1,255,070 1,927,454 2,163,879

Debt service:

[ AT a Tl o TSRS 836,338 1,316,286 1,347,620 1,272,748 1,239,573
Interest and other charges.........ccocvveeevieecviee e, 139,372 306,592 285,412 264,189 211,159

Capital OULIAY....ccoiiiicriie e e 634,567 5,739,986 3,652,717 2,068,669 1,685,392
Total expenditures.........ccccceeeeeviicnrriiiiiinsssssssssnssssssssssssssssnns 14,806,800 23,242,137 19,824,160 19,078,554 19,841,358
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

(under) expenditures........ccccvviiiiiiniiiiine 1,099,173 (5,932,467) (966,770) 580,787 1,028,152
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers to other funds... (60,000) (1,726,812) (1,500,000) (1,183,857) (1,144,592)

Transfers from other funds. 60,000 1,724,810 2,067,932 1,183,857 1,144,592

Issuance ot debt.................. 6,298,330 431,873 735,468 - 430,500
Total other financing sources (uses)... 6,298,330 429,871 1,303,400 - 430,500
Net change in fund balances..........ccccceeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniicenens 7,397,503 (5,502,596) 336,630 580,787 1,458,652
Fund balances, beginning........ccccceeeeieeiiiieeiiiie e 12,143,153 19,540,656 14,038,060 14,374,690 14,955,477
Prior period adjustment.........cccooevieivieeeniieece e, - - - - -
Fund balances, beginning as restated.........cccoccceeviiiiniieenneen. 12,143,153 19,540,656 14,038,060 14,374,690 14,955,477
Fund balances, ending..................... . $ 19,540,656 S 14,038,060 S 14,374,690 S§ 14,955,477 S 16,414,129
Debt service as a percentage

of noncapital expenditures............... 7.4% 10.3% 10.2% 8.8% 8.0%

Notes:
(1) 2015 includes a prior period restatement of $466,076.
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property

Last Ten Fiscal Years Table 5
Ratio of
Assessed
Total Value to
Less Tax- Direct Estimated
Fiscal Personal Public Service Exempt Total Taxable Tax  Estimated Actual  Actual
Year Real Property Property Companies Property Assessed Value  Rate  Taxable Value Value
2012 1,101,391,678 400,790,237 20,894,610 (8,275,108) 1,514,801,417 0.47  1,481,995,824 102.2%
2013 1,138,480,584 417,965,044 22,126,189 (8,199,338) 1,570,372,479 0.47  1,489,959,352 105.4%
2014 1,163,814,338 476,296,137 22,343,241 (8,380,262) 1,654,073,454 0.47 1,574,895,032 105.0%
2015 1,171,969,829 498,060,858 22,232,490 (8,580,903) 1,683,682,274 0.49 1,603,949,005 105.0%
2016 1,215,674,661 511,076,370 23,926,263 (9,087,410) 1,741,589,884 0.49 1,648,732,865 105.6%
2017 1,355,230,856 550,037,154 20,701,422 (6,871,152) 1,919,098,280 0.49  1,919,559,215 100.0%
2018 1,519,215,965 576,423,148 21,265,042 (6,231,130) 2,110,673,025 0.47  2,165,774,122 97.5%
2019 1,572,394,043 593,126,106 19,041,041 (2,685,151) 2,181,876,039 0.47  2,238,905,875 97.5%
2020 1,627,662,514 648,540,774 19,264,439 (243,533) 2,295,224,194 0.47  2,449,836,538 93.7%
2021 1,755,206,176 602,162,652 19,101,600 (243,533) 2,376,226,895 0.47  2,542,954,665 93.4%
Sources:
Alamance County and Orange County Tax Departments.
Notes:
Assessed valuations are established by the Alamance County Board of Commissioners at 100% of estimated
market value. A revaluation of real property is required by the North Carolina General Statutes at least every
eight years. Property was last revalued in FY 2018.
Estimated actual taxable value is calculated using information provided in Alamance and Orange County's
Annual Comprehensive Financial Reports (ACFRs).
Assessed Value of Property
(Including Tax-Exempt)
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2,000,000,000
1,500,000,000
1,000,000,000
500,000,000
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
Last Ten Years

(Rates are Per $100 of Assessed Value) Table 6
Direct Rate Overlapping Rates Combined Tax Rate
City of Alamance  Orange Alamance  Orange
Fiscal Year Mebane county™  county? County County
0.47 0.520 0.858 0.990 1.328
0.47 0.520 0.858 0.990 1.328
0.47 0.540 0.858 1.010 1.328
0.49 0.530 0.858 1.020 1.348
0.49 0.580 0.878 1.070 1.368
0.49 0.580 0.878 1.070 1.368
0.47 0.580 0.838 1.050 1.308
0.47 0.590 0.850 1.060 1.320
0.47 0.670 0.868 1.140 1.338
0.47 0.670 0.868 1.140 1.338

Sources:
™ Alamance County Tax Department.
@ Orange County Tax Department.

Notes:

Overlapping rates are the county government rates that apply to property owners within the City of Mebane.
The City of Mebane is located in both Alamance and Orange counties. Not all overlapping rates apply to al
property owners, but at least one County overlapping rates applies to each property owner.
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Principal Property Taxpayers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago Table 7
2021 2012
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total
Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Value Assessed Taxable Assessed
Taxpayer E Rank Value Assessed Value Rank Value
GKN Automotive Components........ccecceeerueeeriieeennns S 103,007,774 1 4.33% S 97,526,716 1 6.40%
Walmart Stores INC....ccveeeeveeeciee et ecreee s 96,268,596 2 4.05% 16,620,399 7 1.10%
Liggett Group - One Hundred Maple..........c.cc........ 72,599,434 3 3.06% 67,799,849 2 4.50%
Nypro, Inc. (a Jabil Company).......cccceveeriiriinninnne. 48,851,275 4 2.06% 14,571,775 8 1.00%
Lotus Bakeries US, LLC...........rrrvveeerrreeeereereseeneeenne 44,471,513 5 1.87% @
Tanger Properties LMTD Partner... 43,885,868 6 1.85% 34,813,065 4 2.30%
Keystone at Mebane Oaks LLC... 36,387,530 7 1.53% @
Cambro Manufacturing Co...... 35,350,022 8 1.49% @
Morinaga American Foods Inc . 31,928,071 9 1.34% @
SANAVIK INCoeneriecieeecee et e 27,588,164 10 1.16% 44,305,583 3 2.90%
Armacell LLC/Armstrong @ 20,708,854 5 1.40%
Mebane Packaging / Meadwestvaco..........c.cceeuevene @ 20,391,569 6 1.30%
SPFING FOISt, LLCureroeereeereeereeeeseeeeeeeeeeeeeseseesseseneene @ 13,251,550 9 0.90%
Fieldstone NC, LLC.......vvveeereveereeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeee e @ 12,757,055 10 0.80%
o) - | PO S $540,338,247 22.74% $342,746,415 22.65%

Source:
Alamance County Tax Department.

Notes:
M Assessed valuation represents taxes assessed and due in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

@ Not within top ten ranking.
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years Table 8
Fiscal Year of the Levy Total Collections to Date
Taxes Levied Collections in

forthe Fiscal ~ Amount  Percentage Subsequent Percentage

Fiscal Year Year ¥ Collected of Levy Years Amount of Levy
7,062,935 6,917,103 97.9% 118,501 7,035,604 99.6%
7,354,497 7,224,810 98.2% 141,096 7,365,906 100.2%
7,764,524 7,677,173 98.9% 123,667 7,800,840 100.5%
8,223,909 8,175,886 99.4% 79,316 8,255,202 100.4%
8,528,175 8,485,223 99.5% 104,352 8,589,575 100.7%
9,288,710 9,244,828 99.5% 36,394 9,281,222 99.9%
9,815,332 9,785,748 99.7% 56,185 9,841,933 100.3%
10,383,208 10,326,956 99.5% 43,405 10,370,361 99.9%
10,854,564 10,817,844 99.7% 23,366 10,841,210 99.9%
11,273,675 11,233,082 99.6% - 11,233,082 99.6%

Sources:
Alamance County Tax Department.

Notes:
™ Taxes levied for the fiscal year are not adjusted for discoveries in subsequent years but their collectior
is included in the total collections to date for the year in which they would have been levied.

Percentage of Levy

101.0%
100.5% ‘ﬁ/.\
100.0%

99.5% ——

99.0% f

98.5% /

98.0% /

97.5%
97.0%
96.5%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

==¢==Current Fiscal Year Collections === Total Collections to Date
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years Table 9
Governmental
Activities Business-type Activities
General Percentage of
Installment Obligation Installment Personal
Fiscal Year Financingm Bonds Financin_gﬂ Total Income Per Capita ™
2012, 3,856,669 680,000 3,437,758 7,974,427 2.0% 666
2013 e 3,430,002 570,000 2,758,161 6,758,163 1.7% 557
2014t 7,348,610 455,000 6,788,750 14,592,360 3.5% 1,180
2015, e 6,514,756 335,000 6,162,611 13,012,367 3.1% 1,032
2016....cciiiiiiiniiiiiienine 5,679,678 215,000 5,272,472 11,167,150 2.6% 874
2017 e 11,141,683 95,000 4,869,335 16,106,018 3.6% 1,141
2018..... 10,257,277 - 4,459,195 14,716,472 3.2% 983
2019..... 9,645,099 - 4,042,056 13,687,155 2.9% 878
2020..... 8,371,909 - 3,617,917 11,989,826 2.3% 737
2021 7,562,836 - 3,186,778 10,749,614 1.4% 615

Notes:
W' see Table 13 for personal income and population data. These ratios are calculated using personal
income and population for the calendar year.

@ Details regarding outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

Outstanding Debt Per Capita Outstanding Debt as a Percentage of
$1,400 Personal Income
4.0%
$1,200 2 5o;
$1,000 3.0%

4800 2.5% I \
$600 20% N \

1.5% )
5400 1.0%
$200 0.5%
0.0%
so T T T T T T T T T 1 0

Page 110



City of Mebane, North Carolina
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years Table 10

Percentage of Actual
General Bonded Taxable Value of Per Capita Bonded

Fiscal Year Debt Property W Debt?
20021 e 680,000 0.04% 57
2003 e e e e e e e e 570,000 0.04% 47
2004 455,000 0.03% 37
2005, e e e e 335,000 0.02% 27
2006ttt 215,000 0.01% 17
2007 e e e e e 95,000 0.00% 7
- 0.00% -
- 0.00% -
- 0.00% -
- 0.00% -

' see Table 5 for Assessed Value of Taxable Property.

2 See Table 13 for personal income and population data. These ratios are calculated using personal
income and population for the calendar year.

) Details regarding outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

Per Capita Bonded Debt Bonded Debt as a Percentage of Actual

$60 Taxable Value of Property
0.1%

S50 0.0%
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0.0%
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0.0% \
0.0%

$10 . \
0.0% \
0.0%
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

As of June 30, 2021 Table 11
Estimated

Share of Direct

Estimated and

Debt Percentage  Qverlapping

Governmental Unit Outstanding Applicable™ Debt
Alamance County general obligation debt............ccccoevuevrevieienicecieiceeeeeee S 33,155,000 13.23% S 4,386,012
Orange County general obligation debt.........cccccvieviiiiiiiiieiiiieececce e 131,000,000 1.95% 2,558,627
Subtotal, overlapping debt........ccccovieeieiieee e 6,944,639
City Of Mebane debt.........covvieiieiececee e 7,562,836
Total direct and overlapping debt..........ccocvvviiiiieiiiiiice e, S 14,507,475

Sources:

Alamance and Orange County debt outstanding provided by Alamance and Orange Counties.

Notes:

Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the
City. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that
is borne by the residents and businesses of the City. This process recognizes that, when considering the
City's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and
businesses should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident
and, therefore, responsible for repaying the debt of each overlapping government.

™ For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using
taxable assessed property values. Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of
another governmental unit's taxable assessed value that is within the City of Mebane's boundaries and
dividing it by each unit's total taxable assessed value. Taxable assessed property values as of June 30,
2021 were used to determine the overlapping debt percentage.
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Legal Debt Margin Information
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 12

Total Net Debt

Legal Debt
Margin as a

Applicable to Legal Debt Percent of Debt
Fiscal Year Debt Limit Limit Margin Limit
121,184,113 8,311,706 112,872,407 93.1%
125,629,798 7,112,016 118,517,782 94.3%
132,325,876 14,748,774 117,577,102 88.9%
134,694,582 13,012,364 121,682,218 90.3%
139,327,191 11,167,150 128,160,041 92.0%
153,527,862 16,106,018 137,421,844 89.5%
168,853,842 14,716,472 154,137,370 91.3%
174,550,083 13,687,155 160,862,928 92.2%
183,617,936 11,989,826 171,628,110 93.5%
190,098,152 10,749,614 179,348,538 94.3%
Notes:
Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2021:
Assessed valuation.............. S 2,376,226,895
Statutory limit percentage 8.0%
Debt limit - 8.0% Of aSSESSEA VAIUE......ccccvveeiieeeireeeee ettt et eeraae e e e eeaanees S 190,098,152
Gross debt:
Total boNded debt....c...ooiiiiie et e -
Authorized and UNISSUE DONAS........cceiriieiieeeree e s enes -
Lease fiNaNCING @BrEEMENTS. .....civiirieeieeeeeee e ete ettt et e et e s e te e seesneesneeenneennes 10,749,614
B e =1 =4 o T3 1Y o 10,749,614
Less: statutory deAUCIONS. .......eiiiiiieiee ettt st e -
Total amount of debt applicable to debt limit (net debt)..........ccceevveeiieveeiieeceeeeceeeiee 10,749,614
LEEAl DBt IMIArEiN....ccuecueeeeereieeereereeeeeeeeseseessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessassassens S 179,348,538
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Calendar Years Table 13
Median value of Median
owner -occupied Family Unemployment
Fiscal Year Population (1) housing (2) Income Median Age (3) Rate (5)
11,965 N/A * 51,675 354 6.5%
12,128 163,500 * 53,166 35.8 6.2%
12,366 161,000 * 52,586 35.8 * 6.3%
12,613 * 165,800 * 53,029 35.8 * 5.7%
12,774 * 172,400 * 53,029 35.8 * 4.7%
14,117 * 178,700 * 54,430 35.9 * 4.0%
14,973 * 185,700 * 56,037 35.8 * 4.0%
15,589 * 193,500 * 60,851 34.8 * 3.7%
16,262 * 195,800 * 54,157 34.2 * 4.4%
17,472 * 189,600 * 64,729 34.7 * 5.7%

Note: Many of these data elements are not published annually for cities. Data is estimated using the
ratio of Mebane to Alamance County from the 2020 census and the 2005-2014 American Community
Survey. That ratio was applied back to annual county data to estimate the data for the City of Mebane.

Notes:
(1) Office of State Management and Budget, NC Department of Revenue
(2) U. S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis.
United States Census Bureau, Most recent available census data.
(3) American City Survey Fact Finder.
(4) N. C. Employment Security Commission, Local Area Unemployment Statistics
(5) N. C. Employment Security Commission, Local Area Unemployment Statistics

* Data not available - estimated based on trends.
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Principal Employers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago Table 14
20211 2012(2)
Percentage of Percentage of
Total Total

Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
ABB (General Electric) 650 1 3.72% 315 4 5.5%
Walmart Distribution........ccceceeeveeneenieniienieeneenne 587 2 3.36% * 3)
[ PN 547 3 3.13% 500 1 8.7%
AKG of America.... 372 4 2.13% 350 3 6.1%
Armacell. ... 275 5 1.57% 250 7 4.3%
Liggett Group LLC........ovveiiiiiiieeiiiiieeeeeeiieeeee e 272 6 1.56% 299 6 5.2%
B o1 (01771 ) 250 7 1.43% 250 8 4.4%
SPOrts ENA@AVOIS....ccuvvieriieeiieecieeecrreeeieeeeiree e 200 8 1.14% 311 5 5.4%
MOFINAZA c.eeeeeeeeeee e 194 9 1.11% * 3)
SANAVIK. .o 113 10 0.65% * 3)
Prescient......ooee e 112 * 0.64% * 3)
Carrier (Walter Kidde).......ccvvevveecreeieeieeereeveenne, 107 * 0.61% 114 10 2.0%
(07111 o] o TSR 106 * 0.61% * 3)
KiNGSAOWN...ccuiiiiiiiiecciieecece e 90 * 0.52% 150 9 2.6%
UPI (Universal PersevaChem INC).........ccccoeeeevnennnns 30 * 0.17% * 3)
West Rock (Meadwestvaco).......cccceveeveeeveesreesnnenns * 400 2 6.9%
TOtAl et 3,905 22.35% 2,939 51.1%

Sources:

(1) Human Resource Directors- Phone or Email

(2) Alamance County Area Chamber of Commerce data for closest year available
3) Not available

* Not in top ten this year
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Full-time-Equivalent Employees by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years Table 15
Function / Department 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
General Government:
Mayor & City Council......ccceveecveeeiieerieeinenne, 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0
City Man@ger....uueeeiiieeiiiiiiieeeeee e eeiirreeeee e 1.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
City ClerK. .o, 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Finance............... 2.0 2.0 2.0 3.0 3.0 4.0 4.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
Human ReSOUICES.......ccovvuvriiieeeeieeeniieieeeeen, 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Tax Collector....couiiireieceeceecee e 2.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 - - - - -
City AtLOINEY. ..o 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5
Information Technology........cccoeeevecveecinennnen. - - - 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 2.0 2.0
Public BUildings......cceeveeiieeviiecie e, 2.0 2.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
Public Safety:
Police Department 30.0 31.0 31.0 32.0 35.0 35.5 40.0 40.0 40.0 41.0

Fire Department..........ccoevviinniiniiinniiniiennnn, 16.0 16.0 16.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 28.0 29.0 29.0

Economic and Physical Development:

Planning...ccue et e, 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 3.0

INSPECLIONS...eeviiiiieeiiieeeeeeee e, 3.0 3.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 5.0 4.0 4.0 5.0 6.0
Public Works:

SEFEEES. ittt 7.0 9.0 - - - - - - - -

Sanitation. ... 5.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0

PUBIIC WOPKS....vvieeeeieeeteee e, 5.0 5.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 13.0 12.0 14.0 14.0 12.0

Culture and Recreation:
ReCreation.....cccccueeeeceiee et 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 8.0
Arts and Community Center 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0

Water and Sewer:
Billing and Metering........ccceeeveeiieeeieecieeeeenns 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
Water distribution and maintenance............. 3.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 5.0 5.0 7.0

Waste Collection and Treatment:

Pretreatment - industrial monitoring............. 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Wastewater Treatment Plant... 6.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 6.0 5.0 6.0
Laboratory.....ccoeceeecieccee e 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Sewer mains and lift stations.........cc.ccceeeueanis 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
[ o] 7 | PRSP 106.5 109.5 110.5 122.5 1285 131.0 136.5 1455 147.5 1525

Sources:
City of Mebane staff

Notes:

A full-time employee is scheduled to work 2,080 hours per year (including vacation and sick leave).
Full-time-equivalent employment is calculated by dividing total labor hours by 2,080.
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Operating Indicators by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years Table 16
Function 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
General Government
Finance Department
Vendor checks iSSUEM........c.c.veeururereieceeieeeineenenes 2,675 3,003 2,952 3,029 3,095 3,104 3,299 3,668 3,613 3,621
Human Resources
Workers' compensation lost time (days)............ 155 52 122 - - - - 23 - -
Employee turnover rate.........coeoveeeeeerinennnenens 3% 7% 3% 5% 9% 5% 9% 4% 6% 12%
Public Safety
Fire Protection
Incident calls 1,812 732 823 773 840 909 918 921 919 939
Structure fires... 168 303 211 15 19 26 34 21 25 36
INSPECLIONS....vvveveeeseiereretetesese et eeesenes 103 177 190 186 394 363 250 545 233 188
Child passenger seat inspections............cc.evvenee 197 242 191 154 204 193 237 190 217 107
Police Protection
Physical arrests 552 653 568 501 377 438 482 506 436 274
Citations issued.... . 1,073 1,489 1,226 1,028 926 1,585 1,522 1,846 1,720 970
Response to calls/officer initiated activity.......... 13,163 15,363 14,942 14,685 16,968 16,363 17,220 19,764 21,718 20,932
Traffic aCCidents.......cccueurerrinccieirerceeeees 593 583 528 491 620 790 628 809 642 767
Public Works
Street resurfacing (miles) 3.19 0.54 2.67 1.48 1.48 1.51 1.32 2.20 1.56 4.15
Refuse collected (tons annually).. 3,200 3,267 3,390 3,585 3,880 4,073 4,278 4,594 4,950 5,459
Homes receiving service 4,581 4,522 3,965 4,756 4,527 4,717 5,354 4,965 5,243 5,538
Recyclables collected (tons annually) 946 1,063 1,112 1,100 841 862 864 831 1,265 792
Economic & Physical Development
Inspections
Residential inspections conducted..................... 3,247 3,460 5,914 5,212 6,477 7,348 4,765 7,032 7,357 11,159
Commercial inspections conducted...........c.c...... 490 332 785 1,462 8,499 9,710 5,449 5,291 2,761 2,214
Total inspections conducted...........c.coeeurereneees 3,737 3,792 6,699 6,674 14,976 17,058 10,214 12,323 10,118 13,373
Certificates of occupancy issued... 136 125 131 154 166 216 102 206 207 285
Building permits issued 245 277 228 155 191 143 171 196 259 348
Cultural & Recreation
Recreation
Athletics participants........ccceveeerernininecenennnens 2,458 3,140 2,693 2,653 2,744 2,679 2,679 2,923 1,623 1,846
Water Distribution
ACCOUNTS.....vviiieiieieisiesticeereie et eseseeene 4,302 4,454 4,566 4,744 4,934 5,227 5,471 5,717 5,972 6,008
Average daily consumption (mgd)........cccceevrvrurenn 1.150 1.290 1.350 1.400 1.510 1.880 1.760 1.710 1.707 1.911
Wastewater Treatment
ACCOUNTS.....viiiiaciieieesee ettt e 3,974 4,125 4,263 4,424 4,587 4,898 5,034 5,170 5,395 5,564
Average daily treatment (Mgd)......cccovvvvvrrrvererenenen 1.000 1.100 1.340 1.202 1.359 1.373 1.290 1.690 1.570 1.770

Sources:
Various City departments

Notes:
"NA" indicates "not available"
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City of Mebane, North Carolina
Capital Asset Statistics by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years Table 17

Function 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Public Safety
Fire Protection

Stations....oooii i 2 2 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Fire trucks....cocceevveeiennieenienieeicesceee, 12 12 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13
Police Protection
SEAtiONS.c.eveieiieeeeeeee e 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Patrol units.......cccoeeeecieeeeiiee e 30 32 32 30 29 31 39 36 36 36
Public Works
Miles of streets.......ccoeeveveeecieeccieeens 51.0 52.2 52.4 54.0 54.3 54.7 56.6 58.0 60.1 62.4
Maintenance vehicles.................. . 58 56 56 58 58 51 45 29 31 32
Miles of sidewalks (linear feet)............. 42.9 43.0 43.0 50.1 50.8 54.2 55.3 57.5 59.8 63.6
Refuse collection trucks.........cccceeueeneee. 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6
Cultural & Recreation
Number of parks .......cccceveveeviieeninennns 6 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 9 9
Park acreage......cccoceeveeeeveeneesieeseeneene 275 275 275 275 275 308 308 328 328 362
Trails (Miles)....ccveveeeireeeeecieereecreeeeenns 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 5 5 5
Playgrounds........ccceeveveieeneeneenieeseeen. 5 5 5 5 5 5 3 4 5 5
Baseball/softball diamonds................... 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6
Soccer fields.......ccooveeeciieecieeeieeee, 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 7 7 7
Water and Sewer
Miles of gravity sewer lines................... 88.1 88.7 89.1 94.3 97.8 98.6 100.1 1134 1188 122.1
Miles of water lines.......cceceevveerveneennne. 100.1 103.1 1046 111.3 1113 1149 117.2 1178 122.2 125.8
Miles of sewer force mains........ccccoo.... 17.3 18.7 18.5 18.3 21.9 18.3 18.5 24.2 27.8 27.8

Miles of storm sewer 57.0 57.0 57.6 58.5 61.1 61.8 64.9 65.0 67.6 71.5

Source:
Various City departments

Notes:
"NA" indicates "not available"
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Compliance Section

This section contains compliance reports for the City’s
Governmental Compliance.

Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government
Auditing Standards
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To The Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Mebane

Mebane, North Carolina

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United State of America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States, the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the City of Mebane, North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprises the City of
Mebane's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated
November 10, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Mebane's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City of Mebane’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Mebane’s financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Stour Sueer M%owea £ 06, LLP

Burlington, North Carolina
November 10, 2021
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